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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 58th Annual General Meeting of Kerala State Industrial Development
Corporation Limited (KSIDC) will be held on Friday the 27th day of September, 2019 at 12.00 Noon at
the Registered Office of the Corporation at KSIDC Building, Keston Road, Kowdiar, Thiruvananthapuram-
695 003 to transact the following business.

Oridinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2019.

2. To authorise the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the
Company appointed by the Comproller and Auditor General of India.
In this context, to consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution:

“ Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act 2013, the
Board of  Directors  of the Company be and are hereby authorised to fix the remuneration to the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, periodically.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
K. SURESH KUMAR

Thiruvananthapuram Company Secretary & DGM
16-09-2019 (Corporate Affairs)

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. For appointing a proxy, the
enclosed form of proxy duly filled, stamped and signed should be deposited at the registered office
of the Company not later than 48 hours before the Meeting.

2. Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government
company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of
Section 142 (1) of the companies Act, 2013, theremuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the
company in the annual general meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general
meeting may determine. Necessary resolution has been placed befored the Members for authorising
the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors of the comapny periodically.
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Hmlcn DSaIƒ°p≈ Adn-bn∏v

tIcf kwÿm\ hyhkmb hnIk\ tIm¿∏tdj≥ enan‰Uns‚ 58˛aXp hm¿jnI

s]mXptbmKw 2019 sk]vXw_¿ amkw 27 sh≈nbmgvN D®bv°v 12 aWnbv°v tIm¿∏tdjs‚

cPnkvt{SUv Hm^okmb Xncph\¥]pcsØ IhSnbm¿ sIÃ¨ tdmUnep≈

sI.Fkv.sF.Un.kn sI´nSØn¬ Xmsg∏dbp∂ Imcy]cn]mSn A\pkcn®p \S°p∂XmsW∂

hnhcw CXn\m¬ Adnbn®psIm≈p∂p.

km[mcW Imcy]cn]mSnIƒ

1. UbdIvS¿amcpsS dnt∏m¿ v́, HmUn‰¿amcpsS dnt∏m¿ v́, kn.B‚ v F.Pn bpsS ]cma¿ißƒ,

2019 am¿®v 31 se _m°n]{Xw, AtX XobXnbnehkm\n® h¿jsØ em`\jvS°W°pIƒ,

Iymjv̂ vtfm F∂nh kzoIcn°pIbpw, ]cnKWn°pIbpw, AwKoIcn°pIbpw sNøpI.

2. 2018˛19 h¿jsØ em`hoXw {]Jym]n°pI.

3. Iw]vt{Smf¿ B‚ v BUn‰v P\d¬ Hm^v C≥Uy \nban®v Iº\nbpsS Ãm‰yq´dn

BUn‰¿°p≈ {]Xn^ew \nPs∏SpØp∂Xn\v t_m¿Uv Hm^v UbdIvtSgvkns\

NpaXes∏SpØnbn´p≠v.

Cu kmlNcyØn¬ NphsS sImSpØncn°p∂ {]tabw bp‡amsW∂p ]cnKWn®v A\p

tbmPyamb am‰ßƒ hcpØntbm, hcpØmsXtbm Hcp km[mcW {]tabambn ]mkm°mhp

∂XmWv.

Iº\okv BIvSv 2013 sk£≥ 142 (1) se hyhÿIƒ ]men®psIm≠v Iº\nbpsS t_m¿Uv

Hm v̂ UbdIvtSgvkn\v Iw]vt{Smf¿ B‚ v BUn‰v P\d¬ Hm v̂ C≥Uy B\pImenIambn

\nban°p∂ Ãm‰yq´dn BUnt‰gvkn\p≈ {]Xn^ew \n›bn°phm\p≈ A[nImcw CXphgn

A\phZn®n´p≠v.

t_m¿Uns‚ DØchp {]Imcw

(H∏v)

sI. kptcjv Ipam¿

Iº\n sk{I´dn & Un.Pn.Fw

(Corporate Affairs)

Ipdn∏v
1. tbmKØn¬ ]s¶Sp°m\pw thm´p sNøm\pw A¿lXbp≈ AwKØn\v X\n°p ]Icw tbmKØn¬

kw_‘n°p∂Xn\pw thm´p sNøp∂Xn\pw, ]Ic°mcs\ \ntbmKn°m≥ A¿lXbp≠mbncn°p
∂XmWv. C{]Imcw \ntbmKn°s∏Sp∂bmƒ AwKambns°m≈Wsa∂n√.

]Ic°mcs\ \ntbmKn°p∂Xn\v CtXmsSm∏w \¬Inbncn°p∂ t{]mIvkn t^mdw ]qcn∏n®v, ap{Z
]Xn®v, H∏p tcJs∏SpØn tbmKØn\p 48 aWn°q¿ apºmbn Iº\nbpsS cPntÃ¿Uv Hm^okn¬
ka¿∏nt°≠XmWv.

2. Iº\okv BIvSv 2013 se sk£≥ 139 (5) {]Imcw Kh¨sa‚ v DSaÿXbnep≈ Iº\nIfnse
Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿amsc \nban°p∂Xv Iw]vt{Smf¿ B‚ v BUn‰v P\d¬ Hm^v C≥UybmWv
(kn & F Pn). Iº\okv BIvSv 2013 se sk£≥ 142 (1) {]Imcw BUn‰¿amcpsS {]
Xn^ew Iº\nbpsS B\ph¬ P\d¬ ao‰nßpIfntem kam\amb B\ph¬ P\d¬
ao‰nßpIfntem h®v Iº\n°v Xocpam\n°mhp∂XmWv. Imem\pkrXambn Ãm‰yq´dn BUn‰¿
am¿°p≈ {]Xn^eØn¬ Bhiyamb am‰ßƒ hcpØWsa¶n¬ AXv UbdIvS¿ t_m¿Uv
saº¿amcpsS apºmsI ka¿∏nt°≠XmWv.

tIcf kwÿm\ hyh-kmb hnI-k\ tIm¿∏-td-j≥ enan-‰Uv

Xncph\¥]pcw

16˛09˛2019
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BOARDS  REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 58thAnnual Report together with the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
             ( . in lakhs)

Sl. No Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-03-2019 31-03-2018

1 Revenue from operations 4137.58 4014.71
2 Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 212.96 -

under amortised cost
3 Other Income 1388.66 1351.33
4 Gross Income 5739.21 5366.05
5 Personnel, Administrative Expenses etc., 1439.92 1577.14
6 Depreciation 34.39 375.58
7 Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments - 3036.00

under amortised cost
8 Prior period item - -0.45
9 Profit before tax and provisions 4264.90 376.88

10 Taxes and provisions (Current Tax & Deferred Tax) 883.95 876.55
11 Profit after Tax 3380.95 -499.67
12 Other Comprehensive Income/loss with tax -10527.46 11572.86

impact thereon
13 Total Comprehensive Income/loss for the year -7146.51 11073.19
14 Transfer to Special Reserve under Sec.36 (1) 246.88 220.28

(vii) of Income Tax Act
15 Transfer to Provsion for bad and doubtful debts under 113.81 94.37

Sec.36 (1) (viia) of Income Tax Act
16 Transfer to Statutory reserve under Sec 451C of RBI act 676.19 -
17 Proposed Dividend - 175.00
18 Tax on Dividend - 30.28
19 Balance profit carried to General Reserve -8388.66 10547.91

Company Performance

During the year 2018-19, KSIDC’s revenue from operations and other income amounted to
 5739.21 lakhs. The profit before tax for the year stood at  4264.90 lakhs as compared to
 376.88 lakhs in 2017-18. After  providing for tax of   883.95 lakhs as against  876.55  in

2017-18, the profit after tax for the year stood at  3380.95 lakhs as against  -499.67 lakhs during
the previous year.

Your Corporation has also provided Seed Fund assistance to 8 start-up companies for their
creative ideas/innovations and creating enterprise. The total amount sanctioned under this scheme
was  1,63,00,000/-
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t_m¿Uv dnt∏m¿ v́

     Iº\nbpsS 58˛maXp hm¿jnI dnt∏m¿´pw, 2019 am¿®v 31 \v Ahkm\n® h¿jsØ HmUn‰p

sNbvX IW°pIfpw AhXcn∏n°p∂Xn¬ \nßfpsS UbdIvS¿am¿°v XnI™ kt¥mjap≠v.

kmº-ØnI ^e-ßƒ

(XpI e£-Øn¬)

{Ia hkvXp-ÿn-Xn-Iƒ 31.03.2019 ¬ 31.03.2018 ¬

\º¿ Ah-km-\n® h¿jw Ah-km-\n®h¿jw

1 {]h¿Ø\ßfn¬ \n∂p≈ hcpam\w 4137.58 4014.71
2 [\Imcy D]IcWßfpsS Xncn®dnb¬ hcpam\hpw

]eni\nc°v F∂nh  212.96 -
3 a‰p hcpam\w 1388.66 1351.33
4 samØ hcpam\w 5739.21 5366.05
5 DtZymKÿ`cW \n¿hlWs®ehpIƒ 1439.92 1577.14
6 tXbvam\s®ehv 34.39 375.58
7 [\Imcy D]IcWßfpsS Xncn®dnbn¬

\jvSw ]eni \nc°v F∂nh - 3036.00
8 ap≥Ime C\ßƒ - -0.45
9 \nIpXnIƒ°pw, s{]mhnj\pIƒ°pw apºp≈ em`w 4264.90 376.88
10 \nIpXnIƒ°pw, s{]mhnj\pIfpw

(Ct∏mgsØ \nIpXnbpw, am‰nhbv°s∏´ \nIpXnbpw) 883.95 876.55
11 \nIpXn Ign®tijap≈ em`w 3380.95 -499.67
12 a‰v ka{K hcpam\w / \nIpXn BLmXw aqew \jvSw -10527.46 11572.86
13 a‰v ka{K hcpam\w / hm¿jnI \jvSw -7146.51 11073.19
14 BZmb\nIpXn \nbaØnse 36 (i) (viii) hIp∏v {]Imcw

\o°nh® {]tXyI IcpX¬ [\w 246.88 220.28
15 BZmb\nIpXn \nbaØnse 36 (i) (viiia) (F) hIp∏v

{]Imcw In´m°SØns‚bpw A\n›nX ISØns‚bpw
t]cn¬ t]cn¬ \o°nh® IcpX¬ [\w 113.81 94.37

16 B¿ _n sF BIvSnse 451 kn hIp∏p {]Imcw ssIam‰w
sNbvX \nbam\pkrX IcpX¬ [\w 676.19 -

17 \n¿±njvS em`hoXw - 175.00
18 em` hnlnXØnt∑ep≈ \nIpXn - 30.28
19 s]mXpIcpX¬ [\Ønte°p \o°n h® em` _m°n 8388.66 10547.91

Iº\nbpsS {]h¿Ø\^ew

2018 -̨19 h¿jØn¬ sI. Fkv. sF. Un. kn. bpsS {]h¿Ø\ßfn¬ \n∂pw a‰p am¿§ßfn¬
\n∂pap≈ hcpam\w 5739.21 e£w cq]bmIp∂p.  \nIpXn Iogn°p∂Xn\v apºp≈ em`w 2017-18 ¬
376.88 e£w cq]bmbncp∂psh¶n¬ B  ÿm\Øv Cs°m√w AXv 4264.90 e£w cq]bmWv.  2017-18 ¬
\nIpXnIfpw t{]mhnj\pIfpw 883.95 e£w cq] Ingn® tijap≈ em`w 876.55 e£w cq]bmbn
cps∂¶n¬ Cs°m√w B  ÿm\Øv  3380.95  e£w cq] \nIpXnIfpw t{]mhnj\pIfpw Ign®n´p≈
em`w  -499.67 e£w cq] bmIp∂p.

\nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ F v́ Ãm¿ v́ A∏v  Iº\nIƒ°v AhcpsS ]pXnb Bibßfn¬ \n∂pw
\qX\amb kwcw`ßƒ sI´n∏Sp°p∂Xn te°mbn koUv ^≠v AknÃ≥kv \evIpIbp≠mbn.  Cu
]≤Xn {]Imcw tIm¿∏tdj≥ A\phZn® BsI XpI 1,63,00,000/˛ cq]bmWv.-

tIcf kwÿm\ hyh-kmb hnI-k\ tIm¿∏-td-j≥ enan-‰Uv
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Sanction of loans were made after completing the required due diligence and the disbursements
were started after the project monitoring committee completed its inspection processes.
Professionally qualified officers have been put in place to ensure proper monitoring of projects.
Your Corporation also continues to spearhead the Single Window Clearance Board constituted by
the Government of Kerala for giving clearances to new project proposals.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Corporation has been taking initiative under Corporate Social Responsibility well before
it has been prescribed under Companies Act 2013.  The Corporation has a well-defined policy on
Corporate Social Responsibility, pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The said
policy is posted on the website of the Company www.ksidc.org.

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility
activities of the Company is given in Annexure 1 to this report.

Extract of Annual Return

As per Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 the extract of Annual Return is given on website
of the Company , www.ksidc.org

Nominee Directors

Your corporation appoints Nominee directors on the Boards of assisted companies. The
Nominee Directors endeavour to play a proactive role in the development of professional
management and formulation of proper corporate policies and strategies to improve the performance
and Corporate Governance of the assisted companies.  The feedback reports received from Nominee
Directors act as a useful tool for credit monitoring and performance review of the assisted units.

Fixed Deposits:

Your Corporation has not accepted any public deposit within the meaning of the provisions
of Section 2 (59) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit by
Companies) Rules, 2014, and as such no amount of principal or interest are outstanding as on the
balance sheet date.

Human Resource

Your Corporation has always believed that human resource is critical and continues to work
for its development.  The functions of different personnel were aligned to company’s business
objectives and senior officers have been put in strategic positions to augment business growth.

Particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and expenditure.

Your Corporation has no manufacturing activity. However, it has taken adequate steps to
conserve energy and now utilizing solar power at its office premises.
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F√m \S]Sn{Iaßfpw IrXyambn ]men®psIm≠mWv hmbv]Iƒ A\phZn®n´p≈Xv. hmbv]
hnXcWw sNøp∂Xn\v ap≥]mbn ]≤Xn AhtemI\w sNøm≥ \nbp‡amb kanXn ]cntim[\
Isf√mw ]q¿Ønbm°nsb∂v Dd∏v hcpØnbncp∂p.  ]≤XnIƒ icnbmb hn[Øn¬ AhtemI\w
sNøps∂∂v  Dd∏v hcpØm\mbn s{]m^jW¬ tbmKyX t\Snb DtZymKÿsc \ntbmKn®n´p≠v.
]pXnb ]≤Xn \n¿t±ißƒ°v A\paXn \evIp∂Xn\mbn tIcf k¿°m¿ cq]h¬°cn® GI PmeI
kanXnbpsS tkh\w {]tbmP\s∏SpØp∂ coXn \nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ XpS¿∂p t]mcp∂p.

kmaqlnI {]Xn⁄m_≤X

2013 se Iº\n \nbaw A\pimkn°p∂Xn\v apºv Xs∂ \nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ kmaqlnI
{]Xn⁄m_≤X F∂ \nebn¬ ]≤XnIƒ Bhnjv°cn®v \S∏nem°n hcnIbmWv. 2013 se Iº\n
F∂ \nebn¬ Iº\okv BIvSns‚ sk£≥ 135 {]Imchpw 2014 se Iº\okv (tIm¿∏td‰v tkmjy¬
sdkvt]m¨kn_nen‰n t]mfnkn) A\pimkn°p∂Xv t]msebpw hy‡hpw.

2013 se Iº\okv BIvSns‚ sk£≥ 135 se hyhÿIƒ°pw 2014 se Iº\okv (tIm¿∏td‰v
tkmjy¬ sdkvt]m¨kn_nen‰n t]mfnkn) \nbaßƒ°pw A\pkrXambpw Iº\nbpsS kmaqlnI
{]Xn⁄m_≤X {]h¿Ø\ßƒ kw_‘n® hm¿jnI dnt∏m¿´v Cu dnt∏m¿´ns‚ A\p_‘w 1
Bbn \¬Inbncn°p∂p.

hm¿jnIhcpam\Øns‚ kw£n]vXw

Iº\n t`ZKXn \nbaw 2017 A\pimkn°p∂ {]Imcw tIm¿∏tdjs‚ hm¿jnI hcpam\Øns‚
kw£n]vXhcpam\w Iº\nbpsS sh_vssk‰mb www.ksidc.org. sImSpØn´p≠v.

t\man\n UbdŒ¿am¿

\nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ [\klmbw \evIp∂ Iº\nIfpsS UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Un¬
sI.Fkv.sF.Un.kn.  UbdŒ¿amsc t\mant\‰v sNbvXp hcp∂p.  [\klmbw \evIs∏´ Iº\nIfpsS
{]h¿Ø\ßƒ sa®s∏SpØp∂Xnepw icnbmb \b]cn]mSnIƒ Bhnjv°cn°p∂ Xnepw  t\man\n
UbdŒ¿am¿ {InbmflIamb ]¶v hln®p hcp∂p≠v.  Iº\nbpsS {]h¿Ø\w \nc¥cw
\nco£n®psIm≠ncn°p∂Xn\pw  hniIe\w sNøp∂Xn\pw t\man\n UbdŒ¿am¿ \evIp∂
dnt∏m¿´pIƒ  klmbn°p∂p.

ÿnc \nt£]ßƒ

2013 se Iº\n \nbaØnse 2(59) (G) hIp∏v {]Imctam, s]mXpP\ßfn¬ \n∂p Iº\nIƒ
\nt£]w kzoIcn°p∂Xp kw_‘n® 2014 se Iº\okv (acceptance of  deposit) dqƒkv
{]Imctam \nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ s]mXp\nt£]ßƒ kzoIcn®n´n√.  C°mcWØm¬ _m°n
]{Xw Xømdm°nb XobXnbn¬ apXtem ]enitbm sImSpØp Xo¿t°≠Xmbn Ahtijn°p∂n√.

a\pjy hn`htijn

Iº\nbpsS hf¿®bn¬ a\pjy hn`htijn \n¿ÆmbI ]¶p hln°p∂ps≠∂pw, AXns‚
hnIk\ Øn\p th≠n {]h¿Øn®p sIm≠ncn°p∂ps≠∂pw  \nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ hnizkn®p
hcp∂p. Iº\nbpsS {]h¿Ø\ e£yßƒ km£m¬°cn°pIsb∂ e£ytØmsSbmWv hnhn[
hn`mKß fnep≈ DtZymKÿ¿ {]h¿ Øn°p∂Xv.  _nkn\ ns‚ hf¿® XzcnXs∏SpØp∂Xn\mbn
D∂X t{iWn bnep≈  DtZymKÿsc X{¥ {][m\ ÿm\ßfn¬ \ntbmKn®ncn°p∂p.

Du¿PP kwc£Ww, kmt¶XnIhnZy B¿÷n°¬, hntZi\mWy kw`cWhpw, hn\ntbmKhpw
XpSßnb Imcyßƒ

\nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdj≥ \n¿ΩmW {]h¿Ø\ßfn¬ G¿s∏´n´n√. F∂m¬ Du¿÷
kwc£WØn\mhiyamb \S]SnIƒ kzoIcn°pIbpw. Hm^oknepw, ]cnkcØpw kutcm¿÷w
{]tbmP\s∏SpØpIbpw sNøp∂p.

tIcf kwÿm\ hyh-kmb hnI-k\ tIm¿∏-td-j≥ enan-‰Uv
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Share Capital

The investment of the Government of Kerala in the equity of the company as at 31March
2019 was  301.24Crores.

Details of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Details of Board of Directors:

1) Dr. Christy Fernandez IAS (Retd)-Chairman(w.e.f 20.09.16)

2) Dr. K. Ellangovan IAS (w.e.f 27.02.2018)

3) Dr. M. Beena IAS (upto 14-09-2018)

4) Dr.Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS (upto  27-06-2019))

5) Shri. Sanjay M Kaul IAS (upto 22-11-2019)

6) Shri. Sanjeev Kaushik IAS(w.e.f 05.08.2019)

7) Shri. E.S. Jose (w.e.f 16.06.2017)

Details of Key Managerial Personnel :

1) Dr. M. Beena IAS - Managing Director (upto 14-09-2018)

2) Shri. Sanjay Kaul IAS - Managing Director (upto 22-11-2019)

3) Dr. Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS (upto 27-06-2019)

4) Shri. M G Rajamanickam IAS (w.e.f  22-11-2019)

5) Shri. K. Suresh Kumar–Company Secretary &DGM (Legal&CA)

Board of Directors

a) Composition

The Board of Directors comprises of the Chairman, Managing Director and Directors nominated
by the Government of Kerala.

b) Meeting of the Board of Directors

During the year the Board of Directors of your Corporation met 4 times on 31.05.2018,
27.09.2018, 22.12.2018 & 05.03.2019. The Company Secretary & DGM (Legal &Corporate Affairs)
circulates the Agenda and Notes in advance to all the Directors.  The minutes of the meeting are
prepared immediately after each meeting and circulated to all the Directors.

c) Information to the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has complete access to the information within the Corporation which
includes:-

• Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditure plans

• Result of operations of operating divisions and business segments.
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Hmlcn aqe[\w

2019 am¿®v  31 -XobXnbnse IW°\pkcn®v tIm¿∏tdjs‚ Hmlcn aqe[\Øn¬ tIcf
k¿°mcns‚ apX¬ apS°v 301.24 tImSn cq]bmWv.

UbdŒ¿am¿, a¿Ω {][m\ ÿm\ßƒ hln°p∂ DtZymKÿ¿ F∂nhsc kmw_‘n®
hnhcßƒ

UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv AwKßsf kw_‘n® hnhcßƒ :

1. tUm. {InÃn s^¿Æm≠kv IAS (dn´tb¿Uv)-sNb¿am≥ 20.09.2016 apX¬)

2. tUm. sI. Cft¶mh≥ IAS  (27.02.2018 apX¬)

3. tUm. Fw. _o\ IAS (14.09.2018 hsc)

4. tUm.j¿Ωnftacn tPmk v̂ IAS amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿(27.06.2019 hsc)

5. {io. kRvPbv Fw sIuƒ IAS amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿ (22.11.2019 hsc)

6. {io kRvPohv sIuinIv IAS (05.08.2019 apX¬)

7. {io. C.Fkv. tPmkv (16.06.2017 apX¬)

a¿Ω {][m\ ÿm\ßfnep≈ DtZymKÿ¿

1. tUm. Fw. _o\   IAS  amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿ (14.09.2018 hsc)

2. {io. kRvPbv Iuƒ  IAS  amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿ (22.11.2019 hsc)

3. tUm. j¿Ωnf tacn tPmk v̂ IAS  amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿ (27.06.2019 hsc)

4. {io. Fw.Pn. cmPamWnIyw IAS  amt\PnwKv UbdŒ¿ (22.11.2019 apX¬)

5. {io. sI. kptcjvIpam¿ Iº\n sk{I´dn & sU]yq´n P\d¬ amt\P¿
(eoK¬ & tIm¿∏td‰v A^tbgvkv)

UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv

(F)  LS\

sNb¿am\pw, amt\PnwKv UbdŒdpw tIcf k¿°m¿ t\mant\‰v sNøp∂ UbdŒ¿amcpw
Dƒs∏Sp∂XmWv UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv.

(_n) UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv ao‰nßpIƒ

\S∏p h¿jØn¬ 31.05.2018, 27.09.2018, 22.12.2018, 05.03.2019 F∂o XobXnIfnembn \mep XhW
\nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdjs‚ UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv ktΩfn°pIbp≠mbn. Iº\n sk{I´dn & sU]yq´n
P\d¬ amt\P¿ (tIm¿∏td‰v A^tbgvkv) AP≠ t\m´pIƒ F√m UbdŒ¿ am¿°pw ap≥Iqdmbn
Ab®psImSp°p∂p. Hmtcm t_m¿Uv ao‰nßpw Ign™mepS≥ Xs∂ AXns‚ an\n‰vkv Xømdm°n
UbdŒ¿am¿°v Ab®psImSp°p∂p.

(kn) UbdŒ¿amcpsS Adnhnte°v

tIm¿∏tdjs\ kw_‘n® kºq¿Æ hnhcßƒ UbdŒ¿ am¿°v e`yamWv.  Chbn¬
Xmsg∏dbp∂ hnhcßƒ Dƒs∏Sp∂p.

• hm¿jnI dh\yq _UvP‰pw aqe[\s®ehv kmw_‘n® Bkq{XWßfpw

• Hm∏td‰nßv Unhnjs‚bpw _nkn\ v hn`mKØns‚bpw {]h¿Ø\^eßƒ
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• Financing plans of the Corporation.

• Minutes of Meeting of Sub-Committees of the Board

• Developments in respect of Human Resources

• Compliance or Non- compliance of any Regulatory/Statutory guidelines

d) Board Committees

The Board currently has 5 Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

3. Executive committee

4. Sub-committee for Seed Fund Assistance

5. Sub Committee for Non-Performing Assets.

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning and co-opting the members of the
Committees. The Committees meet periodically and take decisions as per the mandate of the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee

1. Shri. Sanjeev Kaushik, IAS           : Chairman

2. Dr. K Ellangovan, IAS                  : Member

3. Shri. E S Jose                                : Member.

4. Shri. Sanjay Kaul, IAS                   : Invitee.

e)    Members of the CSR Committee

1. Dr.M Beena IAS : Chairperson

2. Dr.Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS : Member

g) Members of the Sub- Committee for Seed Fund Assistance

 1. Dr. Christy Fernandez IAS (Retd.):   Chairman

 2. Dr. M Beena IAS :    Member

f) Members of the Sub- Committee for Non-Performing Assets

1. Dr. M Beena IAS                           : Chairperson

2. E S Jose, Director                          : Member

The Board of the Corporation placed on record their appreciation of the invaluable services
rendered by Dr. M Beena IAS during her tenure as Director on the Board of the Corporation.

The Internal control Systems & their adequacy

As part of the internal control systems, a comprehensive and well documented system of
Internal Audit is in place in your Corporation. The Internal Audit Reports along with implementation
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• tIm¿∏tdjs‚ kmºØnI Bkq{XWw

• t_m¿Uns‚ D]kanXn tbmK Xocpam\ßƒ

• a\pjy hn`htijnbnse ]ptcmKXn

hyhÿm]nXtam \nbam\pkrXtam Bb am¿§ \n¿t±iI XXzßƒ ]men°s∏SpItbm

]men°s∏SmXncn°pItbm sNøp∂Xp kmw_‘n® hnhcßƒ

(Un)  t_m¿Uns‚ D] kanXnIƒ

UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Un\v A©v D]kanXnIfp≠v.

1. HmUn‰v IΩn‰n

2. tIm¿∏td‰v tkmjy¬ sdkvt]m¨kn_nen‰n IΩn‰n

3. FIvknIyq´ohv IΩn‰n

4. koUv ^≠v AknÃ≥kn\p≈ k_v IΩn‰n

5. t\m¨ t]¿t^m¿anßv Ak‰n\p≈ k_v IΩn‰n

D]kanXnIƒ cq]h¬°cn°p∂Xn\pw AXnse AwKßsf \ma \n¿t±iw sNøp∂Xn\pw Ah¿°v

NpaXeIƒ Gev]n®p sImSp°p∂Xn\pap≈ DØchmZnXzw UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Un\mWv.  D]kanXnIƒ

\n›nX Imebfhn¬ ktΩfn°pIbpw UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uns‚ hnjb \n¿t±ißƒ°v A\pkrXambn

Iº\n \nbaw A\pimkn°p∂Xpw tIcf k¿°m¿ \n¿ t±in°p∂Xpamb kwKXnIƒ ]men®p sIm≠v

Xocpam\ßƒ ssIsIm≈pIbpw sNøp∂p.

1. HmUn‰v IΩn‰n AwKßƒ

1. {io. kRvPohv sIuinIv sF.F.Fkv sNb¿am≥

2. tUm. sI. Cft¶mh≥ sF.F.Fkv saº¿

3. {io. C. Fkv. tPmkv saº¿

4. {io. kRvPbv sIuƒ sF.F.Fkv £WnXmhv

2. CSR IΩn‰n AwKßƒ

1.  tUm. Fw _o\ sF.F.Fkv sNb¿t]gvk¨

2.  tUm. j¿Ωnf tacn tPmk v̂ saº¿

3. koUv ^≠v AknÃ≥kn\p≈ k_v IΩn‰n AwKßƒ

1. tUm. {InÃn s^¿Æm≠kv sF.F.Fkv (dn´tb¿Uv) -̨  sNb¿am≥

2. tUm. Fw _o\ sF.F.Fkv saº¿

4. t\m¨ t]¿t^m¿anßv Ak‰n\p≈ k_v IΩn‰n AwKßƒ

1. tUm. Fw _o\ sF.F.Fkv sNb¿ t]gvk¨

2. {io. C. Fkv.tPmkv, UbdŒ¿ saº¿

tUm. Fw _o\ sF.F.Fkv.tIm¿∏tdjs‚ UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv saºdmbncp∂ ImeL´Øn¬

sNbvX hneaXn°m\mhmØ tkh\ßƒ°v t_m¿Uv {]tXyIw A`n\μ\w tcJs∏SpØn.

B`y¥c \nb{¥W kwhn[m\hpw AhbpsS ]cym]vXXbpw

B`y¥c \nb{¥W kwhn[m\ßfpsS `mKsa∂ \nebn¬ ka{Khpw Imcy£ahpamb Hcp
B`y¥c HmUn‰v kwhn[m\w \nßfpsS tIm¿∏ tdj\n¬ \ne\nev°p∂p≠v.  AhtemI\w sNøs∏´
Imebfhn¬ B`y¥c HmUn‰ns‚ hym]vXnbpw Dt±iyhpw UbdŒ¿amcpsS HmUn‰v IΩn‰n hnebncp
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and recommendations contained therein are constantly reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Board and placed before the Board for its information.

As mandated by the Government of Kerala, your Corporation has appointed Shri
G.Unnikrishnan (General Manager ic (HR &Admn) )as Vigilance Officer. During the year, there
were no instance of any vigilance case either against the Corporation or its officials.

There were no instances of non-compliances of any matter related to statutory issues during
the financial year under review.

Statutory Auditors

The Comptroller and Auditor General have appointed M/s. Ranjit Karthikeyan Associates,
Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors for the Year 2019-2020.

The firm verified the records, obtained explanations, wherever necessary, and finalized the
audit work in a reasonable time frame.  The report of the Statutory Auditors is placed as part of this
Report

Report of the Accountant General (Economic and Revenue Sector Audit)

The Accountant General (Economic & Revenue Sector Audit), Thiruvananthapuram, vide
their Audit report dated 16th November 2019conveyed under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013, have issued comments on the Accounts for the year 2018-19. A copy of the same is
placed as part of this Report together with the reply in the form of an Addendum to the Board’s
Report.

Related Party Transactions

No Related Party Transaction as defined under Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2015 was undertaken by the
Corporation during the F.Y 2018-19.

Directors Responsibility Statement

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to the comments of
the Statutory Auditors and the Accountant General (E&RSA), Kerala your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards with proper
explanation relating to material departures if any;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of your Corporation at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
your Corporation for that period.

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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ØpIbp≠mbn.  B`y¥c HmUn‰v kw_‘n®  dnt∏m¿´pIfpw AhtbmsSm∏ap≈ ip]m¿i Ifpw
AhbpsS \SØn∏pw HmUn‰v IΩn‰n \nc¥cw hnebncpØpIbpw UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv apºmsI ka¿∏n

°pIbpw sNøp∂p≠v.

tIcf k¿°m¿ A\pimkn°p∂ {]Imcw {io. Pn. DÆnIrjvWs\ (P\d¬ amt\P¿ i/c

(HR&ADMN)  tIm¿∏tdj≥ hnPne≥kv Hm^okdmbn \ntbmKn®n´p≠v.  \S∏p h¿jw

tIm¿∏tdjs\Xnsctbm AXnse DtZymKÿ¿s°Xnsctbm hnPne≥kv tIkpIƒ D≠mbn´n√.

Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿am¿

Nm¿t´Uv As°u≠≥‰pamcmb satkgvkv c÷nØv Im¿Øn-tI-b≥ Atkmkntb‰vkv s\

2019 -̨20 kmºØnI h¿jØnse Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿amcmbn I¨t{Smf¿ B≥dv HmUn‰¿ P\d¬ \nban

®ncn°p∂p.

tcJIƒ ]cntim[n®pw Bhiyamb kμ¿`ßfn¬ hoiZoIcWßƒ tXSnbpw, \ymbamb

Imebfhn\p≈n¬ Ah¿ HmUn‰v ]q¿Ønbm°pIbp≠mbn.  Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿amcpsS dnt∏m¿´v

hm¿jnI dnt∏m¿´ns‚ `mKambn \evInbncn°p∂p.  Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿amcpsS ]cma¿ißƒ°p≈

adp]Snbpw hniZoIcWßfpw A\p_‘ambn tN¿Øncn°p∂p.

A°u≠‚ v P\dens‚ (C°tWmanIv B‚ v dh\yq skŒ¿ HmUn‰v) dnt∏m¿ v́

2013 se Iº\n \nbaw sk£≥ 143 (6) (_n) {]Imcw As°u≠‚ v P\dens‚ (C°tWmanIv

B‚ v dh\yq skŒ¿ HmUn‰v) 16.11.2019 se BUn‰v dnt∏m¿ v́ aptJ\ 2018 -̨19 kmºØnI h¿jØnse

A°u≠vkns\  kw_‘n® ]cma¿ißfpw Ahbv°p≈ t_m¿Uns‚ adp]Snbpw hniZoIcWßfpw

A\p_‘ambn DƒsIm≈n®ncn°p∂p.

A\p_‘ Icm¿ CS]mSpIƒ

2013 se Iº\n \nbaw sk£≥ 188, 2015 se Iº\n (t_m¿Uv ao‰nßpIfpw AXns‚

A[nImcßfpw) hyhÿIƒ Chbn¬ \n¿hNn®ncn°p∂ hn[Ønep≈ CS]mSpIsfm∂pw 2018-˛19

kmºØnI h¿jØn¬ tIm¿∏tdj≥ \SØnbn´n√.

UbdŒ¿amcpsS DØchmZnXzw kw_‘n® {]kvXmh\

2013 se Iº\n \nbaw 134 (5) hIp∏v {]Imcw Ãm‰yq´dn HmUn‰¿amcptSbpw tIcf A°u≠‚ v

P\den (E&RSA) t‚bpw A`n{]mbØn\p hnt[bambn, \nßfpsS UbdŒ¿am¿ Xmsg∏dbp∂ hkvXp

XIƒ ÿncoIcn®psIm≈p∂p.

F) hm¿jnI hchv sNehv IW°m°p∂Xn¬ hkvXpXm ]camb hyXnbm\ßƒ kw`hn®n´p

s≠¶n¬ Ahbv°v aXnbmb hniZoIcWßƒ \¬IpIbpw icnbmb A°u≠nwKv am\Zfißƒ

]men°pIbpw sNbvXncn°p∂p.

_n) icnbmb As°u≠nßv am\Zfißƒ Ahew_n°pIbpw Ah {]mtbmKnIambn ]n¥pScpIbpw

bp‡nklhpw hnthI]q¿Δhpamb \nKaßfnseØnt®cpIbpw  sNøpI hgn 31.03.2019 ¬

Ahkm\n® kmºØnI h¿jsØ tIm¿∏tdjs‚ Ip‰a‰Xpw \njv]£hpamb  Nn{Xhpw em`

\„IW°pIfpsS bYm¿∞\nebpw AhXcn∏n°m≥ km[n®n´p≠v.

kn)  tIm¿∏tdj‚ vsd BkvXnIƒ kwc£n°pIbpw Ir{Xnaßtfm {Iat°SpItfm \S∂n´ps≠¶n¬

Ah Is≠Øn Hgnhm°pIbpw sNøp∂Xn\mbn 2013 se Iº\n \nba{]Imcw aXnbmb

A°u≠nßv tcJIfpw {]amWßfpw kq£n°p∂Xn¬ tIm¿∏tdj≥ Pm{KX ]pe¿Øn

bncn°p∂p.
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d) These Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by your Company and
that such internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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Un) apt∂m´v t]mIp∂ Iº\nsb∂ \nebv°mWv tIm¿∏tdjs‚ A°u≠pIƒ

Xømdm°nbncn°p∂Xv.

C) \nßfpsS Iº\n ]n¥pStc≠ B`y¥c kmºØnI \nb{¥Wßƒ {]tbmKnIhpw

^e{]Zhpambn {]h¿Øn°p∂p.

F^v) _m[Iamb \nba hyhÿIƒ F√mw Xs∂ ]men°p∂ps≠∂v Dd∏v hcpØp∂Xn\v

UbdŒ¿am¿ DNnXamb kwhn[m\w Bkq{XWw sNøpIbpw, Ah aXnbmbXpw

Imcy£ahpamsW∂v Dd∏m°pIbpw sNbvXn´p≠v.

IrX⁄X

tIcf k¿°mcns‚ hyhkmb hIp∏v, CXc hIp∏pIƒ, tI{μ k¿°m¿, dnk¿Δv _m¶v Hm v̂

C≥Uy, a‰v A[nImcnIƒ XpSßnbh¿ \¬Int∏mcp∂ klIcWØn\pw, am¿§ \o¿t±ißƒ°pw

\nßfpsS tIm¿∏tdjs‚ UbdŒ¿ t_m¿Uv IrX⁄X {]Imin∏n®psIm≈p∂p. hntZi \nt£

]Icn¬ \n∂p XpS¿®bmbn e`n®p sIm≠ncn°p∂ klIcWØn¬ UbdŒ¿am¿ IrXm¿∞cmWv.

_m¶pIƒ, [\Imcyÿm]\ßƒ, Hmlcn DSaIƒ, am[yaßƒ F∂nh \evIn hcp∂

]n¥pWbv°v UbdŒ¿am¿ \μn {]Imin∏n°p∂p.

XnI™ Bflm¿∞XtbmSpw A¿∏W at\m`mhtØmsSbpw tkh\w \SØn hcp∂ F√m

Xeßfnepap≈ Hm^ok¿amscbpw Poh\°msc bpw \nßfpsS UbdŒ¿am¿ A`n\μn°p∂p.

(H∏v)

tUm. {InÃn s^¿Æm≠kv sF.F.Fkv (dn´tb¿Uv)

sNb¿am≥

XobXn : 1 19.03.2020
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ADDENDUM  TO THE BOARDS REPORT 2018-19

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

  Sl No Auditors Comment Management Reply

COMMENTS ON PROFITABILITY
Statement of Profit and Loss

Total Comprehensive Income /(loss)
for the year Rs -7146.51 Lakhs. This
is understated by a net value of Rs
86.94Lakhs on account of: As per
the Acturial Valuation Report as at
31.3.2019 in respect of Leave
Encashment Plan there was a Total
Re-Measurement Gain of Rs 48.60
lakhs. Non recognition of this has
resulted in overstatement of Total
Comprehensive Loss by Rs 48.60
lakh with corresponding under-
statement of Retained Earnings

Non recognition of impairment loss
as required under Ind As 36 on
software component (Rs 48.01
lakhs) and non-write off of the value
of hardware procured Rs (87.53
lakhs) in 2012-13 for ERP
implementation has resulted in
overstatement of Profit for the year
from Continuing Operations by Rs
135.54 lakhs with corresponding
understatement of Total Compre-
hensive Loss and overstatement of
Capital Work in Progress

A

1.

In the framework for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards it is stated that “ an asset is recognised in the
Balancesheet when it is probable that the future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value
that can be measured reliably”

Accounting of total remeasurement gain in OCI for Rs
23,65,552 leads to a creation of net defined benefit assets
from which probability of future economic benefit cannot be
substantiated.KSIDC even under earlier Indian GAAP was not
recognising actuarial gains on leave encashment plan in the
Statement of Profit and Loss although as per AS 15 gain has to
be routed through Profit and Loss Account. But whatever
deficit arose in the actuarial valuation has been provided in
the accounts as prudent policy followed by the Corporation.
This is a conservative policy followed all along by KSIDC.

The leave encashment plan is funded through a separate Trust
authored by KSIDC, beneficiaries being employees. As such
any gain over and above the liabilities at any given point of
time is not recognised in the books of KSIDC as the
investments are made and accounted in a separate Trust.
Moreover, the liabilities will be higher once the pending Pay
revision is implemented with retrospective effect for which
Govt approval was awaited at the time of approval of annual
accounts. The approval has been received subsequently and
is under implementation.

Major expense towards implementation of ERP was Rs 87.53
lakhs towards purchase of computer hardware and it is not an
intangible asset. Hence test as mentioned in para 10 of IND
AS 36 will not apply in this situation. The hardware and
software together are the integral part of the ERP system which
has been shown as Capital Work in Progress. There is no
impairment recognised at present for the assets purchased as
alternate use of ERP system is being explored.

2.
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COMMENTS ON DISCLOSURE

Government of Kerala notified (19
February 2018) the Common
wealth Trust Kozhikkode
(Acquisition) and Transfer Act
2012(Act of 2018) by which the
assets and liabilities of
Commonwealth Trust (India)
Limited were transferred to
KSIDC. The Company has
assessed the liability on takeover
of the land to Government/KSIDC
as Rs 5000 lakhs even though the
Company could not take over the
assets of Commonwealth
Trust(India) Limited as the High
Court has temporarily stayed the
acquisition of the properties
under the Act. These facts have
not been disclosed in the notes on
accounts

OTHER COMMENTS

Indian Accounting Standard(Ind
AS)101 First –time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards
Paragraph 21 stipulates that an
entity’s first Ind AS financial
statements shall include at least
three Balance Sheet, two
statements  of profit and loss, two
statements of cash flows and two

The Common Wealth Trust, Kozhikode (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertaking) Act, 2012 is an Act to provide for the acquisition
and transfer of the Handloom Weaving Factory, Mananchira,
Kozhikode, a  unit of the Commonwealth Trust  (India) Limited
and the right, title and interest of the owners in respect of the
said undertaking with a view to reorganising and rehabilitating
the undertaking and to establish an industrial museum and
production centre under KSIDC and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto. However, KSIDC has not taken
the acquisition of The Common Wealth Trust, Kozhikode due
to the following reasons:

1) There exists a dispute over the land.  The properties
mentioned in the Schedule 3 of the Act have to be
transferred to KSIDC. But out of a total of 3.84 Acres of
land, Company alienated 2.08 Acres of land before the
passing of Act.

2) In this connection, 3 writ petitions (the present owners of
the property)were filed before the Kerala High Court and
the Act cannot be implemented due to the interim order
of the High Court. The High Court has temporarily stayed
the acquisition of the properties under the Act. Therefore,
the government or KSIDC has not been able to proceed
with the compliance of the Act.

3) It may also be noted that the Government have not issued
the Gazette Notification yet for implementing the Act.

4) The Government shall also appoint “Commissioner of
Payments” for settling the owners and other liabilities.

Since the government or KSIDC has not been able to proceed
with the compliance of the Act, Contingent liability is not
disclosed in the books of KSIDC. This has been situation in the
last year also and since there is no change in the status of the
case, no contingent liability has been ascertained so far.

In the first-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, the
transitional entries are adjusted in the opening equity, loans and
investments as on 01.4.2017 itself. First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards had not affected the cash balance of the
Corporation and therefore the original cash flow for the year
2017-18 remains unchanged. KSIDC has not prepared the
comparative statement of cashflow for the year ended 31.3.2018
separately as it is already available in the Annual Report 2018.

B

3

C

4
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statements of change in equity
and related notes, including
comparative information for all
statements presented. The
Company, however,has not
complied with the above
requirement as the Company has
prepared Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended 31 March 2019
only

Annexure XIV of the Master
Direction–Non Banking
Financial Company-Syste-
matically  Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions,2016
stipulates indicative list of
Balancesheet Disclosure for non-
deposit taking NBFCs with Asset
Size Rs 50,000 lakhs and above
and deposit taking NVFCs. As
per the Master Direction the
following Disclosures which
were to be made as part of
Balancesheet of an NBFC has not
been disclosed by the Company
(i) Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items
Assets and Liabilities (3.5),
(ii)Exposure to Capital Market
(3.6.2),(iii) Concentration of
Advances (5.3.2), (iv)
Concentration of Exposures
(5.3.3), (v) Concentration  of
NPAs (5.3.4),(vi) Sector –wise
NPAs (5.3.5), (vii) Movement of
NPAs(5.4) and Customer
Complaints(6.1)

It was confirmed to the C&AG that the original cash flow statement
for the year 2017-18 will also be provided for comparison in the
printed version of Annual Report 2019.

Specific disclosures as commend  were not made separately as
such in the notes, since details are available in Notes to accounts,
particularly in note no 5 and 6. It may be noted that KSIDC has
not availed any loan and not taking deposit from public and
therefore Asset Liability Management& Maturity pattern is not
applicable to KSIDC.

KSIDC has not provided any loans and advances against
securities/shares, pledge or otherwise,and hence Exposure to
Capital Market is not applicable. Loans given by KSIDC is subject
to maximum of Rs 35 crores per borrower and is widely spread to
various sectors I and therefore concentration of advances and
concentration of exposure is not applicable to the Company. Till
2017-18, the master directions of RBI were not applicable to KSIDC
as it is a government owned NBFC. However, the withdrawal of
exemptions was notified in May 2018 and it is the first Balance
Sheet of KSIDC with all applicable requirements of Maser
directions. The Balance Sheet is drawn as per provisions of
Companies Act 2013 with applicable Indian Accounting
Standards and all relevant disclosures were made appropriately
in the Notes to Accounts. The specific disclosures as commented,
even if it is not applicable, will be shown separately from the next
Annual Report onwards.

5
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ADDENDUM  TO THE BOARDS REPORT 2018-19

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

 Sl No Auditors Comment Management Reply

COMMENTS ON PROFITABILITY

Statement of Profit and Loss

Total Comprehensive Income /
(loss) for the year Rs -7146.51
Lakhs

This is understated by a net value
of Rs 86.94Lakhs on account of:

As per the Acturial Valuation
Report as at 31.3.2019 in respect
of Leave Encashment Plan there
was a Total Re-Measurement Gain
of Rs 48.60 lakhs. Non recognition
of this has resulted in over
statement of Total Comprehensive
Loss by Rs 48.60 lakh with
corresponding understatement of
Retained Earnings

Non recognition of impairment
loss as required under Ind As 36
on software component (Rs 48.01
lakhs) and non-write off of the
value of hardware procured Rs
(87.53 lakhs) in 2012-13 for ERP
implementation has resulted in
overstatement of Profit for the year
from Continuing Operations by Rs
135.54 lakhs with corresponding
understatement of Total
Comprehensive Loss and
overstatement  of Capital Work in
Progress

5

A

1

In the framework for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards it is
stated that “ an asset is recognised in the Balancesheet when it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably”

Accounting of total remeasurement gain in OCI for Rs 23,65,552
leads to a creation of net defined benefit assets from which
probability of future economic benefit cannot be
substantiated.KSIDC even under earlier Indian GAAP was not
recognising actuarial gains on leave encashment plan in the
Statement of Profit and Loss although as per AS 15 gain has to be
routed through Profit and Loss Account. But whatever deficit
arose in the actuarial valuation has been provided in the accounts
as prudent policy followed by the Corporation. This is a
conservative policy followed all along by KSIDC.

The leave encashment plan is funded through a separate Trust
authored by KSIDC, beneficiaries being employees. As such any
gain over and above the liabilities at any given point of time is
not recognised in the books of KSIDC as the investments are
made and accounted in a separate Trust. Moreover, the liabilities
will be higher once the pending Pay revision is implemented
with retrospective effect for which Govt approval was awaited at
the time of approval of annual accounts. The approval has been
received subsequently and is under implementation.

Major expense towards implementation of ERP was Rs 87.53
lakhs towards purchase of computer hardware and it is not an
intangible asset. Hence test as mentioned in para 10 of IND AS
36 will not apply in this situation. The hardware and software
together are the integral part of the ERP system which has been
shown as Capital Work in Progress. There is no impairment
recognised at present for the assets purchased as alternate use of
ERP system is being explored.

2
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COMMENTS ON DISCLOSURE

Government of Kerala notified
(19 February 2018) the Common
wealth Trust Kozhikkode
(Acquisition) and Transfer Act
2012(Act of 2018) by which the
assets and liabilities of
Commonwealth Trust (Inda)
Limited were transferred to
KSIDC. The Company has
assessed the liability on takeover
of the land to Government/KSIDC
as Rs 5000 lakhs even though the
Company could not take over the
assets of Commonwealth
Trust(India) Limited as the High
Court has temporarily stayed the
acquisition of the properties
under the Act. These facts have
not been disclosed in the notes
on accounts

OTHER COMMENTS

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS)101 First –time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards
Paragraph 21 stipulates that an
entity’s first Ind AS financial
statements shall include at least
three Balance Sheet,two
statements of profit and loss, two
statements of cash flows and two
statements of change in equity and
related notes, including
comparative information for all
statements presented. The
Company,however, has not

The Common Wealth Trust, Kozhikode (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertaking) Act, 2012 is an Act to provide for the acquisition
and transfer of the Handloom Weaving Factory, Mananchira,
Kozhikode, a  unit of the Commonwealth Trust  (India) Limited
and the right, title and interest of the owners in respect of the said
undertaking with a view to reorganising and rehabilitating the
undertaking and to establish an industrial museum and
production centre under KSIDC and for matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto. However, KSIDC has not taken
the acquisition of The Common Wealth Trust, Kozhikode due to
the following reasons:

1) There exists a dispute over the land.  The properties
mentioned in the Schedule 3 of the Act have to be
transferred to KSIDC. But out of a total of 3.84 Acres of
land, Company alienated 2.08 Acres of land before the
passing of Act.

2) In this connection, 3 writ petitions (the present owners of
the property)were filed before the Kerala High Court and
the Act cannot be implemented due to the interim order of
the High Court. The High Court has temporarily stayed
the acquisition of the properties under the Act. Therefore
the government or KSIDC has not been able to proceed
with the compliance of the Act.

3) It may also be noted that the Government have not issued
the Gazette Notification yet for implementing the Act.

4) The Government shall also appoint “Commissioner of
Payments” for settling the owners and other liabilities.

Since the government or KSIDC has not been able to proceed
with the compliance of the Act, Contingent liability is not
disclosed in the books of KSIDC. This has been situation in the
last year also and since there is no change in the status of the
case, no contingent liability has been ascertained so far.

In the first-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, the
transitional entries are adjusted in the opening equity, loans and
investments as on 01.4.2017 itself. First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards had not affected the cash balance of the
Corporation and therefore the original cash flow for the year
2017-18 remains unchanged. KSIDC has not prepared the
comparative statement of cashflow for the year ended 31.3.2018
separately as it is already available in the Annual Report 2018. It
was confirmed to the C&AG that the original cash flow statement
for the year 2017-18 will also be provided for comparison in the
printed version of Annual Report 2019.

B

1

C

4
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complied with the above
requirement as the Company has
prepared Cash Flow Statement for
the year ended 31 March 2019 only

Annexure XIV of the Master
Direction –Non Banking
Financial Company-Systemati-
cally Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions,2016 stipulates
indicative list of Balancesheet
Disclosure for non-deposit taking
NBFCs with Asset Size Rs 50,000
lakhs and above and deposit
taking NVFCs. As per the Master
Direction the following
Disclosures which were to be
made as part of Balancesheet of
an NBFC has not been disclosed
by the Company(i) Asset
Liability Management Maturity
pattern of certain items Assets and
Liabilities(3.5),(ii)Exposure to
Capital Market(3.6.2),(iii)
Concentration of Advances
(5.3.2),(iv) Concentration of
Exposures (5.3.3),(v) Concentra-
tion of NPAs(5.3.4) ,(vi) Sector –
wise NPAs(5.3.5),(vii) Move-
ment of NPAs(5.4) and Customer
Complaints(6.1)

The Company has included the
share of profit from Joint Ventures
and Associates amounting to Rs
256.77 lakhs under the head
Other Comprehensive Income.
This was not in compliance with
the IND AS 28

Specific disclosures as commended  were not made separately as
such in the notes, since details are available in Notes to accounts,
particularly in note no 5 and 6. It may be noted that KSIDC has not
availed any loan and not taking deposit from public and therefore
Asset Liability Management & Maturity pattern is not applicable
to KSIDC.

KSIDC has not provided any loans and advances against securities/
shares, pledge or otherwise, and hence Exposure to Capital Market
is not applicable. Loans given by KSIDC is subject to maximum
of Rs 35 crores per borrower and is widely spread to various sectors,]
and therefore concentration of advances and concentration of
exposure is not applicable to the Company. Till 2017-18, the
master directions of RBI were not applicable to KSIDC as it is a
government owned NBFC. However, the withdrawal of exemptions
was notified in May 2018 and it is the first Balance Sheet of KSIDC
with all applicable requirements of Maser directions. The Balance
Sheet is drawn as per provisions of Companies Act 2013 with
applicable Indian Accounting Standards and all relevant
disclosures were made appropriately in the Notes to Accounts.
The specific disclosures as commented, even if it is not applicable,
will be shown separately from the next Annual Report onwards.

The investor’s share of the investee’s profit or loss is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss account and the investor’s share of
investee’s other comprehensive income is to be recognised in the
investor’s other comprehensive income. However, due to
inadvertent interpretation of the IND AS 28, KSIDC disclosed the
full Profit/Loss and Other Comprehensive Income/Loss arising
out of its Associates/joint ventures under Other Comprehensive
Income. Since the entire income has been recognised in the
consolidated statement, the reported total comprehensive income
as well as Balance sheet were not affected. Further, the business of
Associates/Joint Ventures have no direct impact over the NBFC
business of KSIDC and consolidated statements are prepared for
statutory purposes. It was confirmed to C&AG that the segregation
of statement of profit and other comprehensive income arising out
of Associates/Joint Ventures will be shown separately as required
under IND AS 28 from next accounting year onwards.

5
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ANNEXURE 1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects of programmes
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programmes:

The CSR initiatives of KSIDC are based on activities relating to promoting education, health
care and sanitation.

The projects undertaken during the Financial Year 2018-19 were within the broad framework
of Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of the CSR policy and projects or programs undertaken by the Company are available
on the website of the Company at http://www.ksidc.org/documents/CSR.pdf.

2. The composition of the CSR committee: The Company has constituted a CSR Committee of
the Board, consisting of Dr. Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS and Shri. Sanjay Kaul IAS. The
constitution is in line with the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Dr. Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS is the Chairman of the Committee.

3. Average Net Profit of the Corporation for the preceding three financial years was  3132
lakhs.

4. Prescribed Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (2% of the amount as initem 3 above)
for 2018-19, total amount is  62.64 lakhs.

5. Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Amount spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount spent for the Financial Year :  60.67 lakhs

b) Amount unspent, if any  :  1.97 lakhs

c) Manner in which amount spent during the Financial Year is detailed below:
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A\p_‘w˛1

kmaqlnI{]Xn⁄m_≤Xm {]h¿Ø\ßƒ kw_‘n®  hm¿jnI dnt∏m¿ v́

1. kmaqlnI {]Xn⁄m_≤XbpsS (Corporate Social Responsibility - CSR)  ASnÿm\Øn¬

Gs‰Sp°pItbm, Gs‰Sp°m\pt±in°pItbm sNøp∂ ]≤XnIfpsStbm, ]cn]mSnIfpsStbm

hnlK ho£Whpw, CSR \bhpw, ]cn]mSnIfpw kw_‘n® sh_v en¶pw

Dƒs∏SpØnsIm≠p≈  Iº\nbpsS  kmaqlnI {]XnPRm_≤Xm \bØns‚

Hcp kw£n]vX -cq]tcJ.

sI.Fkv.sF.Un.kn.bpsS {]Xn⁄m_≤ ]≤XnIƒ  hnZym`ymkw, BtcmKy]cn]me\w,

s]mXpP\mtcmKy kwc£Ww  F∂o hnjbßfne[njvTnXamb ]cn]mSnIfmWv.

2018˛2019 ¬ Gs‰SpØ ]≤XnIƒ 2013 se Iº\nkv BŒns‚ 7˛asØ sjUyqfns‚

N´°qSn\p≈n¬ hcp∂XmWv.

CSR  \bØns‚  `mKambn  Iº\n  Gs‰SpØ ]≤XnIfpsSbpw  ]cn]mSnIfpsSbpw

hniZmwißƒ  sI.Fkv.sF.Un.kn.bpsS  sh_v ssk‰mb http://www.ksidc.org/documents/
CSR.pdf.¬ e`yam°nbn´p≠v.

2. CSR IΩn‰nbpsS LS\:

UbdIvS¿ t_m¿Uns‚ D]kanXn F∂ \nebn¬ tUm. j¿Ωnf tacn tPmk v̂ sF.F.Fkv.

{io. kRvPbv sIuƒ sF.F.Fkv F∂o UbdIvS¿amcpƒs°m≈p∂ Hcp CSR IΩn‰n

cq]hXvIcn®n´p≠v. 2013 se Iº\okv BIvSns‚ sk£≥ 135 (1) A\pkcn®mWv Cu IΩn‰n

cq]hXvIcn®ncn°p∂Xv. tUm. j¿Ωnf tacn tPmk v̂ Cu IΩn‰nbpsS

sNb¿t]gvk¨ BIp∂p.

3. tIm¿∏tdjs‚ Ign™ aq∂v h¿jsØ icmicn A‰em`w 3132 e£w cq] BIp∂p.

4. \n¿±njvS CSR sNehv (apIfn¬ (3) ¬ ]d™ncn°p∂ XpIbpsS 2 iXam\w) 2018 ˛19 ¬

samØw kmaqlnI {]Xn⁄m_≤X ]≤XnXpI 62.64 e£w cq].

5. \S∏v kmºØnI h¿jØn¬ CSR ]≤XnIƒ°v sNehgn® XpIbpsS hniZmwißƒ Xmsg

sImSp°p∂p.

(F) \S∏pkmºØnI h¿jØn¬ CSR ]≤XnIƒ°v samØw XpI : 60.67 e£w cq]

(_n) sNehgn°s∏SmsX InS°p∂ XpI : 1.97 e£w cq]

(kn) \S∏p kmºØnI h¿jØn¬  sNehgn® XpIbpsS hniZmwißƒ

XmsgsImSp°p∂p.
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Annexure 1
AMOUNT SPENT FOR CSR ACTIVITIES

Sl. CSR project/ Sector in Project or Amount   Amount spent    Amount Total
No activity which the Programme outlay on the project    spent: (Rs.

identified      project is         1. Local area  (budget)  or   programme   Direct or
covered or others or such heads  through

                             2. Specify the     programme  1. Direct   imple-
State, District, wise expenditure   menting

where the project on project or     agency
 or programme programme

was  undertaken 2. Overheads

  01. Free education Promoting All over 7,32,000 Direct 7,32,000 7,32,000

to to girl child Education Expenses

 02. CM Disaster Disaster All over 41,60,430 Direct 41,60,430 41,60,430
Relief Fund eradication Kerala Expenses
(okhi)

 03. Kerala Feder- All over 105,000 Direct 105,000 105,000
of the  Blind Kerala Expenses

 04. Ambedkar Distribution Ernakulam  39,000 Direct  39,000  39,000
District level of Onam  Expenses
Charitable Kits
Soceity

 05 Cherry tours Flood All over 10,957 Direct 10,957` 10,957
and Travels Relief Kerala  Expenses
Flood Relief

 06 Constructing Promoting Thrissur 10,20,000 Direct 10,20,000 10,20,000
5 toilets in Sanitary Expendes
St.Mary's Facilities
School

TOTAL                        60,67,387

1. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board
Report :-
An amount of   1.97 lakhs was unspent during the year under review.  Since suitable eligible projects
within the CSR funds available could be not identified, the unspent balance has been carried forward for
the year 2019-20.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with CSR
objectives and policy of the Company.

Sd/-
                                                                                               Dr. Christy Fernandez, IAS (Ret)- Chairman

                                                                                                    Chairperson, CSR Committe
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{Ia

\w

sXcs™Sp

°s∏´ CSR
]≤Xn

{]h¿Ø\w

  ]≤Xn

\S∏m°p∂

taJe

]≤Xn/]cn]mSn
1. {]mtZinItam

a‰p≈htbm
2. ]≤Xn

\S∏m°nb
Pn√ /

kwÿm\w

]≤Xn/
hn\ntbmKw

(_P‰v)AYhm
Hmtcm

]≤Xn°pap≈
sNehv

]≤Xn°v
sNehgn® XpI

AXXp
slUn¬

1. ]≤Xnt°m
]cn]mSnt°m

t\cn´p
sNehgn®Xv

2. Hmh¿
slUvkv

sNehgn® XpI
t\cnt´m

\S∏m°p∂
GP≥kn

aptJ\tbm

BsI XpI

1. Ign™ aq∂p kmºØnI h¿jØnse icmicn A‰em`Øns‚ 2 iXam\w hcp∂
XpItbm AXns‚ Hcp ̀ mKtam Iº\n°p sNehgn°m\mImsX h∂n´ps≠¶n¬ Aßs\
kw`hn°m\p≠mb ImcWw Iº\n t_m¿Uv dnt∏m¿´n¬ ImWnt°≠XmWv.

AhtemI\w sNøp∂ h¿jw 1.97 e£w cq]sNehgn°m\mbn´n√. e`yamb CSR ^≠v
sIm≠v A¿lhpw DNnXhpamb ]≤XnIƒ Is≠Øm≥ Ign™n´n√. sNehgn°m≥
IgnbmXncp∂ {]kvXpX XpI 2019˛20 h¿jtØ°v \o°n h®ncn°p∂p.

CSR \bØns‚ \SØn∏pw \nco£Whpw Iº\nbpsS CSR \bØn\pw Dt±iye£yßƒ
°\pkrXamsW∂v Rßƒ km£ys∏SpØns°m≈p∂p.

H∏v,
tUm. {InÃn s^¿Wm≠kv sF.F.Fkv (dn´) sNb¿am≥

sNb¿t]¿k¨ CSR IΩn‰n
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KRISHNAN  RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation  Ltd,

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the  accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of  Kerala State
Industrial Development Corporation Limited ("The Company"),  which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes  In Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, including the Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and other Explanatory Information (Ind AS Financial Statement)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind As Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013, (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2019, and its Profit including Other Comprehensive Income,  Changes in Equity and
its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. The comparative financial information of the company for the year ended 31-03-2018 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at 01-04-2017 included in these Ind AS financial
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statements are based on the previoulsy issued Standalone Financial Statements of the company,
prepared in accordance with the Company's (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, audited
by us for the year ended 31-03-2018 and 31-03-2017 as per our Independent Auditor's
Report dated 10-10-2018 and 02-09-2017 respectively, which expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles adopted by the company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by
us,

2. In the case of unquoted equity shares, valuation is arrived at the weighted average of values
arrived at the following three methods

a. Net worth based on percentage of investment
b. Interest Capitalization method and
c. Three years average future profits method

Under the Net worth method valuation, the 'Percentage of shareholding' is calculated by
'dividing the cost of shares to KSIDC by the total equity share value of the investee company'
rather than dividing the 'number of shares held by KSIDC by the total number of the investee
company.

However, this method of valuation has been consistently followed.

3. KSIDC is a nodal agency of Government of Kerala for implementation of various projects.
The income, expenditure, assets and liabilities in respect of these projects are not accounted
as income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the company. The transactions are routed
through current accounts and the net of the transactions is reflected under 'Other nonfinancial
liabilities' and 'Other non financial assets'. Accrual system of accounting has not been followed
in respect of the transactions for the projects.

4. Note No. 4 regarding non incorporation of Assets and Liabilities of Kerala Construction
Components Ltd in the Books of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed th matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Re
Key Audit Matters

a) Computation of provision towards
impairment of loan assets (refer note no,
5 of the accompanying Financial
Statements)

As at 31.03.2019, the Company had
reported total impairment allowance  of Rs.
17,653,29 lakhs (31 March 2018-Rs.
17,866.25 lakhs)

A significant degree of judgement is required
to determine the timing and amount of
impairment loss allowance to be recognized
with respect to loan assets. Based on our
risk assessment, the following are the
significant judgements and estimates that
impact Impairment loss allowance.

• Completeness and timing of recognition
of default, in accordance with the
prudential norms on Income
Recognition, Asset Classification, and
provisioning pertaining to Loan Assets.

• Measurement of provision depdendent
on the Probability of Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD) of each
category of loan asset, identification of
PD and LGD involves significant
judgements and estimates related to
forward  looking information.

Since the identification of NPAs and
providing for Impairment loss allowance
requires significant level of estimation and
given its significance to the overall audit,
we have ascertained the computation of
provision towards impairment of loan assets
as a key audit matter.

(b) Implementation of Ind As

The Company was required to move from
the Indian GAAP to Ind AS from 1st April
2018, with the effective date of transition

How our Audit Addressed the KeyAudit Matter

The Audit Procedures performed, among
others, included

Considering the Companies policies and
process for NPA identification and
provisioning and assessing compliances the
RBI norms,

Understanding, evaluating and testing the
design and effectiveness of key controls
around identification of impaired accounts.

Performing other procedures including
substantive audit procedures covering the
identification of NPAs such as:

• Reading Account Statements and
related information of the borrowers on
sample basis.

• Performing inquiries with Project
department to ascertain if there were
indicators of stress or an occurrence of
an event to default in a  particular loan
account or any product category which
needed to be considered as NPA.

• Holding discussions with management
on sectors where there is perceived
credit risk and the steps taken to mitigate
the risk to identified sectors.

Tested on sample basis the calculation
performed by the management for
impairment loss allowance and the
realization value of assets provided as
security against loans classified as non-
performing for computing the impariment
Loss Allowance.

-Verifying if the Impairment Loss
Allowance computed as per ECL norms
satisfying the minimum provision
requirement as per RBI regulations.

The Audit procedures performed among
others, included;

-Ensuring reference to relevant Indian
Accounting Standards with respect to the
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being 1 st April, 2017. This had substantially
changed the financial reporting framework
and accounting treatment for some of the
Key Financial Information, including
restating of corresponding previous year
figures.

Following are the Key changes;

1. Interest income and interest expenses
is recognized using effective interest
rate method, while in previous GAAP,
it was recognized as per the Principles
of Accounting Standard No.9 and
relevant RBI regulations.

2. Application of expected credit loss
method to assess the impairment on
financial instruments.

3. Fair valuation of financial instruments.

completeness and accuracy of the
adjustments identified by the management

- Reviewing Internal Financial Controls,
around the information used for arriving at
the Ind AS adjustments and verification of
the base data used for Ind AS adjustments.

-Re computation of journal entries made
to the Indian GAAP figure to give effect of
Ind AS.

Key Observation/finding

Based on the above procedures performed
we concluded that there are no material
misstatements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the information. The other information
comprises the information included in the audit report, but does not include the Financial Statements
and our Audit Report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our repsonsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in during so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The  Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind As
Financial Statements that give  a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
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generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going  concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative  but do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or i
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also.

• Identify and assess the risks of material mistatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risks of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant  to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3) (i) of the Companies
Ac, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obntained, wheather a material uncertainly exists related to
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events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to contitnue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures and whether the Standlone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
tranactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
the aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowlegeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and the evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
defiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (''the Order'') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A' a statement on the matters specified a paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss  (including Other Comprehensive
Income) the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2019  taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

g. Matters required to be reported as per the directive issued by C&AG u/s 143(5) of the
Companies Act is given separately in "Annexure C".

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements- Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

   (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

Thiruvananthapuram Partner

16-11-2019 Membership No. 024791
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in  paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement'
of our report of even date to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the KERALA STATE
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2019.

1) In respect of the Company's Fixed Assets

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets of the corporation have been physically verified by the Management
as certified and no material discrepancies between the book records and the  physical
fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) Management has certified that all the title deeds are in the name of the company.
However the title deed of Trivandrum Office property is not available.

2) From the examination of books of accounts and explanantion provided to us, the corporation
has no inventory during the year under audit.

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to
the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities
carried on by the company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Goods on Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31,
2019 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

KRISHNAN  RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,  duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax outstanding on account of any dispute except as disclosed in Note No. 31.

Rs. in lakhs

Income Tax AY 2006-07 298.98

Income Tax AY 2008-09 8.38

Income Tax AY 2009-10 11.93

Income Tax AY 2010-11 218.2

Income Tax AY 2011-12 9.99

Income Tax AY 2012-13 9.84

Income Tax AY 2013-14 10.33

Income Tax AY 2014-15 16.18

Income Tax AY 2015-16 13.09

Income Tax Ay 2016-17 15.81

Service Tax 200.00

Total 812.73

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has neither taken any
loan from financial institutions nor issued any debentures.

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given  by
the management, the company has not raised moneys  and term Loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the Management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Managerial remunaraion has been paid or provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act;

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the standalone
Financial Statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
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the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16) The company has been registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

   (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

Thiruvananthapuram Partner

16-11-2019 Membership No. 024791
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KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under  Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of KERALA STATE
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED (the company) as of March 31,
2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on ''the internal control over financial reporting criteria Established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India". These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors,  the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI  prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operaing effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) provide reasonable assuranace that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent  limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our  information and according to the explanations given to us the
Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the "Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India'.

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

   (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

Thiruvananthapuram Partner

16-11-2019 Membership No. 024791
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KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

"ANNEXURE  C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we give a statement on the compliance to the Directions
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the Accounts of Kerala State Industrial
Developement Corporation Limited for the year 2018-19.

Particulars-General

Whether the  Company has  system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system ? If yes, the implications
of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implica-
tions, if any, may be stated.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/ interrest etc. made by a lender
to the company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be stated.

Whether funds received/receivable for
specific schemes from Central/State agencies
were properly accounted for/utilized as per
its term and conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

Whether the Company has complied with the
directions issued by RBI for

Non-Banking Finance Companies
(NBFCs):
Classification of non-performing
assets:
And Captial adequacy norms for
NBFCs:

Observations

Compnay has a system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system,

No Such cases

Cash systm of accounting has been followed by
the Company for accounting grants from
Government for execution of projects. The grant
receivable if any is not accounted in the books.
The fund received for specific schemes were
properly accounted in the books. Execution of the
projects in delayed in respect of some projects.

Yes

              Particulars-Finance Sector Observations
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Whether the Company has a system to ensure
that loans were secured by adequate security
free from encumbrances and have first charge
on the mortgaged assets. Further instances of
undue delay in disposal of seized units may be
reported.

Whether introduction of any scheme for
settlement of dues and extensions thereto
complied with policy guidelines of Company
Government

Comment on  the Confirmation of balances of
Trade receivables, Trade payables. Term
deposits, Bank accounts and Cash obtained

Whether the bank guarantees have been
revalidated in time

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

   (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

Thiruvananthapuram Partner

16-11-2019 Membership No. 024791

Corporation has a system to ensure that loans
are secured by adequate security free from
encumbrances and to have first charge on the
mortgaged assets. However the corporation
had, on a directive from Govt. of Kerala
sanctioned a temporary unsecured loan of Rs.
100 lakhs to Malappuram Cancer Centre and
Research Institute and Rs. 1050 lakhs to Kerala
State Textiles Corporation. Further, seed fund
outstanding balance of Rs. 987.39 lakhs from
budding entrepreneures and Special Financial
Assistance of Rs. 50.99 lakhs sanctioned to
Women Entrepreneurs are also unsecured.
There are no seized units with the Corporation.

Yes

Confirmation in respect of Advances and
Liabilities not obtained.

Not Applicable
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KSIDC
2018-19

Pending Litigation

Sl. No. Year
No. of

cases Pending

1 1993 2

2 1994 0

3 1995 1

4 1996 1

5 1997 4

6 1998 3

7 1999 1

8 2000 1

9 2001 1

10 2002 0

11 2003 5

12 2004 1

13 2005 9

14 2006 4

15 2007 3

16 2008 9

17 2009 2

18 2010 4

19 2011 10

20 2012 13

21 2013 16

22 2014 16

23 2015 19

24 2016 22

25 2017 33

26 2018 17

27 2019 33

Total 230
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2019

Particulars Notes As at    As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018  01.04.2017

I ASSETS
1 Financial Assets

a Cash and cash equivalents 2 2004.68 4322.01 13215.23
b Bank balances other than above 3 19370.04 15130.71 11666.97
d Receivables 4

   (i) Trade Receivable
   (ii) Other Receivable 228.01 207.67 223.95

e Loans 5 21234.24 20445.73  21,414.30
f Investments 6 44420.87 61317.33  43,531.40
g Other financial assets 7 1616.65 1743.31 1244.75

Sub-Total 88874.49 103166.76 91296.60
2 Non Financial Assets

a Inventories
b Current tax assets (net) 8 1770.41 6842.97 6041.08
c Deferred Tax (net)
d Property Plant & Equipment 9 351.92 350.84 364.82
e Capital work in progress 10 135.54 135.54 135.54
f Other intangible Assets 9 8.01 1.86 2.55
g Other non financial assets 11 74.32 377.92 810.95

Sub-Total 2340.20 7709.13 7354.95
TOTAL  ASSETS 91214.69 110875.89 98651.55

II EQUITY  AND  LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES

1 Financial liabilities
a Derivative financial instruments
b Payables 12

(i)Trade Payable
(a) total outstanding to MSME 0.00 0.00 0
(b) total outstanding  to other  creditors 58.61 92.85 109.49

(ii) Other  Payable
(a) total outstanding to MSME
(b) total outstanding  to other  creditors 101.56 40.37 89.23

c Borrowings (other than debt securities) 0.00 0.00 2600.00
d Other financial Liabilities

Sub-Total 160.17 133.22 2798.72
2 Non Financial liabilities

a Provisions 13 3590.79 9054.46 8352.31
b Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 15231.15 20644.65 14361.82
c Other non financial liabilities 15 1860.79 3317.39 6233.65

Sub Total 20682.73 33016.49 28947.78
EQUITY

a Equity share capital 16 30124.35 30124.35 30124.35
b Other equity 17 40247.44 47601.82 36780.69

Sub-Total 70371.79 77726.17 66905.04

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 91214.69 110875.89 98651.55
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

Rs. in lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Annexure to our report of even date

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

     (FRN 001536S)
Sd/-

A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR
 Partner (M.N.024791)

  16-11-2019

Thiruvananthapuram
                27-09-2019
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2019

For the Year ended  For the Year ended
           Particulars Notes  31-3-2019            31-3-2018

Rs. in lakhs

I Revenue from Operations
i Interest Income 18 2822.46 3027.63
ii Dividend Income 19 1315.12 987.08
iii Rental Income 0.00 0.00
iv Fee and commission Income 20 0.00 0.00
v Net gain on fair value change 0.00 0.00
vi Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 25 212.96 0.00

under amortised cost
vii Others

I Total Revenue from Operation 4350.55 4014.72
II Other Income 21 1388.66 1351.33
III Total Income ( I + II ) 5739.21 5366.05
IV Expenses

i Finance Cost 22 0.00 0.00
ii Fee and commission Expenses 0.00 0.00
iii Net loss on fair value changes 0.00 0.00
iv Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments 25 0.00 3036.00

under amortised cost
v Impairment of financial instrument 0.00 0.00
vi Employee Benefit Expenses 23 889.78 1028.75
vii Depreciation, amortization and impairment 24 34.39 375.58
viii Other Expenses 26 550.14 548.39

Total Expenses 1474.31 4988.72
V Profit before exceptional  items and tax (III-IV) 4264.90 377.33
VI Exceptional items 27 -0.45
VII Profit before Tax (V-VI) 4264.90 377.33
VIII Tax expenses

1)  Current Tax 28 674.83 699.33
2)  Deferred Tax 14 209.12 177.23
Total Tax Expenses 883.95 876.55

IX Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 3380.95 -499.67
X Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (OCI)

(A)   (i)   Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
-   Remeasurement gain/(loss)on defined benefit plan -9.80 0.00
-   Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments through OCI -16128.33 17697.67
      (ii) Income tax impact thereon 5610.67 -6124.81
(B)   (i)   Item that will  be reclassified to profit and loss

  (ii)   Income tax impact thereon
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes -10527.46 11572.86

XI XI Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (IX-X) -7146.51 11073.19
XII XII Earning per equity share 29

    (1) Basic - Continuing Operations Rs 112.23 -16.59
    (2) Diluted - Continuing Operations Rs 112.23 -16.59

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board

 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Annexure to our report of even date
For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
     (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

 Partner (M.N.024791)
 2019

Thiruvananthapuram
   .2019
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31.03.2019 31.03.2018

A Profit Before Tax-and-extra-ordinary-items 4264.90 377.33
Add: Depreciation on Fixed Assets 34.39 36.30

Diminution in Value of Investment 339.27
(profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets 0.03 0.14

Less Unwinding Income charged in P& L a/c 98.71 88.26
Operating Profit before changes in Operating Assets 4200.61 664.78

Adjustment for Change in  Operating Assets

(Increase )/Decrease in Loans & Advances (800.46) 968.57
(Increase )/Decrease in Receivables (20.33) 16.28
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 126.66 (498.56)
(Increase )/Decrease in Current Tax 5073.17 (801.89)
(Increase )/Decrease in other  Advances (0.25) 0.00
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets Assets 303.6 (433.03)
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Liabilities & Provisions (5466.76) 702.15
Increase /(Decrease ) in Payables 26.94 (65.50)
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Other Non financial Liability (1456.93) (2916.26)
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Other financial Liability (2600.00)

Changes In operating assets and liabilities (2214.36) (5628.23)

Income Tax Paid ( Net of Refund) 650.00 (844.27)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 1336.25 (5807.72)

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of (Net of sale) of  Fixed Assets (41.68) (21.76)
Addition on Capital Work in Progress- Various Projects 0.00 0.00
(Increase) /Decrease  in  Share investments 835.30 400.00
Cash Flow from Investing Activities 793.62 378.24

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase in Equity Capital 0.00 0.00
Increase in Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Bad Debts Writeoff (2.59) 0.00
Dividend and Tax Thereon (205.28) 0.00
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (207.87) 0.00
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1922.00 (5429.48)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the Beginning 19452.72 24882.20
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the End 21374.72 19452.72

Rs. in Lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Annexure to our report of even date

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

     (FRN 001536S)
Sd/-

A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR
 Partner (M.N.024791)

16-11-2019

Thiruvananthapuram
   27-09-2019

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2019
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    NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Corporate Information

Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation Limited is a company incorporated in India
under the provisions of  the Companies’ Act, 1956.  Formed in 1961 with the objective of promoting,
stimulating, financing and facilitating the development of large and medium scale industries in
Kerala, KSIDC acts as a promotional agency involved in catalysing the development of physical
and social infrastructure required for constant growth of industry in the State.KSIDC also acts
as a nodal agency for implementation of various projects of Government of Kerala. It is  a Public
Financial Institution within the meaning of Sec 2 clause 72  of the Companies Act , 2013and is
also registered as a Non -Banking Financial Company  under Sec 45- IA of the RBI Act,1934.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a   Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared  in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard   (referred
as “Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 . These financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2019 are the first financials with comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. For all previous
periods including the year ended 31st March, 2018, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under companies (Accounting
Standard) Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (referred to as
‘Previous GAAP’) used for statutory reporting requirement

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2017
being the date of transition to Ind AS.

b   Basis of Preparation and presentation of financial statements

Preparation and presentation of financials statements has been done  as per the format prescribed
under Division III of schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, for Non - Banking Financial Companies
(NBFC) that required to comply with Ind AS . However, previous year figures are regrouped
and recasted, wherever necessary.These financial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting polices below. All amounts
disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs in
compliance with Schedule III of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

c   Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of  assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,
at the date of this financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for
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the year presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

d   Property, plant and equipment

On adoption to Ind As, the Corporation had applied for the one time transition exemption of
considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2017 as the deemed cost as
permitted by Ind AS 101 ‘First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation less
accumulated impairment, if any. The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight,
duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management.Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross
value only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset and cost can be measured
reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged  at the rates  prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies
Act 2013. Prorata depreciation has been charges in respect of assets acquired/ disposed off
during the year.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows-

Asset Class Useful LifeBuildings 60 YearsElectrical Fittings 10 YearsFurniture & Fittings 10 YearsWater Tank& Pump Set 10 YearsOffice Equipments 5 YearsComputer 3 YearsSolar Based power Systems 15 YearsIntangibles 3 YearsMotor Car & Cycles 8 Years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in financial Statements at residual value. The
useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Change in expected useful lives are treated as
change in accounting estimates.Depreciation is not recorded on capital work in progress until construction
and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use
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e Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making
the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Intangible assets
purchased are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment if
any.Amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangible
assets

f Impairment, if any, in the value of fixed  assets will be provided for in the year in which it is
reckoned.

g Financial instruments
(i)  Classification, initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Intitially, a financial instrument is recognised
at its fair value. Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
instruments are recognised in determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the
category in which they are classified. Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.Financial
assets other than equity instruments are classified into categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are
classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at fair vale through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities

Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on
specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in
order to collect such contractual cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets having contractual terms
that give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified in this category.
These include financial assets that are equity instruments and are designated as such upon initial
recognition irrevocably. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

 Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss when
the right to receive payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:Financial assets are measured at fair
value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
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comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value  through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:These are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss

Other financial liabilities: These are measured at carrying cost

ii) Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments
that are quoted in active markets using the quoted prices  and using valuation techniques for
other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation
models.

iii) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the company recognises its retained interest in the asset an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
has expired

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is
at amortised cost. Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is measured at an amount equal
to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as the difference between their carrying
amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for
recognising impairment loss on financial assets. The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses
expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based
on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month
ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Both Lifetime
ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
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depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has
grouped its loan portfolio into Term Loan , Working capital loan , Corporate Loan and short term
loan. The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each
reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in
credit risk at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities having different past due
status, then the highest days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of
that borrower.Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and
Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination
are classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances up to
30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as
significant increase in credit risk.

 Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage.
For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision)
rather than the gross carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying
a financial instrument as credit impaired. If an event (for eg. any natural calamity) warrants a
provision higher than as mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the
financial asset in Stage 3 accordingly.At each reporting date, the company assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

ECL is a product of exposure at default (EAD), probability of default (PD) and loss given by
default (LAD) , as outlined below :Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a
certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is
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still in the portfolio.Exposure at Default(EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the
exposure at a future default date. Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an
estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage
of the EAD.

v)   Off setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in financial
statements if there is a currently enforceable legal right to off set the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously

Accounting treatment for various Mega Projects:

The 301 st Board of KSIDC held on 27.10.2016 decided to form Special Purpose Vehicles,
separately for implementing and managing the various Mega projects being implemented by the
Corporation .Accordingly the Corporation had obtained expert opinion from reputed practicing
Chartered Accountants and as advised, the expenditure incurred on implementation of such
projects had been setoff against the budget allocations received from Government towards such
projects and only the net balances recorded.

As per the decision of the 300th Board meeting  all expenditure incurred towards setting up and
maintaining business incubators are allocated against the income generated there from and the
excess expenditure over income generated claimed from the Government.

h Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates

Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27-Separate Financial Statements.

i Government Grants

Grant received from Government/(s) for any specific purpose will be adjusted against the expenses
incurred for the purpose for which it is granted and any amount of such grant pending  utilization,
will be shown under the head Government Grant under  other Current Liabilities and will be
adjusted against the expenses as and when incurred.

Non-specific Government Grants received, if any, will be recognized as income on a systematic
basis in the profit and loss statement over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate as envisaged in Accounting Standard. During this
period company has not received any non-specific Government grants.

j Foreign currency transactions:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”), which is the functional currency
and presentation currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
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k Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible toknown amounts of cash (short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less) cheques on hand and balances with banks.
They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments.

l Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will br required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows and the risk specific to the liability

m Contingent Liability:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote, no provision is made.

n Sitting fees payable to Directors are treated on cash basis.

o Earnings per share The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance
with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS iscalculated by dividing the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted
average number of shares and  dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

p Revenue Recognition:

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments is applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of goods and services tax (‘GST’) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Ind
AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers outlines a single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes previous revenue
recognition guidance found within Ind AS.

Ind AS 115 sets out a five - step model as outlined below :-
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every
contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in
a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Specific policies for the Company’s different source of revenue are as below

The Corporation recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the effective interest rate
includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the contract. Transaction costs
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset.

The Corporation recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets, the
Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of financial
assets at EIR. If financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Corporation  reverts to calculating
interest income on a gross basis.”

Dividend on equity investments are recognised in the statement of Profit or loss when the right to
receive payment has been established. Dividend from other investment is recognised on cash basis

q Employee Benefit :

(i)  Defined benefit plan

Gratuity : The Company provides for gratuity under a defined benefit plan covering eligible
employees. The gratuity  plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employees’ salary and the tenure of employment with the company. Liabilities of gratuity and
leave encashment benefits have been determined based on actuarial valuation, as per the AS 15
(revised). Since it is fully funded, no long term provision is required.

(ii)   Defined Contribution plan: Provident Fund and Pension Fund:

Provident Fund deducted from employees’ salaries and a portion of the 12% employer’s matching
contribution are transferred every month to KSIDC Employees Provident Fund  Trust which is
an exempted establishment formed under Sec 17(1)(a) of the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The said trust manages the funds within the provisions of
the EPF Act and rules. All employees who joined after 15.11.1995 are covered under  the
Employees  Pension Scheme 1995 and others under the (earlier) Employees Pension Scheme
1971.The employees who had joined earlier to15.11.1995 but are not covered under  the Employees
Pension Scheme 1995 had approached the court for permitting them to exercise the option for
pension. The court is yet to pronounce judgement on the issue. In accordance with the recent
amendments in the EPF pension rules, employees who joined after 01.09.2014 and drawing a
salary of more than Rs 15000/- month are not covered under the pension scheme.
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Eligible employees receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan . Out of
the 12% matching contribution made by the employer towards EPF, 8.33% (of basic salary plus
DA ) subject to limits/rules as prescribed from time to time, is transferred to this Provident Fund
and  the balance to the Government administered pension fund. The rate  at which the annual
interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being administered by the Government. The
Company  has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the trust and the notified interest rate.

(iii)  Other Employment benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of
valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method was applied to assess the Plan liabilities owing to all
forms of admissible exit and accumulation of the benefits.  The estimated liabilities have been
funded through SBI Life and ICICI Prudential Life in the case of leave salary and through SBI
Life for Gratuity respectively. The short fall in funding, if any, is  included under current liabilities.

(iii)  Remeasurement gains and losses

Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the
return on assets related to retirement benefit plans, are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurement recorded in other comprehensive
income is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Actuarial gains and losses relating to long term employee benefits are recognised in the statement
of Profit and loss in the period in which they arise

(iv)  Measurement date

The measurement date of retirement plans is 31st March.

Collateral Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as movable and immovable assets, guarantees, etc.
To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data and external valuers for valuing
financial assets held as collateral.

In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company may take possession of properties
or other assets in its retail portfolio.  Receipts on loan account relating to (i) approval of One Time
Settlement cases by the Board (ii) after the initiation of RR proceedings and (iii) from sale proceeds of
companies taken over u/s 29 of the SFC’s Act, are accounted first as principal receipts and the excess,
if any, over principal as interest receipts. If the realization is not sufficient to cover the principal, the
shortfall is treated as bad, even though coercive action against the loan guarantors is in force.

r Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
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ii.  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.The net amount of
tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

s Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes.Current income taxes are determined
based on taxable income and applicable tax rules. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases.Deferred tax assets are measured based on the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws  that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

t Segment Reporting

Operating segment is a component of an entity whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the managing director.

The company is engaged mainly in the NBFC business. Besides lending business company is
also having investments in various companies. Thus, in the context of Ind AS 108-operating
segments reporting have identified two reportable segment - Lending and Investments

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified
to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue /expenses /
assets /liabilities”, if any.

u Recent accounting pronouncements - Standards issued but not yet effective

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 Leases,
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable
with effect from 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee
and the lessor. The standard requies lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers)
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. As the Company does not
have any material leases, the adoption of this standard is not likely to have a material impact in its
Financial Statements.
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2 Cash and cash equivalents                                 Rs. in Lakhs

As at As at As at
31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Cash on hand  0.23             0.01 0.00
Current account with bank (includes treasury 2,004.46      4,322.00 13215.23
balance of Rs 0.97 lakhs ( P.Y Rs 868.96 lakhs)
Cheques on Hand

Postage & Revenue stamp  -                 -

2004.68 4322.01 13215.23

3 Other Bank Balances
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Earmarked balance with bank  -                 -
Fixed Deposit 15,087.07    11,285.44 8594.10
Short Term deposit  (with up to 12 months maturity) 4,282.97      3,845.27 3072.87

19370.04 15130.71 11666.97

4 Receivables
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Secured, considered Good 1.23 1.11              32.69
Unsecured  Considered good 138.17 123.47           113.37
Doubtful 87.04 81.34              76.87
Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors and other officers
Travel Advance To Chairman 1.48 1.46 -0.03
Advance to Staff 0.08 0.28 1.04

228.01 207.67 223.95

Current account dues of the companies are considered in the receivables. Book value is considered
as the fair value. Current account dues of the companies which is having outstanding loan balance
the classification is done based on loan status.

Vide GO 646/2009/ID dated 30.05.2019 and G.O(Ms) 17/2011/ID dated 19.01.11, Government
had instructed that the assets (Rs 20.49 crores) and liabilities (Rs 7.69 Crores) of Kerala Construction
Components Ltd (KCCL) be vested with KSIDC, but the title of the asset is not transfered to KSIDC.
KSIDC spent Rs 137 lakhs (P.Y 123 lakhs) towards  settlement of liabilities with KFC,security charges
and other expenses for KCCL, which is accounted as receivable from KCCL. The Registrar of
Companies has struck off the name of the company from the list of companies. There is a proposal
to transfer the KCCL land to Coir Development for establishing Coir Gramam Project. No final
decision has been made in the matter till date.
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Rs in lakhs

Name of the Company Face No. of At Cost At Cost At Cost
Value  Shares  31.03.2019 31.03.2018 01.04.2017

Quoted Equity Investments

Apollo Tyres Ltd. 1 5000000 1371.25 1371.25 1371.25
BPCL (Including Bonus shares of 296293) 10 1777758 33.34 33.34 33.34
Cochin Minerals & Rutiles Ltd. 10 1050000 105.00 105.00 105.00
Forbes & Company 10 30363 14.80 14.80 14.80
Gokak Textiles Limited 10 15181 9.49 9.49 9.49
Geojit BNP Paribas 1 20000000 50.00 50.00 50.00
(including 1500000 bonus shares)
Indsil Hydropower Ltd. 10 1054166 63.25 63.25 63.25
Patspin India Ltd. 10 2490000 249.00 249.00 249.00
Philips Carbon Black Ltd 10 467900 140.37 140.37 140.37
Eastern Treads Ltd. 10 615000 61.50 61.50 61.50
IDBI Bank Ltd ( incl 53520 bonus shares) 10 142720 115.96 115.96 115.96
PTL Enterprises 2 1500000 30.00 30.00 30.00
Artemis Global Life Sciences 1500000
(Previous PTL Projects LTD bonus
Shares of 1500000 nos)
Rubfilla International 5 2736000 342.00 342.00 342.00
Accel Transmatic Systems India 10 5824 0.78 0.78 0.78
BST Ltd. 10 550000 55.00 55.00 55.00
Victory Paper & Boards Ltd 10 200000 20.00 20.00 20.00

                              Total - A 2661.74 2661.74 2661.74
Unquoted   Investments (Equity shares)
ULCC IT Infrastructure (P) Ltd. 100 6553000 655.30 655.30 655.30
Invest India 100 500 0.50 0.50 0.50
India Middle East Broadcasting 10 3630000 363.00 363.00 363.00
Kannur International Airport Ltd 100 10000 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Kerala Cashew Board 1000 30000 300.00
ATI Ltd 10 250000 50.00 50.00 50.00
BPL Telecom Ltd. 10 198000 5.94 5.94 5.94
(including 138600 Bonus Shares)
Cheraman Financial Services 10 3670000 367.00 310.00 310.00
Cochin International Airport 10 5000000 900.00 900.00 900.00
Green Land Paper Mills Ltd 10 247500 24.75 24.75 24.75
InKel Limited 10000 6000 600.00 600.00 600.00
Integrated Rubian Exports 10 300000 30.00 30.00 30.00
Kerala Enviro Infrastructure 10 999000 99.90 99.90 99.90
Kerala Industrial and Technical 1000 3950 0.79 0.79 0.79
Consultancy Organisation(Bonus Share
1:49- 3871 Nos Bonus Shares)
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Loop Mobile (Including 1400 Nos) 10 2000 0.06 0.06 0.06
Bonus Shares
Profit Core Pipes Ltd. 10 50000 5 5 5
State Farming Corpn. Of Kerala 1000 6100 61.00 61.00 61.00
Symphony TV 1000 2500 25.00 25.00 25.00
Thanikudam Bhagavathy Mills Ltd 10 165000 16.50 16.50 16.50
Traco Cable Co. Ltd 10 100000 10.00 10.00 10.00
Travancore Titanium Products Ltd. 10 139732 13.97 13.97 13.97
Printronics Techpark Pvt Ltd 10 5000 0.50 0.50 0.50
ABN Granites Ltd 10 1100000 110.00 110.00 110.00
Chaya Industries 10 970000 97.00 97.00 97.00
Covema Filaments Ltd 10 1216800 121.68 121.68 121.68
Elasto Tapes Ltd 10 68500 6.85 6.85 6.85
Emtex International Ltd 100 11800 11.80 11.80
Excel Glasses 1 307400 14.66 14.66 14.66
Geojit Credits Ltd 2 11000000 220.00 220.00 220.00
Hindustany Cylinders 10 136700 13.67 13.67 13.67
Industrial Accumulators 100 7500 7.50 7.50 7.50
Kerala Spinners 10 126800 12.57 12.57 12.57
Madras Spinners 10 99900 5.00 5.00 5.00
(including 49950  Bonus Shares)
Malabar spinning & weaving Ltd 200 5000 10.00 10.00
Manito Electronics 10 120000 12.00 12.00 12.00
Meenachil Rubberwood Ltd 10 390000 39.00 39.00 39.00
Optima Packagings 10 87600 8.76 8.76
Periyar Chemicals Ltd 10 58875 3.93 3.93 3.93
(including 19,625  Bonus Shares)
Pact Rubber Wood 10 66000 6.60 6.60 6.60
Rubberwood India 10 344600 34.46 34.46 34.46
Sri Sai Maharaj Pulp & Paper 100 14300 14.30 14.30 14.30
SAIL- SCL Kerala Ltd 10 303801 71.52 71.52 71.52
Travancore Sulphates 10 78000 7.80 7.80 7.80
Yellow Foods (P) Ltd. 10 9800 0.98 0.98
TECIL Chemicals & Hydro 10 296320 20.49 20.49 20.49
(Including 91460 bonus shares)
Kerala State Textile Corporation 100 25000 25.00 25.00 25.00
Travancore Cochin Chemicals 10 3518180 325.91 325.91 325.91
Travancore Oxygen Ltd. 100 2500 2.50 2.50 2.50
United Electrical Industries Ltd. 10 93600 9.36 9.36 9.36
Vysali Pharmaceuticals Ltd 10 50000 5.00 5.00 5.00
Western India Cottons Ltd. 10 350000 35.00 35.00 35.00

                                 Total B 5751.00 5425.54 5425.54
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Unquoted  Investments in Associates
OEN India Ltd 10 1274607 9.34 9.34 9.34
(including 1181509 Nos bonus shares)

                                     Total C 9.34 9.34 9.34

Unquoted  Investments Preference

Filatex Vechukunnel    - 100 57000 57.00 57.00 57.00
Kerala Sponge Iron Limited-10 % RCP Shares 100 59000 59.00 59.00 59.00
Central Travancore Specialists Hospital
-16% RCP Shares 10 862000 86.20 86.20 86.20
Sree Sakthi Paper Mills Ltd 10 6000000 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Chaya Industries 100 50000 50.00 50.00 50.00

                                    Total D 1252.20 1252.20 1252.20

Unquoted  Investments Equity Shares
Joint Venture

INKEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd 10 2786260 278.63 278.63 278.63
Kuttiyadi Coconut Industrial Park Ltd. 1000 250 2.50 2.50 2.50
Kerala GAIL Gas Ltd 10 50000 0.50 1192.80 1192.80
Units in Kerala Venture Capital Fund 46.25 46.25 46.25
Nitta Gelatin India Ltd 10 2862220 1364.07 1364.07 1364.07

Total E 1691.94 2884.24 2884.24

Grant Total 11366.22 12233.06 12233.06

7.   Other financial assets
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018  01.04.2017

Advance share Investment 255.00 387.00 30.00
Staff loan 448.37 463.35 408.29
Interest receivable on Short term Deposits 696.48 575.51 388.60
Accrued Dividend on Preference Shares 216.80 317.21 417.63
P.F. Loan 0.00 0.00 0.11
HDFC Credit Card No 5329730620048046 0.00 0.12 0.00
HDFC-Multi currency Card -Chairman-JT 0.00 0.12 0.12

1616.65 1743.31 1244.75

Advance share investment of Rs 255 lakhs (P.Y 387 Lakhs) includes Rs 230lakhs(P.Y Nil) to
Coconics Pvt Ltd, an SPV formed by KSIDC, Keltron and UST Global, Rs 25 lakhs(P.Y 25 lakhs)
to Manito Electronics Pvt Ltd. Company adopted the policy to transfer the advance share investment
to investments once the share certificate obtains . Rs 57 lakhs paid to Albarak Financial services
and Rs 300 lakhs to Kerala Cashew Development Board as advance share investment during the
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previous year transferred to investment during the current year.Rs 5 lakhs received from IL and
FSIDC Since the amount cannot be considered as investment the cost is considered as fair value

Staff loans includes Rs 279 lakhs(P.Y 275.41) towards housing loan, Rs 135.07 (P.Y 150.54)
towards car loan, Rs 17.48( P.Y 17.14) towards consumer loan, Rs 7.91lakhs ( P.Y 13.01) towards
Personal loan, Rs 6.48 lakhs(P.Y 4.67 lakhs) towards scooter loan, Rs 1.96 lakhs(P.Y 2.09) towards
computer loan, Rs 0.48 lakhs (P.Y 0.48 lakhs) towards education loan. Total staff loan outstanding
is only1.15% of outside loan, which will not affect the materiality. Hence the book value of loan
is considered as fair value

8 Current tax assets (net)
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018  01.04.2017

Advance Tax & TDS 1414.54 6487.14 5685.24

Amount receivable from IT Department 355.84 355.84 355.84
1770.38 6842.98 6041.08

Advance tax and TDS paid for the F.Y 2017-18 is Rs746.56 lakhs and for the F.Y 2018-19 is Rs
667.98 lakhs. Since the assessment is not completed for the F.Y 2017-18 adjustment entry with
the provision is not made

Assessment up to F.Y 2016-17 was completed. Amount refundable from IT department is accounted
from the assessment order. As per the assessment order Rs 18.71 lakhs is receivable for the F.Y
2011-12, Rs 6.81 lakhs for the F.Y 2013-14 , Rs 264.44 lakhs for the F.Y 2014-15, Rs 66.47
lakhs for the F.Y 2015-16.

9. Property Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets
Particulars              Gross Block

As at Additions Sales/ Up to
01/04/2018 Deduction  31.03.2019

Land # 207.21 0.00 0.00 207.21

Buildings 196.72 0.00 0.00 196.72

Electrical Fittings 46.60 8.76 8.63 46.74

Solar Power System 65.15 0.00 0.00 65.15

Furniture and Fittings 95.70 1.07 0.00 96.77

Office Equipment 59.44 0.47 0.00 59.91

Computer 259.11 23.07 0.61 281.58

Vehicle 57.69 0.00 0.00 57.69

Library Books 11.93 0.19 0.00 12.12

Intangible assets (Software) 36.50 8.52 0.00 45.02

Total 1036.05 42.08 9.24 1068.89
Previous Year  Figures 1021.85 22.29 8.09 1036.05
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Depreciation                                   Net Block

Particulars As at Charged to Sales/ Up to As at As at
01/04/2018  P&L Deduction 31/03/2019  31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Land # 0.00 0.00 207.21 207.21

Buildings 134.54 3.09 0.00 137.63 59.09 62.18

Electrical Fittings 40.03 2.62 8.19 34.46 12.29 6.58

Solar Power System 35.70 5.38 0.00 41.08 24.07 29.45

Furniture and Fittings 85.43 2.52 0.00 87.95 8.81 10.27

Office Equipment 50.18 3.42 0.00 53.60 6.31 9.26

Computer 246.18 10.97 0.58 256.57 25.00 12.93

Vehicle 44.72 3.83 0.00 48.54 9.14 12.97

Library Books 11.93 0.19 0.00 12.12 0.00 0.00

Intangible assets (Software) 34.63 2.37 0.00 37.01 8.01 1.86

Total 683.34 34.39 8.77 708.96 359.93 352.70
Previous Year  Figures 654.47 36.30 7.43 683.34 352.70 367.37

                                                       Net Block
Particulars As at As at

31/03/2019  31/03/2018

Tangible Assets 351.92 350.84

Intangible assets 8.01 1.86

Total 359.93 352.70

#   Land includes

1 30 acres of land at TELK Angamaly transferred to KSIDC at nil cost, vide G.O. 836/2008/ID
dated 26.07.08 and G.O. 1174/2009/ID dt 31.08.09.  This has been given on 90 years lease
to INKEL KSIDC PROJECTS Ltd (JV). Further 26.712 Acres of land has been transferred to
KSIDC for implementation of Business Hub, for which mutation in favour of KSIDC is yet
to be completed.

2 34.05 acres of industrial land transferred by District Industries Centre to KSIDC at nil cost
for Light Engineering Park(LEIP), Palakkad. KSIDC has taken possession of the same, but
the transfer of title in the name of KSIDC is still pending on technical grounds. Anyhow,
vide G.O.(MS)49/2012/ID dated 03.04.12, Government has given clearance for mutation of
land in the case of LEIP and also directed that the liabilities arising out of the LAR cases  be
met by KSIDC. The first phase of the project was declared completed on 15.01.2013 and the
assets created have been included in the fixed assets of KSIDC.

3 1.9909 acres of land of M/s. Astral Watches Ltd. transferred in the name of KSIDC on
Government giving approval for winding up of the company and transferring of assets and
liabilities to KSIDC for the purpose of dissolution of the company under Easy Exit scheme
of Companies Act.
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4 Company has taken land on Operating lease. The following is the summary of future minimum
lease rental payments under non cancellable operating lease

10    Capital work in progress
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

     Expense towards ERP Implementation 135.54 135.54 135.54

Rs 135.54 lakhs being the part payment made  for  ERP. On final acceptance by  all user
departments and on  successful completion of the same, it was  to be transferred to asset
account. But the company was not able to deliver the output in time to the satisfaction of
user departments. The server at the datacentre failed and the data was irrecoverably lost.
The company could not retrieve the data. KSIDC  has taken  necessary steps  for termination
of the contract  and initiation of legal action against CMC Ltd.

11   Other Non financial assets
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Current account with Consultants 5.39 102.63 97.84
Government of Kerala-others 187.78 126.95 566.67
Sales Tax 3.60 3.60 3.60
IGC -151.89 116.96 110.53
CENVAT Credit-Service Tax 0.00 0.00 6.04
CENVAT Deferred ST 0.00 0.00 0.26
CGST-Input Tax Credit 0.92 0.08 0.00
SGST-Input Tax Credit 0.92 0.08 0.00
RCM A/C-SGST 0.03 0.68 0.00
RCM A/C-CGST 0.03 0.68 0.00
GST electronic cash ledger 0.00 0.00 0.00
GST Input Tax deferred-CGST 0.31 0.19 0.00
GST Input Tax deferred-SGST 0.31 0.19 0.00
Employee Contribution to PF 0.00 0.00 1.24
IGST - Input Tax Credit 0.01 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 11.62 10.74 9.56
Electricity, Telephone and  Other Deposits 15.29 15.14 15.21

74.32 377.92 810.95

Government had directed KSIDC to pay ‘special advance’ to the employees of three
undertakings, namely, Travancore Rayons, Commonwealth Trust and ALIND. Out of the
total advance paid  as per Government directions, we got reimbursement of Rs 442.79 lakhs
towards  such advances made till 2015-16. The balance sum of Rs 187.78( P.Y 126.95)
lakhs   is to be reimbursed by Government and  the payment has been shown under
Government of Kerala others.
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KSIDC is acting as an agent for implementing Industrial Growth Centre (IGC) in the State of
Kerala. A total amount of Rs. 15727.44 lakhs (previous year Rs. 14422.74 lakhs) has been
received from the Government for meeting the expenditure relating to the Growth Centres.
Receipts collected by way of lease premium/sale of land, miscellaneous income and other
receipts on current account amount to Rs. 13173.53 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 11288.12
lakhs). Total receipts stand at Rs. 28900.97 lakhs (previous year Rs. 25710.86 lakhs). All
the fixed assets including land and building are held by KSIDC on behalf of Government of
Kerala. All receipts and payments are accounted on cash basis and the excess of receipts
over expenditure is Rs.7159.56 lakhs (previous year Rs. 4268.70 lakhs). The total expenditure
under major heads is as shown below:

                 Rs in lakhs

Land & Site Development 9180.79

Roads 1199.44

Buildings 5234.11

Water Supply 1093.60

Power 2121.48

Others 2911.99

Total 21741.41
Cash and Cash Balance  7,007.61

Control Account Balance 151.89

Total 7,159.50

KSIDC, being the implementing agency of Industrial Growth Centre (IGC) on behalf of
Government of Kerala, the funds of IGC were parked separately as Fixed Deposit under
IGC A/c

12 Payables

As at As at As at
31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Trade Payable
total outstanding dues of  creditors other than 58.61 92.85 109.49
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other Payables
Current account with Companies 101.56 40.37              89.23

160.17 133.23 198.71

There are no dues to companies/firms under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006.
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13  Provisions
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Provision For Employee Benefit Expenses
Opening Balance -a 0.00 171.27 171.27
Add: Provision made during the year 0.00 0.00 0
Total 0.00 171.27 171.27
Less: Payment of Pay revision arrear 0.00 171.27 0

Balance Provision-a 0.00 0.00 171.27

Leave Salary
Opening Balance 0.00 1.10 1.10
Add: Provision made during the year 0.00
Total 0.00 1.10 1.10
Less: Payment made during the year

Balance Provision -b 0.00 0.00 1.10

Gratuity
Opening Balance 85.45 25.21 0.00
Add: Provision made during the year 30.63 85.24 25.21
Total 116.08 110.45 25.21
Less: Payment made during the year 85.45 25.00 0

Balance Provision-c 30.63 85.45 25.21

Total -i =a+b+c 30.63 85.45 197.58

Other Provisions
Provision for Taxation
Opening Provision for Taxation 6798.90 6113.08 5233.28
Addition during the year 674.83 685.82 879.80
Tax provision for previous years
Total 7473.73 6798.90 6113.08
Less: Set off /Adjustment/previous year
payments effected  during the year. 6052.14

Closing provision for taxation -ii 1421.59 6798.90 6113.08

Provision for diminution  in value of Investments #
Opening Balance 2170.12 1830.84 1823.86
Add: Provision required  at the year end 0.00 339.28 25.34
Total 2170.12 2170.12 1849.20
Less: Provision reversed during the year. 31.54 0.00 18.36

Balance Provision 2138.58 2170.12 1830.84
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Provision for dividend and tax thereon
Opening Balance 0.00 210.82 421.64
Add: Provision required  at the year end 0.00 0.00 0
Total 0.00 210.82 421.64
Less: Paid during the year. 0.00 210.82 210.82

Balance Provision 0.00 0.00 210.82

Others

Provision for Taxation: Set off entries against advance taxes, self assessments, regular
taxes and TDS receivables( booked under advance tax account) had been effected till
assessment year 2011-12.Adjustment in respect of  excess/ shortfall in estimated provisions
created in earlier years, if any,   has been made on case to case basis. The details of provision
is as follows.

Particulars As at As at As at
31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

FY 2011-12 AY 2012-13 1071.00 1071.00
FY 2012-13 AY 2013-14 0.00 1253.75 1253.75
FY 2013-14 AY 2014-15 0.00 1025.12 1025.12
FY2014-15 AY 2015-16 0.00 683.41 683.41
FY 2015-16 AY 2017-18 0.00 1200.00 1200.00
FY 2016-17 AY 2018-19 0.00 879.80 879.80
FY 2017-18 AY 2018-19 746.76 685.82 0
F.Y 2018-19 674.83

Total 1421.59 6798.90 6113.07

Provision for diminution in value of Investments: Includes provision against investments
of Rs.1800.84 lakhs and additional  provision of Rs.30 lakhs (advance share investment in
M/s. Manito Electronics Pvt. Ltd-Rs 25 Lakhs, and advance investment in IL&FS Rs. 5
lakhs)  made against ‘Advance towards investment in Companies.

Summary: Current Liabilities  on Provisions
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Provision For Employee Benefit Expenses 0.00 0.00 171.27
Provision for Leave Salary 0.00 0.00 1.10
Provision for Gratuity 30.63 85.45 25.21
Provision for Taxation 1421.59 6798.90 6113.08
Provision for diminution 2138.58 2170.12 1830.84
in value of Investments
Provision for dividend and tax thereon 0.00 0.00 210.82

Grand Total 3590.79 9054.46 8352.31



Annual Report  2018-2019 73

K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E LO P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .

A.  Leave Salary

Leave salary is calculated based on the number  of days of earned leave to the credit of the
employee,  subject to a maximum of 300 days.

As on 31.03.2019 the actuarial valuation for leave salary was Rs.2,50,26,896/- ( PY - Rs
2,55,97,4912/-).  The estimated liabilities have been fully funded through SBI Life and
ICICI Prudential Life.

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

1. Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning 303.92         309.31 274.1405
Interest Income 22.37           23.76 20.51066
Employer Contribution 1.10 19.1
Benefit Payment from Plan Assets - 27.43 - 25.63 -5.44506
Remeasurements-Return on Assets - 0.01 - 4.62 1.00675
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end 298.8523 303.92324 309.31285

2. Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 255.97         310.41 268.92606
Current Service Cost 25.99           26.00 74.0749
Interest Expense 19.38           21.72 20.49767
Benefit Payment from Plan Assets -27.42814 -25.63033 -5.44506
Remeasurement-Due to Demographic Assumptions 0.43987
Remeasurement-Due to Financial Assumptions 3.46 -58.49
Remeasurement - Due to Experience Adjustments - 27.55 - 18.04 -47.64255
Defined Benefit Obligation at the End 250.27 255.97491 310.41102

3. Components of Defined Benefit Cost
Current Service cost 25.9869 26.00153 74.0749
Interest Expense on DBO 19.38087 21.7245 20.49767
Interest (Income) on Plan Assets -22.36715 -23.76381 -20.51066
Total Net Income -2.98628 -2.03931 -0.01299

Defined Benefit Cost included in P&L 23.00           23.96 74.06191
Remeasurement -Due to Demographic Assumptions  0.44
Remeasurement -Due to Financial Assumptions 3.46068 -58.49121
Remeasurement -Due to Experience Adjustments -27.54611 -18.0406 -47.64255
(Return) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income) - 0.01 4.62309 -1.00675
Total Remeasurement in OCI - 23.66 -71.90872 -48.6493
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L -0.65487 -47.9465 25.41261
and OCI

4. Amount recognised in Balance sheet
Defined Benefit Obligation 250.26898 255.97491 310.41102
Fair Value of Plan Assets 298.8523 303.92324 309.31285
Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) -48.58332 -47.94833 1.09817
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5. Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) reconciliation
Net Defined Benefit liability/(Asset) at the beginning - 47.95             1.10 -5.21444
Defined Benefit Cost included in P&L 23.00064 23.96222 74.06191
Total Remeasurements included in OCI -23.65551 -71.90872 -48.6493
Employer Contribution - - 1.10 - 19.10
Net Defined Benefit liability/(Asset) at the end -48.6032 - 47.95 1.09817

6.  Actuarial Assumptions for Leave Encashment

   Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

i   Discount Rate 7.6 % p.a. 8 % p.a. 7.30 % p.a.
ii  Salary escalation 6% 6% 10%
iii  Attrition 1% 0% TO 1%  0% TO 1%
iv  Mortality Tables IALM IALM IALM

(2012-14) Ult   (2006-08) Ult (2006-08) Ult

Footnote :

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities
as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future
salary increases considered, by taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion,
increments and other relevant factors.

B Gratuity

Corporation is following the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act for computing the
eligible Gratuity, as per stipulation made by Government on 9th Pay revision . Accordingly
Gratuity  shall  be  payable  to  an  employee  on the  termination  of  his / her employment
after  he / she has  rendered  continuous  service  for not less than five years for  every
completed  year  of  service  or  part  thereof  in  excess  of  six months at the rate of fifteen
days’ wages based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee. The  fifteen  days’
wages  shall  be  calculated  by  dividing  the  monthly  rate  of  wages  last  drawn  by him/
her by twenty six days, as if every completed month comprises of 26 days.

The payment of Gratuity ( Amendment) Act,2010 had increased the limit to Rs 20 lakhs
w.e.f 29.03.2018. In line with these provisions, the Corporation had also provided for the
enhanced limit w.e.f 29.03.2018.

As on 31.03.2019, the actuarial valuation of gratuity was Rs 3,95,55,393/-   (PY Rs
4,05,70,765/-). The estimated liabilities have been funded through SBI Life. The short fall
in the funding , if any, is  included under current liabilities.
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Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

1 Changes in present value of obligations
PVO at beginning of period 405.71         337.88 299.82
Interest Cost 28.82           23.15 22.38
Current Service Cost 17.53             9.27 23.15
Past service cost( vested benefits)         122.96
Benefits Paid -  64.70 - 41.62 -18.27
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 8.19 -45.93 10.80
PVO at end of period 395.55           405.71        337.88

2 Interest Expense
Interest Cost 28.82 23.15 22.38

3. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 320.26         312.67 306.93
Interest income  25.52           22.22 22.93

4. Net Liability
PVO at beginning of period 405.71 337.88 299.82
Fair Value of the Assets at beginning report 320.26 312.67 306.93
Net Liability 85.45 25.21 -7.11

5. Net Interest
Interest Expenses 28.82 23.15 22.38
Interest Income 25.52 22.22 22.93
Net Interest 3.30 0.93 -0.55

6. Actual return on plan assets 23.91           24.21         24.01
Less Interest income included above 25.52      22.22        22.93
Return on plan assets excluding interest income -  1.61      1.99         1.08

7. Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligation
Due to Financial Assumption 3.97 -  74.26      9.60
Due to Experience 4.22           28.32    1.20
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 8.19 -      45.93  10.80

8. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening fair value of plan asset 320.26 312.67 306.93
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset
Return on plan assets excl.interest income -1.61 1.99 1.08
Interest Income 25.52 22.22 22.93
Contribution by Employer 85.45 25.00
Benefits Paid -64.70 -41.62 -18.27
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end 364.92 320.26 312.67

9. Amounts to be recognized in the balance
sheet and statement of profit loss account
PVO at end of period 395.55 405.71 337.88
Fair Value of Plan assets at end of period 364.92 320.26 312.67
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Fund status -30.63 -85.45 -25.21
Net Asset/(Liability)recognized in the Balance sheet -30.63 -85.45 -25.21

  10. Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c
Current Service Cost 17.53 9.27 23.15
Net interest 3.30 0.93 -0.55
Past service cost( vested benefits) 0.00 122.96 0.00
Return on plan assets excluding interest 1.61 -1.99 -1.08
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period 8.19 -45.93 10.80
Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c 30.63 85.24 32.32

  11. Movements in the liability recognized in Balance Sheet
Opening Net Liability 85.45 25.21 -7.11
Adjustment to opening balance
Expense as above 30.63 85.24 32.32
Contribution Paid -85.45 -25.00 0.00
Closing Net Liability 30.63 85.45 25.21

6. Actuarial Assumptions for Gratuity

    Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018   01.04.2017

i     Discount Rate 7.56 % p.a. 7.72 % p.a. 7.30 % p.a.
ii    Salary escalation 6% 6% 10%
iii   Attrition PS: 0 TO 40 :1% PS: 0 TO 40 :1% PS: 0 TO 40 :1%
iv   Mortality Tables IALM (2006-08) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult

Footnote :

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities
as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future salary
increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other
relevant factors.

14  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Particulars 31/03/2019               31/03/2018

 Base Deferred  Tax Base             Deferred Tax
Asset Liability Asset Liability

  Current liabilities
Trade Payables 58.61 87.17

Interest accrued on bonds/
Govt.loan 0.00 0.00

Provision for gratuity 30.63 85.45
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Provision for leave salary 0.00 0.00

30.88 59.74
Current assets
Interest accrued on deposits 688.68 570.28

Interest accrued on   TL 7.81 5.23

Prepaid expenses 11.62 10.74

Interest accrued/loan 2.21 2.21

Provisions
Provision for doubtful.debts 610.46 499.24
u/s 36 1 viia of IT Act

Provision for Special Reserve
 u/s 36 1 viii of IT Act 9342.88 9096.01

3690.48 3524.3

Fixed assets
Depreciation -13.55 -4.69 -19.97 -6.91

Total 30.88 3685.79 59.74 3517.46
Deferred  Tax Liabilities (3654.90) (3457.73)

Existing Balance -DT (3457.73) 17186.92
Additional Provision Required (197.18) 20644.65

No utilization has been made so far of the Special Reserve created and  maintained under
section 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act. However, based on the opinion of the Expert
Committee of ICAI, deferred tax liability has been provided on the Special Reserve maintained
under 36(1) (viii) of the IT Act from 2012-13 onwards.

15 Other non financial liabilities
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Suspense 1.44          75.00         81.78
Current account with others 278.33        433.52           3.86
Advance to MD 0.03           0.06           0.01
TDS Payable - Others  0.18          12.02           1.31
TDS Payable-Salary 0.89            0.15           0.31
Service Tax Payable 0.00 0.00           1.41
RCM Payable  SGST 0.05            1.82               -
RCM Payable  CGST  0.05            1.82               -
RCM Payable  IGST  -                -               -
SGST Payable  0.34            5.35               -
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IGST Payable  -            2.50               -
CGST Payable 0.34            5.35               -
TDS Payable -GST 0.14                -               -
Labour Welfare Fund Payable -            5.88               -
Retention Deposit 53.42          17.90       106.77
Various Project - KGGL 1,284.31     1,284.31    1,284.31
Various Project 104.93     1,411.07    2,787.15
Tender Fee Mega Food Park 0.78                -               -
E M D Noorka 5.00                -               -
Interest accrued on Government Loan 0.00 0.00    1,961.49
Co-operative recovery Salary 0.00 0.00           0.01
Security Deposit( Liability) 130.56          60.77           5.24
L.I.C. Deductions 0.00          0.01               -

1,860.79     3,317.39    6,233.65

Current Account with others includes Rs 400 lakhs received from Sreesakthi as advance for
share redemption .Government had directed KSIDC to participate in the Bid process of Air Port
Authority of India on behalf of Government. Expense related to bid processing including
consultancy fee paid by KSIDC is Rs 122.44 lakhs, which has to be reimbursed from Government
is also accounted in current account with others.

KSIDC received Rs 695.05 crs for the implementation of various projects in which Rs  681.17
crs spent for various projects. Out of the total balance of Rs 13.88 crs Rs 12.84 crs pertains to
KGGL and Rs 1.04 relates to other projects

Various Projects:

Nodal Agency for implementation of various projects.

Government of Kerala has entrusted KSIDC with agency function to implement various
projects. The expenditure  incurred in respect of  various infrastructure-related projects being
implemented by KSIDC as per Government directions, based on which KSIDC is the nodal agency/
facilitator  have been classified as  ‘non-current’  as the projects are only in the preliminary stages
of conception/feasibility study/implementation. Previous year figures have been reclassified
accordingly. The details of budget allocation for these projects, the funds released by the
Government, funds expended with remarks are shown under.
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 No Name of the Project As on 31.03.2019 Status of projects
(Rs in Crores)

 Total Fund  Total fund Total
Allocation   Received   Expen-

diture

1 Investment facilitation & 60.09 40.09 43.00 Organised many events,
Ind. Promotion Activities seminars,workshops, roadshows

etc and participated in local and
international exhibitions and
sponsored many events
branding Kerala as an investment
friendly destinations. We have
advanced in implementing Ease
of doing Business,streamlining
single window clearance and
promoting WE Mission

 2 Life Sciences  Park 514.54 482.38 473.80 Progressing. Assistance under
KIIFB scheme received and
released

 3 Business Incubators 16.35 11.35 6.88 Progressing

 4 Coconut Industrial Park, 40.02 16.00 15.67 Project revived and steps taken
Kuttiyadi for  construction of basic

infrastructure facilities

 5 Electronic Hardware Park, 177.47 147.47 54.92 Progressing. Assistance under
Kochi MIDP scheme received and

released

 6 Supplementary Gas 49.22 33.16 12.84 No further headway
Infrastructure

 7 Light Engineering Ist phase completed. II nd phase
Industrial Park, Palakkad 26.00 24.91 25.04 in progress

 8 Kochi - Palakkad NIMZ 20.66 10.74 1.41 Project to be integrated with the
Bangalore Coimbatore Industrial
Corridor scheme

 9 PCPIR Kochi/ 0.04 0.00 0.29 Progressing
Petrochemical Park

 10 Titanium Sponge, Kollam 15.02 14.00 0.43 Project dropped due to non
availability of Technology for
the project development
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 11 Cheemeni Power Project, 5.11 5.00 4.16 Project transferred to KSEB
Kasargode

 12 Organic Industrial Park, 9.00 9.04 9.04 Project completed
Kodungallur

13 Medicinal & Health Care 3.00 2.00 0.21 Project dropped due to non a
Park, Nadapuram vailability of land

14 Online Single Window 2.00 0.50 0.06 An Investment Promotion
Clearance Mechanism Facilitation Cell is proposed as

part of Ease of doing Business

15 Oceanarium Marine Biological 1.00 0.50 0.58 Project transferred to Fisheries
Research Centre Complex at
Puthuvypin, Kochi

16 Upgradation of roads to 48.00 48.00 44.99 Project completed except for
Industrial Parks upgradation of approach roads

to Growth Centres.

17 Albarak Financial Services 1.00 0.50 3.15 Project Completed

18 Infrastructure Development 44.51 38.51 217.41 Progressing
at IGCs

19 Angel funding /seed funding 28.00 16.00 11.29 Progressing

20 Entrepreneur support 9.00 7.00 5.25 Progressing
through mentoring

21 Mega food Park, Cherthala 43.00 18.00 55.14 Progressing

22 Business Incubator for 5.50 3.50 3.50 Completed
medical devices

23 Integrated Business hubs 0.00 0.00 0.18 Available land being
 identified.

24 Manufacturing Industrial 8.00 10.00 12.16 Completed
Zone Angamaly

25 Common Facilities for 0.80 0.80 0.80 Work awarded to Nirmithi
Women in IGCs Kendra

26 MEDS Park 0.00 0.00 1.06 Progressing

Total 1,127.33 939.45  1,003.26
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16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Rs in lakhs

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 As  at
1.04.2017

  a Authorised:
40,00,000 (40,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.1,000/- each 40000.00 40000.00 40000.00

  b Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
30,12,435 (30,12,435) Equity shares of Rs.1,000/- each 30124.35 30124.35 30124.35

  c Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

        As at 31.3.2019            As at 31.3.2018

No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares Shares

At the beginning of the period 3012435 30124.35 3012435 30124.35

Add: Shares issued during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Shares bought back during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Add: Other movements during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Outstanding at the end of the period 3012435 30124.35 3012435 30124.35

d  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1000/- per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. For the year ended 31-03-
2018, the amount of proposed  dividend per share recognized for distribution to equity
shareholders is Rs 5.81 (Previous Year Rs 5.81)

e As at 31.3.2019 As at 31.3.2018

Shares held by holding /ultimate holding Nil Nil
company /or their subsidiaries /associates.

f Details of shareholders holding more than         100 % owned by Government of Kerala
5 % shares in the company.

g As at 31.3.2019 As at 31.3.2018

Aggregate number of shares issued for Nil Nil
consideration other than cash, bonus shares
issued and shares bought back during the
period of 5 years immediately preceding the
reporting date.
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17 Other Equity As on 31.3.2018

       Particulars Stat- Capital Special Provision   Retained Debt Equity Other Total
utory Reserve Reserve  for  bad  Earnings  instru-  Instru-  items

Reserves  u/s 36(i) and  Doubt ments ments  of OCI
(viii) of  ful debts  through through
IT Act u/s 36 1  OCI  OCI

(viia)
of IT Act

Balance at the beginning   8,875.73        446.31  21,680.03  5,778.63  36,780.69
of the reporting period

Changes in accounting policy/
Prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning 0 0    8,875.73     446.31     21,680.03      -         -    5,778.63   36,780.69
of the reporting period

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Addition during the year      11,073.19 11,073.19

Dividends        210.63 210.63

Transfer to/from  retained earnings    220.28          94.37     -314.65

Any other changes      41.44 41.44
(Bad debt write off)

Balance at the end of the    9,096.01        499.24  32,227.95     5,778.63    47,601.82
reporting period

                    As at 31.3.2019

       Particulars Stat- Capital Special Provision   Retained Debt Equity Other Total
utory Reserve Reserve  for  bad  Earnings  instru-  Instru-  items

Reserves  u/s 36(i) and  Doubt ments ments  of OCI
(viii) of  ful debts  through through
IT Act u/s 36 1  OCI  OCI

(viia)
of IT Act

Balance at the beginning      9,096.01    499.24      32,227.95     5,778.63    47,601.82
of the reporting period
Changes in accounting
policy/Prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning 0 0    9,096.01  499.24      32,227.95          -          -    5,778.63     47,601.82
of the reporting period
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Addition during the year      7,146.51 -  7,146.51
Dividends  205.28 205.28
Transfer to/from  retained earnings 676.19       246.88        113.81   1,036.87
Any other changes 2.59 2.59
(Bad debt write off)
Balance at the end of the 676.19                   9,342.88      610.46   23,839.28     5,778.63    40,247.44
 reporting period
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Statutory Reserves u/s 45 IC of RBI Act

Every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum
not less than twenty per cent. of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss
account and before any dividend is declared.

Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of IT Act

As per section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961, in respect of Special reserve created and
maintained by an NBFC, an amount not exceeding twenty per cent  of the profits derived
from eligible business computed under the head Profit and gains of business or profession
carried to this reserve account

Provision for bad and Doubtful debts u/s 36 1(viia) of IT Act

As per section 36(1)(Viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  financial institutions are allowed
deduction in respect of the provisions made for bad and doubtful debts to the extend of 5%
of adjusted total income

Retained earning represent surplus after transfer to various other reserves

Transition to Ind AS-  Reconciliations

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences
arising from the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS 101.

i) Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2017

As at 01.04.2017 As at 31.03.2018

Previous Adjust Ind Previous   Adjust Ind
IGAAP       ments       As      IGAAP      ments         As

ASSETS 0 0

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13215.23 0.00 13215.23 4322.01 0.00 4322.01

Bank balances other than (a)above 11666.97 0.00 11666.97 15130.71 0.00 15130.71

Receivables 223.95 0.00 223.95 207.67 0.00 207.67

Loans 36305.73 -14891.43 21414.30 38328.13 -17882.40 20445.73

Investments 12233.05 31298.35 43531.40 11833.05 49484.28 61317.33

Other financial assets 827.12 417.63 1244.75 1426.09 317.22 1743.31

Sub-Total 0.00 0.00

Non Financial Assets 0.00 0.00

Inventories 0.00 0.00

Current tax assets (net) 6041.08 0.00 6041.08 6842.98 -0.01 6842.97
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Deffered Tax (net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Investment Property 0.00 0.00

Property Plant & Equipment 364.83 0.00 364.83 350.84 0.00 350.84

Capital work in progress 135.54 0.00 135.54 135.54 0.00 135.54

Other intangible Assets 2.55 0.00 2.55 1.86 0.00 1.86

Other non financial assets 807.09 3.86 810.95 344.40 33.52 377.92

Total Assets 81823.14 16828.42 98651.55 78923.28 31952.61 110875.89

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 0.00 0.00

LIABILITIES 0.00 0.00

Financial liabilities 0.00 0.00

Derivative financial instruments 0.00 0.00

Payables 0.00 0.00

(i) Trade Payable 0.00 0.00

(a) total outstanding dues of micro
     enterprises and small enterprises 0.00 0.00

(a) total outstanding dues of  creditors 109.49 0.00 109.49 92.85 0.00 92.85
    other than micro enterprises and small
    enterprises

(ii)  Other  Payable 89.23 0.00 89.23 40.37 0.00 40.37

(a) total outstanding dues of micro 0.00 0.00
    enterprises and small enterprises

(b) total outstanding dues of  creditors 0.00 0.00
    other than micro enterprises and

Debt Securities 0.00 0.00

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2600.00 0.00 2600.00 0.00

Other financial Liabilities 0.00 0.00

Sub-Total 0.00 0.00

Non Financial liabilities 0.00 0.00

Current tax liabilities (net) 0.00 0.00

Provisions 8352.31 0.00 8352.31 9054.46 0.00 9054.46

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 3315.90 11045.92 14361.82 3457.73 17186.92 20644.65

Other non financial liabilities 6229.79 3.86 6233.65 2883.87 433.52 3317.39

Sub Total 0.00 0.00

EQUITY 0.00 0.00

Equity share capital 30124.35 0.00 30124.35 30124.35 0.00 30124.35

Other equity 31002.06 5778.63 36780.69 33269.65 14332.17 47601.82

Sub-Total 0.00 0.00

Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 81823.13 16828.41 98651.54 78923.28 31952.61 110875.89
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  ii)   Reconciliation of  Pofit & Loss for the year ended 31.03.2018

For the year ended 31.03.2018

  Previous IGAAP Adjustments Ind As

Revenue from Operations
Interest Income 2896.30 131.33 3027.63

Dividend Income 987.08 0.00 987.08

Rental Income 0.00 0.00

Fee and commission Income 67.10 -67.10 0.00

Net gain on fair value change 0.00

Net gain on derecognition of financial
instruments under amortised cost category 0.00

Others 0.00

Total Revenue from Operation 3950.48 64.24 4014.72

Other Income 1263.08 88.25 1351.33

Total Income ( I + II ) 5213.56 152.49 5366.05

Expenses

Finance Cost

Fee and commission Expenses

Net loss on fair value changes

Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments 0.00 0.00
under amortised cost category

Impairment of financial instrument 3036.00 3036.00

Employee Benefit Expenses 1028.75 0.00 1028.75

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 375.58 0.00 375.58

Other Expenses 447.98 100.41 548.39

Total Expenses 1852.31 3136.42 4988.73

Profit before exceptional  items and tax (III-IV) 3361.25 -2983.93 377.32

Exceptional items -0.45 0.00 -0.45

Profit before Tax (V-VI) 3360.80 -2983.93 376.87

Tax expenses

1) Current Tax 699.33 0.00 699.33

2) Deferred Tax 141.83 35.39 177.22

Total Tax Expenses 841.16 35.38 876.54

Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing 2519.64 -3019.31 -499.67
operations (VII-VIII)
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Other Comprehensive income/(loss)
(A) (i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
 -   Remeasurement gain/(loss)on defined benefit plan
 -   Net gain/(loss) on equity instrumnets through OCI 17697.67 17697.67
    (ii) Income tax impact thereon -6124.81 -6124.81

 (B) (i) Item that will  be reclassified to profit and loss
     (ii) Income tax impact thereon

Total other comprehensive
income/(loss), net of taxes 0.00 11572.86 11572.86

Total Comprehensive income/(loss) 2519.64 8553.55 11073.19
for the year (IX-X)

Notes to Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

a) Deemed Cost

The Company has elected to consider the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
and Intangible asset as deemed cost as at the date of transition.

b) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expese recognised in a period should be included in profit or
loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense
that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as
‘othercomprehensive income includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans, effective portion of
gains and losses on cash flow hedging instruments and fair value gains or (losses) on FVTOCI equity
instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

c) Employee benefits

Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of net defined benefit
liability/asset which is recognized in other comprehensive income in the respective periods , which
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss under previous GAAP

d) Investments

Under Ind AS Financial assets other than amortized cost are subsequently measured at fair value.

Under previous GAAP, current investments were measured at lower of cost or fair value and long
term investments were measured at cost less diminution in value

e) Interest income recognition

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs charged to customers was recognised upfront while under
Ind AS, such costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial asset and recognised
as interest income.

f) Interst income on NPA assets

Under Indian GAAP, interest income on NPA was recognised on cash basis. However, under Ind
AS interest income is recognised on credit impaired assets on the amortised cost of such
assets net off ECL.
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g) Expected Credit Loss

Under Indian GAAP, Non performing Assets (“NPA”) provisioning was computed based on the
RBI guidelines. Under Ind AS, the impairment is computed based on ECL model.

h) Tax adjustments

Tax adjustments include deferred tax impact on account of differences between previous GAAP
and Ind AS.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2019

Interest Income

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
On Financial On On On On On

Assets  Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial
measured  Assets Assets  Assets Assets  Assets

at fair value  measured measured measured measured  measured
through at amor- at fair value  at fair value  at amor- at fair value

OCI tised cost through  through tised  through
P&L OCI  cost  P&L

Interest on Loans 2822.46 3027.63

Dividend income from investments 1315.12 987.08

Interest on deposits with banks 1267.01 1087.05

Other Interest Income 15.92 99.73

Total Income 5420.51 5201.49

* Net gain/loss on fair value changes Current     Previous
Year Year

A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(I) On trading portfolio
(II) on Financial instruments measured at  fair value through P&L

Total Net gain/loss on fair value changes
Fair values changes
- Realised
- Unrealised

18 INTEREST INCOME Rs. in Lakhs

2018-19 2017-18

i INTEREST
Interest on Term Loan -Cash 2973.12 3174.00
Add:-
Interest on Term Loan- Std Accrued- Closing. 0.00 5.23

Total 2973.12 3179.23
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Less:
Interest on Term Loan- Std Accrued - Opening. 5.23

18.07
Total 2967.90 3161.16
Less: Rebate
Interest less rebate 145.43 133.52

Net Interest Income 2822.46 3027.63

Rebate to loanees: KSIDC is granting rebate up to a maximum of 1%, maintaining the net interest
rate at 9%,  at the end of each quarter of every financial year by reversal of the interest charged,
provided there are no arrears of interest as at the end of each quarter . The reduction in interest as
above is calculated on the outstanding principal alone and there shall be no reversal of penal
interest portion. Further the 306th Board Meeting fixed the net interest rate after rebate as 8.5%.
A sum of Rs.145.43 lakhs  has been expended as this rebate during the FY 2018-19.

19 Dividend Income
Rs. in Lakhs

Dividend from long term investments 1130.68 698.00
Dividend from current investments 184.44 289.08

1315.12 987.08

21 OTHER INCOME

Interest on bank deposit 1267.01 1087.05
Interest on staff loan 12.79 21.14
Interest others 3.12 43.61
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.00 34.97
Bad debts recovered 0.95 10.68
Bad Investment recovered 0.00 55.00
Directors Sitting Fees 5.12 5.83
Miscellaneous income 0.47 4.04
Sale of tender forms 0.48 0.75
Unwinding Income 98.72 88.26

Total 1388.66 1351.33

22 FINANCE COST 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries 623.82 649.81
Pension Fund 26.98 29.44
Extra allowances 48.91 51.64
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Festival allowances 1.50 1.18
PF Staff 43.31 79.78
Welfare Expenses to staff 43.56 51.90
Honorarium to Medical Officer 2.06 1.93
Medical expenses 30.99 31.81
Staff Training Expenses 2.84 10.45
Staff Recruitment Expenses 4.15 0.00
Gratuity 20.98 85.01
Pension 1.93 3.17
Leave Surrender 38.76 32.63

Total 889.78 1028.75

24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
             Rs. in Lakhs

Depreciation 34.39 36.30
Diminution in the value of investment 339.28
Amortization Exp 0.00 0.00

Total 34.39 375.58

25 Impairment of financial instruments

     Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
Assets  Assets Assets  Assets

measured at fair measured at measured at  measured
value through OCI  amortised  fair value at amortised

cost  through OCI  cost

Loans 212.96 0

Investments 0.00 0.00

Others

Total

26 OTHER EXPENSES
Rs. in Lakhs

Honorarium to Chairman 2.62 2.58
Salaries and allowances  : Directors 20.36 25.48
P.F. Administrative Charges 1.89 2.83
P.F. Insurance 0.39 1.34
Welfare expenses : Directors 0.34 0.22
Travelling expenses
      : Chairman 4.14 1.31
      : Managing Director 3.15 9.39
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       : Directors 1.41 1.12
       : Staff &Others 60.59 60.70
Directors Sitting Fee 0.09 0.14
Foreign Tour Expenses 9.29 10.81
Rates & Taxes 3.59 0.52
Electricity & Water 12.57 11.99
Motor Car Expenses 5.96 6.17
Generator Running Expenses 1.26 0.83
Printing and Stationery 8.87 8.80
Postage, Telegrams and Telephones 18.21 17.18
Repairs - Building 4.06 1.09
Repairs - Other 26.05 37.24
Rent Paid 0.00 0.63
Advertisement and Publicity 38.80 15.40
Promotional expenses 11.60 60.62
Miscellaneous Expenses 4.60 21.99
Insurance 0.74 1.11
Filing Fee 0.30 0.44
Bank Charges 0.06 0.18
Books & Periodicals 0.00 0.00
Subscription & Membership 4.88 2.39
Gardening Expenses 0.04 0.04
Board Meeting Expenses 0.76 0.91
Hospitality Expenses 13.76 0.00
Legal & Professional Fees 5.41 10.74
Project Expenses 115.37 7.17
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.03 0.14
Service Tax(RCM) Expenses 0.00 1.51
Internal Audit Fee 2.18 2.74
Tax Audit Fee 0.73 0.70
Statutory Audit Fees 3.27 5.12
GST Audit Fee 1.64 0.00
CSR Activity 60.67 116.35
Amortised Dividend on Preference share 100.42 100.42
Seed Fund Expenses 0.06 0.07

Total 550.14 548.39

CSR activities: KSIDC had taken up various activities under corporate social responsibity during
the current financial year. As per the provisions of Companies Act,2013 the  amount as required to
be spent by the Corporation towards  CSR activities is Rs  62.64 lakhs. The details of the amount
spent during the year is  Rs 60.67 lakhs.  The pending amount of Rs 1.97  lakhs in respect of CSR
budget will be utilized during the financial year 2019-20
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Particulars in cash / yet to be Total
cheque  paid

  (i)  Construction /acquisition of any asset

Construction of 5 toilets in St. Mary’s  School 1020000.00 1020000.00

(ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 0.00

      Free education to girl children 732000.00 Nil 732000.00

Ambedkar District level Charitable Society 39000.00 Nil 39000.00

Kerala Federation of the blind 105000.00

Chief Minister’s Distress Relief Fund 4160430.00 Nil 4160430.00

Cherry/s Tours & Travels - Flood relief 10957.00 Nil 10957.00

6067387.00 Nil 5962387.00

BAD DEBTS :Corporation had written off a sum of Rs. 2.49 lakhs in the current year (Rs 4.43
lakhs in the previous year) as unrecoverable from assisted industrial units on account of loan and
current account balances. As balance in the provision for bad and doubtful debts  was more than
sufficient to cover the bad debts written off, no amount has been charged against the profit and
loss account.

27 EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

Prior Period Income 0.00 0.00
Prior Period Expenses 0.00 0.45

0.00 -0.45

28 INCOME TAX Rs. in Lakhs
2018-19 2017-18

Current  Year Tax 674.83 699.33

Total 674.83 699.33

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.19 31.03.18

No of shares outstanding 3012435.00 3012435
Face Value of one share (Rs) 1000.00 1000
Profit after tax (Rs in lakhs) 3380.95 -499.67
EPS -Basic (in Rs) 112.23 -16.59
Share Application money pending allotment (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Share Application money -Current Liability portion  (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Total (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Equivalent No of Shares 0.00 0.00
Total No. of Shares 3012435.00 3012435.00
EPS-Diluted (in Rs) 112.23 -16.59
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30 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Payment to Auditors: 2018-19

Audit Fees including GST 218000.00
Audit expenses 10900.00
Other services 27250.00

31 Contingent liabilities

Tax Matters- Income tax return filed up to assessment year 2018-19. Assessments completed up
to assessment year 2016-17. Appeals filed by the Corporation is pending before Commissioner
(Appeals) for the assessment years 2006-07 , 2007-08, 2010-11, 2012-13,2013-14, 2014-15 ,2015-
16 and 2016-17 and before ITAT for the assessment year 2012-13 and High court for the Assessment
years  2008-09, 2009-10 , 2010-11  and 2011-12.  Appeals filed by the Corporation and Department
for the assessment years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2006-07 and 2007-08 has been remanded to Assessing
Officer. (Estimated contingent liability excluding interest Rs 556.48  lakhs. From the assessment
hear 1997-98, based on change in Income Tax Act, the Corporation has decided to adopt cash
system of accounting for the purpose of income tax.  Provision for income tax from the assessment
year 1997-98 has been made based on income arrived at as per cash system of accounting.

Taxes under dispute Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Forum where dispute is pending Amount

Income Tax AY 2006-07 CIT(Appeal) 124.71
Income Tax AY 2006-07 High Court 174.27
Income Tax AY 2008-09 High Court 8.38
Income Tax AY2009-10 High Court 11.93
Income Tax AY 2010-11 High Court 10.14
Income Tax AY 2010-11 CIT(Appeal) 208.06
Income Tax AY 2011-12 High Court 9.99
Income Tax AY 2012-13 CIT(Appeal) 9.84
Income Tax AY 2013-14 CIT(Appeal) 10.33
Income Tax AY 2014-15 CIT(Appeal) 16.18
Income Tax AY 2015-16 CIT(Appeal) 13.09
Income Tax AY 2016-17 CIT(Appeal) 15.81

612.74

Service Tax 200.00

Total 812.74

Sales tax: Assessments have been completed up to the year 2001-02.Assessments are not yet
completed for the year 2002-03 and 2003-04.
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32 SEGMENT REPORTING   Rs. in Lakhs

Total Income from Term Lending 2822.46 3027.63
Dividend Income  from Investments 1315.12 987.08

                 Total 4137.58 4014.72

33 Related Party Disclosures:

The company/s related parties principally consist of joint ventures, associated and their subsidiaries.
Payments to Key managerial personnel is also disclosed in the related party disclosure

       Rs. in Lakhs
                                                          As on 31.03.2019

       Party Percentage of Share  Loan
Holding investment Current account

balance

Kerala Venture Capital Fund 46.25 -2.59

INKEL KSIDC PROJECTS LTD. 26% 278.63 Nil

KERALA GAIL GAS LTD 50% 0.50 1.10

Oen India 25% 9.34 1040.17

Nitta Gelatin 31.53% 1364.07

Reva Proteins Ltd Subsidiary of Nitta Gelatin 905.29

Kuttiyadi Coconut Industrial Park Ltd. 2.50

Key Managerial Personnel Capacity Nature of Amount
transaction

Dr M Beena IAS Managing Director Salaries & 16.87
Allowances

Dr Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS Managing Director Salaries & 3.49
Allowances

Ranjith J J CFO Salaries & 15.35
Allowances

Aravindakshan K CFO Salaries & 4.37
Allowances

Suresh Kumar K DGM & CS Salaries & 19.69
Allowances

34 Fair Value Measurement

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to
at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient
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trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and
when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire
period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs
other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the
extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.

                                    Rs in lakhs

   Hierarchy of Valuation Classification  Cost as on Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
31.3.2019 as on as on as on

31.3.2019 31.3.2018  01.04.2017

Level I financial instruments Quoted shares 3970.80     38,568.98     55,017.75  38,591.27

Level II financial instruments Unquoted Shares for which 4948.48 10976.35 38568.98 55017.75
Balance sheet available

Level III financial instruments Unquoted Shares for which 782.26 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance sheet  not available
from 2014

Level III financial instruments Companies under Liquidation 84.60 0.00 0.00 0.00

Level III financial instruments Companies with JV 327.88 327.88 1520.18 1520.176

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group
complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

Regulatory capital-related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated disclosures. The
RBI norms require capital to be maintained at prescribed levels. In accordance with such norms,
Tier I capital of the company comprises of share capital, share premium, reserves and perpetual
debt, Tier II capital comprises of subordinated debt and provision on loans that are not credit-
impaired. There were no changes in the capital management process during the periods presented.

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Annexure to our report of even date

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

     (FRN 001536S)
Sd/-

A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR
 Partner (M.N.024791)
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-DEPOSIT TAKING
NON- BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY AS ON 31.3.2019

(As required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Banking (Non-deposit Accepting or holding)
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue

LIABILITIES  SIDE

1 Loans and advances availed by the non banking financial NIL NIL
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid
a Debentures : Secured NIL NIL

          : Unsecured NIL NIL
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*)

b Deferred Credits NIL NIL
c Term Loans NIL NIL
d Inter-corporate loans and borrowing NIL NIL
e Commercial Paper NIL NIL
f Other Loans (specify nature)

ASSETS  SIDE                                             Amount Outstanding

2 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills
receivables [other than those included in (4) below] :
a Secured 38,887.53
b Unsecured NIL

3 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets NIL
counting towards AFC activities
i Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease

ii Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

iii Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above



K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .

96 Annual Report 2018-2019

4 Break up of investments
Current investments
1 Quoted

i Shares
(a) Equity 625.24
(b) Preference NIL

ii Debentures and bonds NIL
iii Units of mutual funds NIL
iv Government Securities NIL

2 Unquoted
i Shares

(a) Equity 3,151.08
(b) Preference 1,136.20

ii Debentures and Bonds NIL
iii Units of mutual funds NIL
iv Government Securities NIL
v Others Joint Venture  1,701.28

Long term investments
1 Quoted

i Shares
(a) Equity    2,036.50
(b) Preference -

ii Debentures and bonds NIL
iii Units of mutual funds NIL
iv Government Securities NIL
v Others Joint Venture NIL

2 Unquoted
i Shares

(a)  Equity 2599.92
(b)  Preference 116.00

ii Debentures and bonds NIL
iii Units of mutual funds NIL
iv Government Securities NIL
v Others - Joint Venture

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above
Amount net of provisions

Category Secured        Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties

a.  Subsidiaries   -                       -                   -
b.  Companies in same group
c.  Other related parties

2 Other than related parties 21,234.24 - 21,234.24

                Total 21,234.24 - 21,234.24
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6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares
and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

Category                       Market Value /  Book Value
Break up or fair (Net of

value or NAV Provisions)

1 Related Parties
a. Subsidiaries
b Companies in same group
c. Other related parties 1701.28 1655.03

2 Other than related parties 42719.59 7572.61

Total 44420.87 9227.64

7 Other Information
Amount

i Gross Non performing assets
Related Parties
Other than related parties 20234.32

20234.32
ii Net non performing assets

Related Parties 0
Other than related parties 3094.43

iii Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Annexure to our report of even date

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

     (FRN 001536S)
Sd/-

A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR
 Partner (M.N.024791)

Thiruvananthapuram
.2019
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KRISHNAN  RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation Ltd,

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of  Kerala
State Industrial Development Corporation Limited ("the Company") which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss,  (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes In Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
including the Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and other Explanatory Information (Ind AS Financial Statement)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind As Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2019, and its Profit including Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and
its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Annual Financial Statements of KSIDC has been consolidated with two Associate Companies.
M/s OEN Indian Ltd and M/s Nitta Gelatin India Ltd, and two joint ventures, M/s Inkel-
KSIDC Ltd. and M/s Kerala Gail Gas Ltd, respectively for the year 2018-19 as per Ind. AS
27. "Accounting for investment in Associates and Joint Ventures in Consolidated Financial
Statements'. For certification and issue of report on Consolidated Financial Statements, we
have relied on the reports and financial statements of Associates and Joint Ventures issued/
certified by statutory auditors of respective companies.
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2. The comparative financial information of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31-03-2018 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 01-04-2017, included
in these Ind AS financial statements are based on the previously issued Consolidated Financial
Statements of the company, prepared in accordance with the Company's (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, audited by us for the year ended 31-03-2018 and 31-03-2017 as per
our Independent Auditor's Report dated 10-10-2018 and 02-09-2017 respectively, which
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences
in the accounting principles adopted by the company on translation to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us.

3. During the financial year 2018-19 the Kerala Gail Gas Limited has reduced its share capital
by Rs. 23,84,60,000/- and as on 31-03-2019 the share capital is Rs. 1,00,000/- only. As the
company has not started its commercial operations, the Management has considered the
reduction of capital for taking back the excess capital contribution brought in by the
shareholders, so as to return the excess capital lying idle. Hon'ble NCLT has vide order
dated 10-07-18, approved the Reduction of share capital of the Company from 23,85,60,000/
- to Rs. 1,00,000/-. An amount of Rs. 23, 84,60,000/- has been disbursed to the shareholders
of the Company, namely Gail Gas Limited and Kerala State Industrial Development
Corporation Limited, on 20th August, 2018 by way of reduction of Share Capital. As per
the provision of sec 2(22) (d) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 any reduction in capital of a
company to the extent of accumulated reserves up to the date of distribution are to be treated
as deemed dividend. The  accunulated reserves as per the audited accounts for FY 2017-18
is Rs.3,60,94,129/- and the surplus generated up to the period ended 20th  August 2018  is
44,27,257/- both aggregating to Rs. 4,05,21,386/- As per the Company's records, if the tax
on deemed dividend for reduction of capital u/s 2(22)(d) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  was
considered an amount of Rs. 83,31,197/- would have been required to be reduced from the
amount of retained earning and the balances outstanding under retained earnings as on 31st
March 2019 would have been Rs. 2,67,94,386/-

4. In the case of unquoted equity shares of KSIDC valuation is arrived at the weighted average
of values arrived at the following three methods.

a.  Net worth based on percentage of investment
b.  Interest Capitalization method and
c.   Three years average future profits method

Under the net worth method valuation, the 'Percentage of Shareholding'  is calculated by
dividing the cost of shares to KSIDC by the total equity share value of the investee company'
rather than dividing the 'number of shares held by KSIDC by the total number of shares of
the investee company.

However, this method of valuation has been consistently followed.

5. KSIDC is a nodal agency of Goverment of Kerala for implementation of various projects.
The income, expenditure assets and liabilities in respect of these projects are not accounted
as income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the  company. The transactions are routed
through current accounts and the net of the transactions is reflected under 'Other non financial
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liabilities' and 'Other non financial assets.' Accrual  system of accounting has not been
followed in respect of the transactions for  the projects.

6. Note No. 4 regarding non incorporation of Assets and Liabilities of Kerala Construction
Components Ltd in the Books of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matters

a) Computation of provision towards
impairment of loan assets (refer note no.
5 of the accompanying Financial
statements)

As at  31-03-2019, the Company had reported
total impairment allowance of Rs. 17,653.29
lakhs (31 March 2018-Rs. 17,866.25 lakhs).

A significant degree of judgement is required
to determine the timing and amount of
impairment loss allowance to be recognized
with respect to loan assets. Based on our risk
assessment the following are the significant
judgements and estimates that impact
impairment loss allowance:

• Completeness and timing of recognition of
default, in accordance with the prudential
norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification, and provisioning pertaining
to Loan Assets.

• Measurement of provision dependent on
the Probability of Default (PD) and Loss
Given Default (LGD) of each category of

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

The audit procedures performed among others
included.

-Considering  the Companies policies and
processes for NPA identification and
provisioning and assessing compliances with
the RBI norms.

-Understanding evaluating and testing the
design and effectiveness of key controls
around identification of impaired accounts.

- Performing other procedures including
substantive audit procedures covering the
identification of NPAs such as;

• Reading Account Statements and related
information of the borrowers on sample
basis.

• Performing inquiries with Project
department to ascertain if there were
indicators of stress or an occurrence an
event to default in a particular loan account
or any product category which needed to
be considered as NPA.

• Holding discussions with magagement on
sectors where there is perceived credit risk
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loan asset, identification of PD and LGD
involves significant judgements and estimate
related to forward looking information.

Since the identification of NPAs and
providing for Impairment loss allowance
requires significant level of estimation and
given its significance to the overall audit,
we have ascertained the computation of
provision towards impairment of loan assets
as a key audit matter.

(b) Implementation of Ind AS

The Company was required to move
from the Indian GAAP to Ind AS from
1st April 2018, with the effective date
of transition being  1st April, 2017. This
had substantilly changed the financial
reporting framework and accounting
treatment for some of the key Financial
Information, including restating of
corresponding previous year figures.

Following are the Key changes:

1. Interest income and interest expenses
is recognized using effective interest rate
method, while in previous GAAP it was
recognised as per the Principles of
Accounting Standard No.9 and relevant
RBI regulations.

2. Application of expected credit loss
method to assess the impairment on
financial instruments.

3. Fair valuation of financial instruments.

and the steps taken to mitigate the risk to
identified sectors.

-Tested on sample basis the calculation
performed by the management for
impairment loss allowance and the
realization value of assets provided as
security against loans classified as non-
performing for computing the Impairment
Loss Allowance.

-Verifying if the Impairment Loss Allowance
computed as per ECL norms satisfying the
minimum provision requirement as per RBI
regulations.

The audit procedures performed, among
others, included:

-Ensuring reference to relevant Indian
Accounting Standards with respect to the
completeness and accuracy of the
adjustments identified by the management

- Reviewing Internal  Financial Controls,
around the information used for arriving at
the Ind As adjustments and verification and
the base data used for Ind AS adjustments.

Re- computation of journal entries made to
the Indian GAAP figure to give effect of Ind
AS.

Key Observation/finding:

Based on the above procedures performed
we concluded that there are no material
misstatements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the audit report, but does not include the Financial Statements
and our Audit Report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this audit report.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind As
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This Responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting  frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the  accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Reponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance sith SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also;

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to  continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of  misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
the aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work, and to evaluate the effect of any identified mistatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also  provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016  (''the Order''), issued by the
Central  Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, of the
Companies Act, 2013,  we give in the "Annexure A" of Standalone Statement, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are  are in agreement with the books of account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid  Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules issued thereunder.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31,
March 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B" of the Standalone Statement.

g. Matters required to be reported as per directive issued by C&AG u/s 143(5) of the
Companies Act,  is given separately in "Annexure C" of the Standalone Statement.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the imapct of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements-Refer Note 31 to the financial statements;

ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

   (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

Thiruvananthapuram Partner

16-11-2019 Membership No. 024791
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Annexure to our report of even date
For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
     (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

 Partner (M.N.024791)
Thiruvananthapuram
27-09-2019

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2019

Particulars Notes As at As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018  01.04.2017

Rs. in lakhs

I ASSETS
1 Financial Assets

a Cash and cash equivalents 2 2004.68 4322.01 13215.23
b Bank balances other than above 3 19370.04 15130.71 11666.97
d Receivables 4

   (i) Trade Receivable
   (ii) Other Receivable 228.01 207.67 223.95

e Loans 5 21234.24 20445.73  21,414.30
f Investments 6 50190.44 66794.14 48,484.00
g Other financial assets 7 1616.65 1743.31 1244.75

Sub-Total 94644.06 108643.57 96249.20
2 NonFinancial Assets

a Inventories
b Current tax assets (net) 8 1770.41 6842.97 6041.08
c Deferred Tax (net) 14
d Property Plant & Equipment 9 351.92 350.84 364.82
e Capital work in progress 10 135.54 135.54 135.54
f Other intangible Assets 9 8.01 1.86 2.55
g Other non financial assets 11 74.32 377.92 810.95

Sub-Total 2340.21 7709.13 7354.95
TOTAL ASSETS 96984.26 116352.70 103604.15

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES

1 Financial liabilities
a) Derivative financial instruments
b) Payables 12

(i)     Trade Payable
   (a)  total outstanding to MSME 0.00 0.00 0
   (b)  total outstanding  to other  creditors 58.61 92.85 109.49
(ii)     Other  Payable
   (a)  total outstanding to MSME
   (b)  total outstanding  to other  creditors 101.56 40.37 89.23

c Borrowings (other than debt securities) 0.00 0.00 2600.00
d Other financial Liabilities

Sub-Total 160.17 133.22 2798.72

2 Non Financial liabilities
a Provisions 13 3590.79 9054.46 8352.31
b Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15231.15 20644.65 14361.82
c Other non financial liabilities 15 1860.79 3317.39 6233.65

Sub Total 20682.73 33016.49 28947.78
EQUITY

a Equity share capital 16 30124.35 30124.35 30124.35
b Other equity 17 46017.01 53078.63 41733.30

Sub-Total 76141.36 83202.98 71857.65
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 96984.26 116352.70 103604.15

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2019

For the Year ended  For the Year ended
           Particulars Notes  31-3-2019            31-3-2018

Rs. in lakhs

I Revenue from Operations
i Interest Income 18 2822.46 3027.63
ii Dividend Income 19 1315.12 987.08
iii Rental Income 0.00 0.00
iv Fee and commission Income 20 0.00 0.00
v Net gain on fair value change 0.00 0.00
vi Net gain on derecognition of financial 25 212.96 0.00

instruments under amortised cost
vii Others

I Total Revenue from Operation 4350.55 4014.72
II Other Income 21 1388.66 1351.33
III Total Income ( I + II ) 5739.21 5366.05
IV Expenses

i Finance Cost 22 0.00 0.00
ii Fee and commission Expenses 0.00 0.00
iii Net loss on fair value changes 0.00 0.00
iv Net loss on derecognition of financial 25 0.00 3036.00

instruments under amortised cost
v Impairment of financial instrument 0.00 0.00
vi Employee Benefit Expenses 23 889.78 1028.75
vii Depreciation, amortization and impairment 24 34.39 375.58
viii Other Expenses 26 550.14 548.39

Total Expenses 1474.31 4988.72
V Profit before exceptional  items and tax (III-IV) 4264.90 377.33
VI Exceptional items 27 -0.45
VII Profit before Tax (V-VI) 4264.90 376.88
VIII      Tax expenses

     1) Current Tax 28 674.83 699.33
     2) Deferred Tax 14 209.12 177.22
Total Tax Expenses 883.95 876.55

IX Profit (Loss) for the year from 3380.95 -499.67
continuing operations (VII-VIII)

X Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (OCI)
(A)   (i)  Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
 -    Remeasurement gain/(loss)on defined benefit plan -9.80 0.00
 -    Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments through OCI -16128.33 17697.67
       (ii) Income tax impact thereon 5661.10 -6124.81
(B) (i)   Item that will  be reclassified to profit and loss
            Profit or loss from Assoicates 29 313.90 368.85
            Profit or loss from Joint Venture 29 -21.14 155.35
       (ii) Income tax impact thereon
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of taxes  -10184.27 12097.06

XI XI Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (IX-X) -6803.32 11597.39
XII XII Earning per equity share 30

    (1)Basic - Continuing Operations Rs 112.23 -16.59
    (2)Diluted - Continuing Operations Rs 112.23 -16.59

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

Annexure to our report of even date
For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
     (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

 Partner (M.N.024791)

Thiruvananthapuram
27-09-2019
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A Profit Before Tax-and-extra-ordinary-items 4264.90
Add: Depreciation on Fixed Assets 34.39

(profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets 0.03
Less Unwinding Income charged in P& L a/c 98.72

Operating Profit before changes in Operating Assets 4200.61

Adjustment for Change in  Operating Assets

(Increase )/Decrease in Loans & Advances (800.46)
(Increase )/Decrease in Receivables (20.33)
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 126.66
(Increase )/Decrease in Current Tax 5073.17
(Increase )/Decrease in other  Advances (0.25)
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Non Financial Assets Assets 303.60
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Liabilities & Provisions (5466.76)
Increase /(Decrease ) in Payables 26.94
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Other Non financial Liability (1456.93)
Increase /(Decrease ) in  Other financial Liability

Changes In operating assets and liabilities (2214.36)
Income Tax Paid ( Net of Refund) 650.00

Net Cash From Operating Activities 1336.25

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of (Net of sale) of  Fixed Assets (41.68)
Addition on Capital Work in Progress- Various Projects 0.00
(Increase) /Decrease  in  Share investments 835.30
Cash Flow from Investing Activities 793.62

C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase in Equity Capital 0.00
Increase in Borrowings 0.00
Bad Debts Writeoff (2.59)
Dividend and Tax Thereon (205.28)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (207.87)
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1922.00
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the Beginning 19452.72
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the End 21374.73

Rs. in Lakhs
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2019

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Annexure to our report of even date

For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

     (FRN 001536S)
Sd/-

A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR
 Partner (M.N.024791)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

Thiruvananthapuram
27-09-2019
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF  CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Kerala State Industrial Development Corporation Limited is a company incorporated in
India  under the provisions of  the Companies’ Act, 1956.  Formed in 1961 with the objective
of promoting, stimulating, financing and facilitating the development of large and medium
scale industries in Kerala, KSIDC acts as a promotional agency involved in catalysing the
development of physical and social infrastructure required for constant growth of industry
in the State.KSIDC also acts as a nodal agency for implementation of various projects of
Government of Kerala. It is  a Public Financial Institution within the meaning of Sec 2 clause
72  of the Companies Act , 2013and is also registered as a Non -Banking Financial Company
under Sec 45- IA of the RBI Act,1934.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared  in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard   (referred as “Ind AS”) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 . These consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 are the first financials with
comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. For all previous periods including the year ended
31st March, 2018, the Company had prepared its  consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under companies (Accounting Standard)
Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (referred to as ‘Previous
GAAP’) used for statutory reporting requirement

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st
April, 2017 being the date of transition to Ind AS.

b Basis of Preparation and presentation of financial statements

Preparation and presentation of consolidated  financials statements has been done  as per the
format prescribed under Division III of schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, for Non -
Banking Financial Companies (NBFC) that required to comply with Ind AS . However,
previous year figures are regrouped and recasted, wherever necessary.These  consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting polices below. All amounts disclosed in the financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs in compliance with Schedule
III of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

The Consolidated Financial statements comprise the financial statement of company and its
controlled structured entities (collectively known as ‘the Group’) as at 31 March 2019. The
Group consolidates an entity when it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is
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exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.Generally, there is a
presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee- Rights arising from
other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights- The size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

Consolidated financial statement is prepared on equity basis . Carrying cost of investment is
computed based on percentage of accumulated profit and the difference between the carrying
amount and investment is classified under capital reserves. Current year profit of associates
and joint venture are rooted through profit and loss account under other comprehensive income

c Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of  assets, liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of this financial statement and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the year presented. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
in future periods.

d Property, plant and equipment

On adoption to Ind As, the Corporation had applied for the one time transition exemption of
considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2017 as the deemed cost as
permitted by Ind AS 101 ‘First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation
less accumulated impairment, if any. The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price,
freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the management.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only
if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset and cost can be measured reliably.
Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged  at the rates  prescribed under Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013. Prorata depreciation has been charges in respect of assets acquired/
disposed off during the year.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows-
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Asset Class Useful Life

Buildings 60 Years

Electrical Fittings 10 Years

Furniture & Fittings 10 Years

Water Tank& Pump Set 10 Years

Office Equipments 5 Years

Computer 3 Years

Solar Based power Systems 15 Years

Intangibles 3 Years

Motor Car & Cycles 8 Years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in financial Statements at residual value. The
useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Change in expected useful lives are
treated as change in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work in progress until construction and installation
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use

e Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.
Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment if any.

Amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over estimated useful lives of the intangible assets

f Impairment, if any, in the value of fixed  assets will be provided for in the year in which it is
reckoned.

g Financial instruments

(i) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.Intitially, a financial instrument is
recognised at its fair value. Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial instruments are recognised in determining the carrying amount, if it is not classified
as at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured
according to the category in which they are classified. Financial instruments are recognised
on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets other than equity instruments are classified into categories: financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity
instruments are classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other
comprehensive income.Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at fair vale
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities
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Financial assets at amortised cost: Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise
on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
such assets in order to collect such contractual cash flows are classified in this category.
Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
any impairment losses

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets having contractual terms
that give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are classified
in this category.

These include financial assets that are equity instruments and are designated as such upon
initial recognition irrevocably. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes
therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss
when the right to receive payment has been established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:Financial assets are measured at fair
value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value  through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:These are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss

Other financial liabilities: These are measured at carrying cost

ii) Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction
price. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial
instruments that are quoted in active markets using the quoted prices  and using valuation
techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method
and other valuation models.

iii) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the company recognises its retained interest in the asset an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.Financial liabilities are derecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired
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iv) Impairment of financial assets

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that
is at amortised cost. Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is measured at an amount
equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as the difference between their
carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for
recognising impairment loss on financial assets. The ECL allowance is based on the credit
losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime
ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a
collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.
The Company has grouped its loan portfolio into Term Loan, Working capital loan , Corporate
Loan and short term loan.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in
credit risk at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities having different past due
status, then the highest days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities
of that borrower.
Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as
described below:

Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired
upon origination are classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances
and advances up to 30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2
All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as
significant increase in credit risk.
Stage 3
All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this
stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net
of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as
default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired. If an event (for eg. any
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natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL methodology,
the Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3 accordingly.

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

ECL is a product of exposure at default (EAD), probability of default (PD) and loss given by
default (LAD), as outlined below :Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is
an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.Exposure at Default(EAD) - The Exposure at Default
is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss
Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

v)  Off setting of financial instrumentsFinancial assets and financial liabilities are off set
and the net amount is reported in financial statements if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to off set the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Accounting treatment for various Mega Projects:

The 301 st Board of KSIDC held on 27.10.2016 decided to form Special Purpose Vehicles,
separately for implementing and managing the various Mega projects being implemented
by the Corporation. Accordingly the Corporation had obtained expert opinion from reputed
practicing Chartered Accountants and as advised, the expenditure incurred on implementation
of such projects had been setoff against the budget allocations received from Government
towards such projects and only the net balances recorded.

As per the decision of the 300th Board meeting  all expenditure incurred towards setting up
and maintaining business incubators are allocated against the income generated there from
and the excess expenditure over income generated claimed from the Government.

h Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates
Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates are measured at cost in accordance with Ind
AS 27-Separate Financial Statements.

i Government Grants
Grant received from Government/(s) for any specific purpose will be adjusted against the
expenses incurred for the purpose for which it is granted and any amount of such grant
pending  utilization, will be shown under the head Government Grant under  other Current
Liabilities and will be adjusted against the expenses as and when incurred.

Non-specific Government Grants received, if any, will be recognized as income on a
systematic basis in the profit and loss statement over the periods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to compensate as envisaged in Accounting
Standard. During this period company has not received any non-specific Government grants.
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j Foreign currency transactions:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”), which is the functional
currency and presentation currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions are
recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

k Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less) cheques on hand and balances with banks. They are held
for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments.

l Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows and the risk specific to the liability

m Contingent Liability:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision is made.

n Sitting fees payable to Directors are treated on cash basis.

o Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on
Earnings per share. Basic EPS iscalculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders after giving impact of dilutive
potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of shares and  dilutive
potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

p Revenue Recognition:

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments is applicable)
is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of goods and services tax (‘GST’) and amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers outlines a single comprehensive
model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes
previous revenue recognition guidance found within Ind AS.

Ind AS 115 sets out a five - step model as outlined below :-

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
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promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Specific policies for the Company’s different source of revenue are as below

The Corporation recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the effective interest rate
includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the contract. Transaction costs
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset.
The Corporation recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount
of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial
assets , the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment
loss of financial assets at EIR. If financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Corporation
reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.”

Dividend on equity investments are recognised in the statement of Profit or loss when the
right to receive payment has been established. Dividend from other investment is recognised
on cash basis

q Employee Benefit :

(i)    Defined benefit plan

Gratuity  :The Company provides for gratuity under a defined benefit plan covering eligible
employees. The gratuity  plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employees’ salary and the tenure of employment with the company. Liabilities of
gratuity and leave encashment benefits have been determined based on actuarial valuation,
as per the AS 15 (revised). Since it is fully funded, no long term provision is required.

(ii)   Defined Contribution plan: Provident Fund and Pension Fund:

Provident Fund deducted from employees’ salaries and a portion of the 12% employer’s
matching contribution are transferred every month to KSIDC Employees Provident Fund
Trust which is an exempted establishment formed under Sec 17(1)(a) of the Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The said trust manages the funds
within the provisions of the EPF Act and rules. All employees who joined after 15.11.1995
are covered under  the Employees  Pension Scheme 1995 and others under the (earlier)
Employees Pension Scheme  1971.The employees who had joined earlier to15.11.1995 but
are not covered under  the Employees  Pension Scheme 1995 had approached the court for
permitting them to exercise the option for pension. The court is yet to pronounce judgement
on the issue. In accordance with the recent amendments in the EPF pension rules, employees
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who joined after 01.09.2014 and drawing a salary of more than Rs 15000/- month are not
covered under the pension scheme.

Eligible employees receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan .
Out of the 12% matching contribution made by the employer towards EPF, 8.33% (of basic
salary plus DA ) subject to limits/rules as prescribed from time to time, is transferred to this
Provident Fund  and  the balance to the Government administered pension fund. The rate  at
which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being administered by
the Government. The Company  has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between
the return from the investments of the trust and the notified interest rate.

(iii) Other Employment benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis
of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method was applied to assess the Plan liabilities owing to all
forms of admissible exit and accumulation of the benefits.  The estimated liabilities have
been  funded through SBI Life and ICICI Prudential Life in the case of leave salary and
through SBI Life for Gratuity respectively. The short fall in funding, if any, is  included
under current liabilities.

(iii) Remeasurement gains and losses

Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the
return on assets related to retirement benefit plans, are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurement recorded in other
comprehensive income is not reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Actuarial gains and losses relating to long term employee benefits are recognised in the
statement of Profit and loss in the period in which they arise

(iv) Measurement date

The measurement date of retirement plans is 31st March..

Collateral Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as movable and immovable assets, guarantees, etc.
To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data and external valuers for valuing
financial assets held as collateral.

In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company may take possession of
properties or other assets in its retail portfolio. Receipts on loan account relating to (i) approval
of One Time Settlement cases by the Board (ii) after the initiation of RR proceedings and
(iii) from sale proceeds of companies taken over u/s 29 of the SFC’s Act, are accounted first
as principal receipts and the excess, if any, over principal as interest receipts. If the realization
is not sufficient to cover the principal, the shortfall is treated as bad, even though coercive
action against the loan guarantors is in force.
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r Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax except:
i.   When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
ii.   When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

s Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes.

Current income taxes are determined based on taxable income and applicable tax rules.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases.Deferred tax assets are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

t Segment Reporting
Operating segment is a component of an entity whose operating results are regularly reviewed
by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is
available. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the managing director.
The company is engaged mainly in the NBFC business. Besides lending business company is
also having investments in various companies. Thus, in the context of Ind AS 108-operating
segments reporting have identified two reportable segment - Lending and Investments

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole
and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated
revenue /expenses / assets /liabilities”, if any.

u Recent accounting pronouncements - Standards issued but not yet effective
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116
Leases, under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is
applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract
i.e., the lessee and the lessor. The standard requies lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets
(e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. As the Company does not have any material leases, the adoption of this
standard is not likely to have a material impact in its Financial Statements.
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2 Cash and cash equivalents                                 Rs. in Lakhs

As at As at As at
31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Cash on hand  0.23             0.01 0.00
Current account with bank (includes treasury 2,004.46      4,322.00 13215.23
balance of Rs 0.97 lakhs ( P.Y Rs 868.96 lakhs)
Cheques on Hand

Postage & Revenue stamp  -                 -

2004.68 4322.01 13215.23

3 Other Bank Balances
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Earmarked balance with bank  -                 -
Fixed Deposit 15,087.07    11,285.44 8594.10
Short Term deposit  (with up to 12 months maturity) 4,282.97      3,845.27 3072.87

19370.04 15130.71 11666.97

4 Receivables
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Secured, considered Good 1.23 1.11              32.69
Unsecured  Considered good 138.17 123.47           113.37
Doubtful 87.04 81.34              76.87
Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors and other officers
Travel Advance To Chairman 1.48 1.46 -0.03
Advance to Staff 0.08 0.28 1.04

228.01 207.67 223.95

Current account dues of the companies are considered in the receivables. Book value is considered as
the fair value. Current account dues of the companies which is having outstanding loan balance the
classification is done based on loan status. Unsecured considered good includes Rs 157lakhs due from
KCCL



K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .

120 Annual Report 2018-2019

L
o

a
n

s
R

s.
 in

 L
ak

hs

(C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r)
(P

re
vi

ou
s  

Y
ea

r)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 A

s 
on

 0
1.

04
.2

01
7

A
t F

ai
r V

al
e

Su
b

A
m

or
tis

ed
A

t F
ai

r v
al

ue
s

Su
b

    
A

m
or

tis
ed

A
t F

ia
r V

al
e

su
b

to
ta

l
to

ta
l

 to
ta

l
A

m
or

tis
ed

Th
ro

-
 T

hr
o-

D
es

i-
T

hr
ou

gh
Th

ro
-

D
es

ig
-

Th
ro

- 
T

hr
o-

 D
es

-
C

os
t

ug
h

 p
ro

fi
t

gn
at

-
ot

he
r

ug
h

na
te

d
ug

h
ug

h
  i

gn
a-

O
th

er
or

ed
 a

t
C

om
pr

e-
pr

of
it

at
 fa

ir
ot

he
r

 p
ro

fi
t

te
d

C
om

p-
lo

ss
fa

r
T

ot
al

he
ns

iv
e

or
va

lu
e

T
ot

al
co

m
-

or
fa

ir
T

ot
al

re
he

n-
va

lu
e

In
co

m
e

lo
ss

th
ro

ug
h

pr
eh

-
lo

ss
 v

alu
e

si
ve

th
ro

-
pr

of
it

en
siv

e
 th

ro
-

In
co

m
e

ug
h

or
 lo

ss
in

-
ug

h
pr

of
it

co
m

e
pr

o-
or

fi
t

lo
ss

or lo
ss

1
2

3
4

 5
=2

+
6=

1+
5

7
8

9
10

11
=8

7
8

9
10

 1
1=

8
12

=
3+

4
+9

+1
0

12
=7

+1
1

  +
9+

10
7+

11

(A
) 

L
oa

n
s

B
ill

s 
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

an
d 

B
ill

s
D

is
co

un
te

d
L

oa
ns

 re
pa

ya
bl

e 
on

 D
em

an
d

T
ea

m
 L

oa
ns

38
88

7.
53

  3
88

87
.5

33
38

,3
11

.9
8

38
,3

11
.9

8 
  3

6,
24

4.
55

36
24

4.
55

03
L

ea
si

ng
Fa

ct
or

in
g

O
th

er
s

T
ot

al
38

88
7.

53
38

88
7.

53
 3

8,
31

1.
98

  3
8,

31
1.

98
  3

6,
24

4.
55

36
,2

44
.5

5
Le

ss
:Im

pa
irm

en
t lo

ss
 al

lo
w

an
ce

17
65

3.
29

0
17

65
3.

29
   1

7,
86

6.
25

   
   

-
  1

7,
86

6.
25

  1
4,

83
0.

25
0

14
,8

30
.2

5
T

ot
al

 N
et

 (
A

)
 

21
,2

34
.2

4
0 

  
  

  
  

  
-

0
  

  
-

 2
1,

23
4.

24
 

20
,4

45
.7

3 
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

  
  

  
 -

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

-
  

20
,4

45
.7

3 
21

,4
14

.3
0

0
0

0
0

21
47

5.
48

(B
)

Se
cu

re
d 

by
 ta

ng
ib

le
 a

nd
38

88
7.

53
38

88
7.

53
38

31
1.

98
38

31
1.

98
36

24
4.

55
36

24
4.

55
in

ta
ng

ib
le

 a
ss

et
s

C
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

B
an

k/
G

ov
er

nm
en

t G
ua

ra
nt

ee
U

ns
ec

ur
ed

T
ot

al
38

88
7.

53
38

88
7.

53
38

31
1.

98
38

31
1.

98
36

24
4.

55
36

24
4.

55
Le

ss
:Im

pa
irm

en
t l

os
s a

llo
w

an
ce

17
65

3.
29

17
65

3.
29

17
86

6.
25

17
86

6.
25

14
83

0.
25

14
83

0.
25

T
ot

al
 N

et
 (

B
)

21
23

4.
24

21
23

4.
24

20
44

5.
73

20
44

5.
73

21
41

4.
30

21
41

4.
30

©
 L

oa
n

s 
in

 I
n

d
ia

Pu
bl

ic
 S

ec
to

r
O

th
er

s
38

88
7.

53
38

88
7.

53
38

31
1.

98
38

31
1.

98
36

24
4.

55
36

24
4.

55
T

ot
al

38
88

7.
53

38
88

7.
53

38
31

1.
98

38
31

1.
98

36
24

4.
55

36
24

4.
55

Le
ss

: I
m

pa
irm

en
t l

os
s a

llo
w

an
ce

17
65

3.
29

17
65

3.
29

17
86

6.
25

17
86

6.
25

14
83

0.
25

14
83

0.
25

T
ot

al
 N

et
 ©

21
23

4.
24

21
23

4.
24

20
44

5.
73

20
44

5.
73

21
41

4.
30

21
41

4.
30



Annual Report  2018-2019 121

K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E LO P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .
E

C
L

 M
at

ri
x 

as
 o

n
 1

.4
.2

01
7

R
s 

in
 l

ak
hs

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

S
ta

ge
 I

S
ta

ge
 I

I
S

ta
ge

 I
II

N
o 

D
ue

1-
30

 d
ay

s
31

-6
0 

da
ys

  
 6

1-
90

 d
ay

s
91

-4
56

 d
ay

s
M

or
e 

th
an

M
or

e 
th

an
M

or
e 

th
an

L
os

s 
as

se
t

pa
st

 d
ue

 p
as

t 
du

e
 p

as
t 

du
e

 p
as

t 
du

e
4

5
7

-8
2

2
d

ay
s

82
3 

da
ys

 t
o

 1
18

8 
da

ys
11

88
 d

ay
s

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

1
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
T

ot
al

P
ri

nc
ip

al
  

15
,2

28
.3

6
  

  
  

 4
84

.0
0

  
  

  
 1

09
.1

5
  

 1
,1

18
.6

7
  

 5
,5

63
.8

4
  

  
  

  
51

6.
89

  
  

  
 1

,7
63

.6
5

  
11

,1
58

.0
8

  
  

  
  

36
0.

87
  

36
,3

03
.5

2

In
te

re
st

 A
rr

ea
r

  
  

  
  

 1
2.

79
  

  
  

  
  

 3
.6

4
  

  
  

  
  

 1
.6

4
  

  
  

  
 8

0.
25

  
  

  
  

  
98

.3
2

T
ot

al
 A

m
ou

nt
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

1
5

,2
2

8
.3

6
  

  
  

 4
96

.8
0

  
  

  
 1

12
.8

0
  

 1
,1

20
.3

1
  

 5
,6

44
.0

9
  

  
  

  
51

6.
89

  
  

  
 1

,7
63

.6
5

  
11

,1
58

.0
8

  
  

  
  

36
0.

87
  

36
,4

01
.8

4
E

C
L

 t
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d

E
C

L
  

  
  

  
41

8.
78

  
  

  
  

 1
3.

66
  

  
  

  
  

 3
.1

0
  

  
  

  
 3

0.
81

  
  

  
 5

64
.4

1
  

  
  

  
51

6.
89

  
  

  
 1

,7
63

.6
5

  
11

,1
58

.0
8

  
  

  
  

36
0.

87
  

14
,8

30
.2

5

E
C

L
 M

at
ri

x 
as

 o
n

 3
1.

03
.2

01
8

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

S
ta

ge
 I

S
ta

ge
 I

I
S

ta
ge

 I
II

N
o 

D
ue

1-
30

 d
ay

s
31

-6
0 

da
ys

  
 6

1-
90

 d
ay

s
91

-4
56

 d
ay

s
M

or
e 

th
an

M
or

e 
th

an
M

or
e 

th
an

L
os

s 
as

se
t

pa
st

 d
ue

 p
as

t 
du

e
 p

as
t 

du
e

 p
as

t 
du

e
4

5
7

-8
2

2
d

ay
s

82
3 

da
ys

 t
o

 1
18

8 
da

ys
11

88
 d

ay
s

2.
75

%
2.

75
 %

2.
75

%
2.

75
%

1
0

%
1

0
0

%
 1

00
%

1
0

0
%

1
0

0
%

T
ot

al

P
ri

nc
ip

al
  

  
  

16
,1

56
.2

0
  

18
60

.9
1

  
 3

,2
79

.9
5

  
  

 4
,1

06
.9

4
  

  
  

51
5.

59
  

12
,0

50
.8

0
  

  
  

  
35

5.
53

  
38

,3
25

.9
1

In
te

re
st

 A
rr

ea
r

  
  

  
  

 5
.4

9
  

  
  

 1
37

.8
1

  
  

  
  

14
3.

30

T
ot

al
 A

m
ou

nt
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

1
6

,1
5

6
.2

0
 1

86
6.

39
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
 3

,4
17

.7
7

  
  

 4
,1

06
.9

4
  

  
  

  
  

51
5.

59
  

12
,0

50
.8

0
  

  
  

  
35

5.
53

  
38

,4
69

.2
1

E
C

L
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d

E
C

L
  

  
  

  
44

4.
30

  
  

  
  

51
.3

3
-

  
34

1.
78

  
  

 4
,1

06
.9

4
  

  
  

  
  

51
5.

59
  

12
,0

50
.8

0
  

  
  

  
35

5.
53

  
17

,8
66

.2
5

E
C

L
 M

at
ri

x 
as

 o
n

 3
1.

03
.2

01
9

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

S
ta

ge
 I

S
ta

ge
 I

I
S

ta
ge

 I
II

N
o 

D
ue

1-
30

 d
ay

s
31

-6
0 

da
ys

  
 6

1-
90

 d
ay

s
91

-4
56

 d
ay

s
M

or
e 

th
an

M
or

e 
th

an
M

or
e 

th
an

L
os

s 
as

se
t

pa
st

 d
ue

 p
as

t 
du

e
 p

as
t 

du
e

 p
as

t 
du

e
4

5
7

-8
2

2
d

ay
s

82
3 

da
ys

 t
o

 1
18

8 
da

ys
11

88
 d

ay
s

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

1
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
1

0
0

%
T

ot
al

P
ri

nc
ip

al
  

17
,1

19
.7

2
  

 1
,5

25
.2

4
  

 3
,4

52
.9

7
  

  
 2

,3
82

.8
7

  
  

  
 2

,1
74

.9
5

  
11

,9
09

.1
5

  
  

  
  

31
4.

39
  

38
,8

79
.2

8

In
te

re
st

 A
rr

ea
r

  
  

  
  

 2
3.

92
  

  
  

 1
32

.4
4

  
  

  
  

15
6.

36

T
ot

al
 A

m
ou

nt
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

1
7

,1
1

9
.7

2
  

 1
,5

49
.1

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

 3
,5

85
.4

1
  

  
 2

,3
82

.8
7

  
  

  
 2

,1
74

.9
5

  
11

,9
09

.1
5

  
  

  
  

31
4.

39
  

39
,0

35
.6

4
E

C
L

 t
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d

E
C

L
  

  
  

  
47

0.
79

  
  

  
  

 4
2.

60
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

 3
58

.5
4

  
  

 2
,3

82
.8

7
  

  
  

 2
,1

74
.9

5
  

11
,9

09
.1

5
  

  
  

  
31

4.
39

  
17

,6
53

.2
9



K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .

122 Annual Report 2018-2019

At
 F

air
 V

alu
e

Am
or

tis
ed

Co
st

Th
ro

ug
h

Ot
he

r
Co

m
pr

e-
he

ns
iv

e
In

co
m

e

Th
ro

ug
h

Pr
ift

or
 L

os
sDe

sig
na

ted
at 

fai
r

Va
lue

thr
ou

gh
the

pr
o

fit 
or

lo
ss

Su
b 

tot
al

Ot
he

rs
To

ta
l

Am
or-

tis
ed

Co
st

Th
ro

ug
h

Ot
he

r
Co

mp
re

-
he

ns
iv

e
In

co
m

e

Th
ro

-
ug

h
Pr

of
it

or Lo
ss

De
sig

na
ted

atf
air

Va
lue

thr
ou

gh
the

pr
ofi

t
orl

os
s

Ot
he

rs
Am

or-
tis

ed
Co

st
Th

ro
ug

h
Ot

he
r

Co
mp

re
-

he
ns

iv
e

In
co

m
e

Th
ro

-
ug

h
Pr

of
it

or Lo
ss

De
sig

na
ted

atf
air

Va
lue

thr
ou

gh
the

pr
ofi

t
orl

os
s

Su
b t

ota
l

At
 th

e F
air

 Va
lue

(C
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r)
(P

re
vio

us
 y

ea
r)

As
 o

n 
1-

4-
20

17

Su
bt

ot
al

At
 F

air
 v

alu
e

To
tal

1
2

3
4

5=
2+

3+
4

6
7=

1+
5+

6
8

9
10

11
12

=9
+

13
14

=8
+

8
9

10
11

12
=9

+
13

14
=8

+
10

+1
1

12
+1

3
10

+1
1

12
+1

3

6 
   

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

(R
s.

 i
n 

la
kh

s)

Mu
tua

l F
un

ds

Go
ve

rn
me

nt 
se

cu
rit

ies

Ot
he

r a
pp

rov
ed

 se
cu

ritie
s

De
bt 

se
cu

rit
ies

Eq
uit

y 
Ins

tru
me

nts
41

,71
9.5

5
41

71
9.5

5
41

71
9.5

5
57

52
2.4

3
 5

75
22

.43
57

52
2.4

3
39

82
4.7

5
39

82
4.7

5
39

82
4.7

5

Su
bs

idi
ar

ies
0.0

0
0.0

0
0.0

0
0.0

0
0

0.0
0

As
so

cia
te

s
0.0

0
44

51
.30

44
51

.30
0.0

0
41

37
.40

41
37

.40
0

37
68

.54
37

68
.54

Jo
int

 V
en

tur
es

0.0
0

30
19

.55
30

19
.55

0.0
0

42
32

.99
42

32
.99

0
40

77
.64

40
77

.64

Oth
ers

 (P
ref

ere
nc

e 
sh

are
)

10
00

.04
10

00
.04

10
00

.04
90

1.3
3

90
1.3

3
90

1.3
3

81
3.0

7
81

3.0
7

81
3.0

7

To
ta

l
 4

1,7
19

.55
  1

,00
0.0

4  
    

    
 - 

  4
2,7

19
.59

   
7,4

70
.85

   
 50

,19
0.4

4
    

   -
  5

7,5
22

.43
90

1.3
3

    
 - 

 5
8,4

23
.76

  8
,37

0.3
8 

66
,79

4.1
4

    
 - 

 3
9,8

24
.75

  8
13

.07
    

    
- 

  4
0,6

37
.82

  7
,84

6.1
8

 4
8,4

84
.00

Ov
er

se
as

 In
ve

stm
en

ts

Inv
es

tm
en

ts 
in 

Ind
ia

41
71

9.5
5

10
00

.04
0.0

0
42

71
9.5

9
74

70
.85

50
19

0.4
4

0.0
0

57
52

2.4
3

90
1.

33
0.0

0
  5

84
23

.76
83

70
.38

66
79

4.1
4

0.0
0

39
82

4.7
5

81
3.

07
0.0

0
40

63
7.8

2
78

46
.18

48
48

4.0
0

To
ta

l
41

71
9.5

5
10

00
.04

0.0
0

42
71

9.5
9

74
70

.85
50

19
0.4

4
0.0

0
57

52
2.4

3
90

1.3
3

0.0
0

  5
84

23
.76

83
70

.38
66

79
4.1

4
0.0

0
39

82
4.7

5
81

3.0
7

0.0
0

40
63

7.8
2

78
46

.18
48

48
4.0

0

Le
ss

: I
mp

air
me

nt
los

s 
all

ow
an

ce

To
ta

l
41

71
9.5

5
10

00
.04

0.0
0

42
71

9.5
9

74
70

.85
50

19
0.4

4
0.0

0
57

52
2.4

3
90

1.3
3

0.0
0

58
42

3.7
6

83
70

.38
66

79
4.1

4
0.0

0
39

82
4.7

5
81

3.0
7

0.0
0

40
63

7.8
2

78
46

.18
48

48
4.0

0

Ot
he

rs

To
ta

l



Annual Report  2018-2019 123

K E R A L A  S TAT E  I N D U S T R I A L  D E V E LO P M E N T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L T D .

                                                                                               Rs in lakhs

Name of the Company Face No. of At Cost At Cost At Cost
Value  Shares  31.03.2019 31.03.2018 01.04.2017

Quoted Equity Investments
Apollo Tyres Ltd. 1 5000000 1371.25 1371.25 1371.25
BPCL (Including Bonus shares of 296293) 10 1777758 33.34 33.34 33.34
Cochin Minerals & Rutiles Ltd. 10 1050000 105.00 105.00 105.00
Forbes & Company 10 30363 14.80 14.80 14.80
Gokak Textiles Limited 10 15181 9.49 9.49 9.49
Geojit BNP Paribas 1 20000000 50.00 50.00 50.00
(including 1500000 bonus shares)
Indsil Hydropower Ltd. 10 1054166 63.25 63.25 63.25
Patspin India Ltd. 10 2490000 249.00 249.00 249.00
Philips Carbon Black Ltd 10 467900 140.37 140.37 140.37
Eastern Treads Ltd. 10 615000 61.50 61.50 61.50
IDBI Bank Ltd ( incl 53520 bonus shares) 10 142720 115.96 115.96 115.96
PTL Enterprises 2 1500000 30.00 30.00 30.00
Artemis Global Life Sciences 1500000
(Previous PTL Projects LTD bonus
Shares of 1500000 nos)
Rubfilla International 5 2736000 342.00 342.00 342.00
Accel Transmatic Systems India 10 5824 0.78 0.78 0.78
BST Ltd. 10 550000 55.00 55.00 55.00
Victory Paper & Boards Ltd 10 200000 20.00 20.00 20.00

                                        Total - A 2661.74 2661.74 2661.74

Unquoted Investments (Equity shares)

ULCC IT Infrastructure (P) Ltd. 100 6553000 655.30 655.30 655.30
Invest India 100 500 0.50 0.50 0.50
India Middle East Broadcasting 10 3630000 363.00 363.00 363.00
Kannur International Airport Ltd 100 10000 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Kerala Cashew Board 1000 30000 300.00
ATI Ltd 10 250000 50.00 50.00 50.00
BPL Telecom Ltd. 10 198000 5.94 5.94 5.94
(including 138600 Bonus Shares)
Cheraman Financial Services 10 3670000 367.00 310.00 310.00
Cochin International Airport 10 5000000 900.00 900.00 900.00
Green Land Paper Mills Ltd 10 247500 24.75 24.75 24.75
InKel Limited 10000 6000 600.00 600.00 600.00
Integrated Rubian Exports 10 300000 30.00 30.00 30.00
Kerala Enviro Infrastructure 10 999000 99.90 99.90 99.90
Kerala Industrial and Technical Consultancy
Organisation (Bonus Share 1:49- 3871
Nos Bonus Shares) 1000 3950 0.79 0.79 0.79
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Loop Mobile (Including 1400 Nos) 10 2000 0.06 0.06 0.06
Bonus Shares
Profit Core Pipes Ltd. 10 50000 5 5 5
State Farming Corpn. Of Kerala 1000 6100 61.00 61.00 61.00
Symphony TV 1000 2500 25.00 25.00 25.00
Thanikudam Bhagavathy Mills Ltd 10 165000 16.50 16.50 16.50
Traco Cable Co. Ltd 10 100000 10.00 10.00 10.00
Travancore Titanium Products Ltd. 10 139732 13.97 13.97 13.97
Printronics Techpark Pvt Ltd 10 5000 0.50 0.50 0.50
ABN Granites Ltd 10 1100000 110.00 110.00 110.00
Chaya Industries 10 970000 97.00 97.00 97.00
Covema Filaments Ltd 10 1216800 121.68 121.68 121.68
Elasto Tapes Ltd 10 68500 6.85 6.85 6.85
Emtex International Ltd 100 11800 11.80 11.80
Excel Glasses 1 307400 14.66 14.66 14.66
Geojit Credits Ltd 2 11000000 220.00 220.00 220.00
Hindustany Cylinders 10 136700 13.67 13.67 13.67
Industrial Accumulators 100 7500 7.50 7.50 7.50
Kerala Spinners 10 126800 12.57 12.57 12.57
Madras Spinners 10 99900 5.00 5.00 5.00
(including 49950  Bonus Shares)
Malabar spinning & weaving Ltd 200 5000 10.00 10.00
Manito Electronics 10 120000 12.00 12.00 12.00
Meenachil Rubberwood Ltd 10 390000 39.00 39.00 39.00
Optima Packagings 10 87600 8.76 8.76
Periyar Chemicals Ltd (including 19,625 10 58875 3.93 3.93 3.93
Bonus Shares)
Pact Rubber Wood 10 66000 6.60 6.60 6.60
Rubberwood India 10 344600 34.46 34.46 34.46
Sri Sai Maharaj Pulp & Paper 100 14300 14.30 14.30 14.30
SAIL- SCL Kerala Ltd 10 303801 71.52 71.52 71.52
Travancore Sulphates 10 78000 7.80 7.80 7.80
Yellow Foods (P) Ltd. 10 9800 0.98 0.98
TECIL Chemicals & Hydro (Including 10 296320 20.49 20.49 20.49
91460 bonus shares)
Kerala State Textile Corporation 100 25000 25.00 25.00 25.00
Travancore Cochin Chemicals 10 3518180 325.91 325.91 325.91
Travancore Oxygen Ltd. 100 2500 2.50 2.50 2.50
United Electrical Industries Ltd. 10 93600 9.36 9.36 9.36
Vysali Pharmaceuticals Ltd 10 50000 5.00 5.00 5.00
Western India Cottons Ltd. 10 350000 35.00 35.00 35.00

       Total B 5751.00 5425.54 5425.54
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Unquoted  Investments in Associates
OEN India Ltd (including 1181509 10 1274607 4451.30 4137.40 3768.54
Nos bonus shares)
Total C 4451.30 4137.40 3768.54
Unquoted  Investments Preference
Filatex Vechukunnel    - 100 57000 57.00 57.00 57.00
Kerala Sponge Iron Limited- 10 % RCP Shares 100 59000 59.00 59.00 59.00
Central Travancore Specialists Hospital 10 862000 86.20 86.20 86.20
 -16% RCP Shares
Sree Sakthi Paper Mills Ltd 10 6000000 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Chaya Industries 100 50000 50.00 50.00 50.00

                 Total D 1252.20 1252.20 1252.20

Unquoted  Investments Equity Shares
Joint Venture
INKEL- KSIDC Projects Ltd 10 2786260 159.51 158.29 161.01
Kuttiyadi Coconut Industrial Park Ltd. 1000 250 2.50 2.50 2.50
Kerala GAIL Gas Ltd 10 50000 206.22 1373.22 1311.52
Units in Kerala Venture Capital Fund 46.25 46.25 46.25
Nitta Gelatin India Ltd 10 2862220 2605.07 2652.73 2556.36

                  Total E 3019.55 4232.99 4077.64

                  Grant Total 17135.79 17709.86 17185.66

7.   Other financial assets
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018  01.04.2017

Advance share Investment 255.00 387.00 30.00
Staff loan 448.37 463.35 408.29
Interest receivable on Short term Deposits 688.68 570.15 370.40
Interest receivable on Term Loan 7.81 5.36 18.20
Accrued Dividend on Preference Shares 216.80 317.21 417.63
P.F. Loan 0.00 0.00 0.11
HDFC Credit Card No 5329730620048046 0.00 0.12 0.00
HDFC-Multi currency Card -Chairman-JT 0.00 0.12 0.12

1616.65 1743.31 1244.75

Advance share investment of Rs 255 lakhs (P.Y 387 Lakhs) includes Rs 230 lakhs(P.Y Nil) to
Coconics Pvt Ltd, an SPV formed by KSIDC, Keltron and UST Global, Rs 25 lakhs(P.Y 25 lakhs)
to Manito Electronics Pvt Ltd. Company adopted the policy to transfer the advance share investment
to investments once the share certificate obtains Rs 57 lakhs paid to Albarak Financial services
and Rs 300 lakhs to Kerala Cashew Development Board as advance share investment during the
previous year transferred to investment during the current year. Since the amount cannot be
considered as investment the cost is considered as fair value
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Staff loans includes Rs 279 lakhs(P.Y 275.41) towards housing loan, Rs 135.07 (P.Y 150.54)
towards car loan, Rs 17.48( P.Y 17.14) towards consumer loan, Rs 7.91lakhs ( P.Y 13.01) towards
Personal loan, Rs 6.48 lakhs(P.Y 4.67 lakhs) towards scooter loan, Rs 1.96 lakhs(P.Y 2.09) towards
computer loan, Rs 0.48 lakhs (P.Y 0.48 lakhs) towards education loan. Total staff loan outstanding
is only1.15% of outside loan, which will not affect the materiality. Hence the book value of loan
is considered as fair value.

8 Current tax assets (net)
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018  01.04.2017

Advance Tax & TDS 1414.54 6487.14 5685.24

Amount receivable from IT Department 355.84 355.84 355.84
1770.38 842.98 6041.08

Advance tax and TDS paid for the F.Y 2017-18 is Rs 746.56 lakhs and for the F.Y 2018-19
is Rs 667.98 lakhs. Since the assessment is not completed for the F.Y 2017-18 adjustment entry
with the provision is not made Assessment up to F.Y 2016-17 was completed. Amount refundable
from IT department is accounted from the assessment order. As per the assessment order Rs 18.71
lakhs is receivable for the F.Y 2011-12, Rs 6.81 lakhs for the F.Y 2013-14 , Rs 264.44 lakhs for
the F.Y 2014-15, Rs 66.47 lakhs for the F.Y 2015-16.

 9. Property Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets
Particulars                    Gross Block

As at Additions Sales/ Up to
01/04/2018 Deduction  31.03.2019

Land # 207.21 0.00 0.00 207.21

Buildings 196.72 0.00 0.00 196.72

Electrical Fittings 46.60 8.76 8.63 46.74

Solar Power System 65.15 0.00 0.00 65.15

Furniture and Fittings 95.70 1.07 0.00 96.77

Office Equipments 59.44 0.47 0.00 59.91

Computer 259.11 23.07 0.61 281.58

Vehicle 57.69 0.00 0.00 57.69

Library Books 11.93 0.19 0.00 12.12

Total 1036.05 42.08 9.24 1068.89

Previous Year  Figures 1021.85 22.29 8.09 1036.05
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Depreciation                                   Net Block

Particulars As at Charged to Sales/ Up to As at As at
01/04/2018  P&L Deduction 31/03/2019  31/03/2019 31/03/2018

Land # 0.00 0.00 207.21 207.21

Buildings 134.54 3.09 0.00 137.63 59.09 62.18

Electrical Fittings 40.03 2.62 8.19 34.46 12.29 6.58

Solar Power System 35.70 5.38 0.00 41.08 24.07 29.45

Furniture and Fittings 85.43 2.52 0.00 87.95 8.81 10.27

Office Equipment 50.18 3.42 0.00 53.60 6.31 9.26

Computer 246.18 10.97 0.58 256.57 25.00 12.93

Vehicle 44.72 3.83 0.00 48.54 9.14 12.97

Library Books 11.93 0.19 0.00 12.12 0.00 0.00

Intangible assets (Software) 34.63 2.37 0.00 37.01 8.01 1.86

Total 683.34 34.39 8.77 708.96 359.93 352.70
Previous Year  Figures 654.47 36.30 7.43 683.34 352.70 367.37

                                                       Net Block
Particulars As at As at

31/03/2019  31/03/2018

Tangible Assets 351.92 350.84

Intangible assets 8.01 1.86

Total 359.93 352.70

#   Land includes

1 30 acres of land at TELK Angamaly transferred to KSIDC at nil cost, vide G.O. 836/2008/ID
dated 26.07.08 and G.O. 1174/2009/ID dt 31.08.09.  This has been given on 90 years lease
to INKEL KSIDC PROJECTS Ltd (JV). Further 26.712 Acres of land has been transferred to
KSIDC for implementation  of Business Hub, for which mutation in favour of KSIDC is yet
to be completed.

2 34.05 acres of industrial  land transferred by District Industries Centre to KSIDC at nil cost
for Light Engineering Park(LEIP), Palakkad. KSIDC has taken possession of the same, but
the transfer of title in the name of KSIDC is still pending on technical grounds. Anyhow,
vide G.O.(MS)49/2012/ID dated 03.04.12, Government has given clearance for mutation of
land in the case of LEIP and also directed that the liabilities arising out of the LAR cases  be
met by KSIDC. The first phase of the project was declared completed on 15.01.2013 and the
assets created have been included in the fixed assets of KSIDC.

3 1.9909 acres of land of M/s. Astral Watches Ltd. transferred in the name of KSIDC on
Government giving approval for winding up of the company and transferring of assets and
liabilities to KSIDC for the purpose of dissolution of the company under Easy Exit scheme
of Companies Act.
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4 Company has taken land on Operating lease. The following is the summary of future minimum
lease rental payments under non cancellable operating lease

0    Capital work in progress
As at As at As at

31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

     Expense towards ERP Implementation 135.54 135.54 135.54

Rs 135.54 lakhs being the part payment made  for  ERP. On final acceptance by  all user
departments and on  successful completion of the same, it was  to be transferred to asset
account. But the company was not able to deliver the output in time to the satisfaction of
user departments. The server at the datacentre failed and the data was irrecoverably lost.
The company could not retrieve the data. KSIDC  has taken  necessary steps  for termination
of the contract  and initiation of legal action against CMC Ltd.

11   Other Non financial assets
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Current account with Consultants 5.39 102.63 97.84
Government of Kerala-others 187.78 126.95 566.67
Sales Tax 3.60 3.60 3.60
IGC -151.89 116.96 110.53
CENVAT Credit-Service Tax 0.00 0.00 6.04
CENVAT Deferred ST 0.00 0.00 0.26
CGST-Input Tax Credit 0.92 0.08 0.00
SGST-Input Tax Credit 0.92 0.08 0.00
RCM A/C-SGST 0.03 0.68 0.00
RCM A/C-CGST 0.03 0.68 0.00
GST electronic cash ledger 0.00 0.00 0.00
GST Input Tax Deferred-CGST 0.31 0.19 0.00
GST Input Tax Deferred-SGST 0.31 0.19 0.00
Employee Contribution to PF 0.00 0.00 1.24
IGST - Input Tax Credit 0.01 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 11.62 10.74 9.56
Electricity, Telephone and  Other Deposits 15.29 15.14 15.21

74.32 377.92 810.95

Government had directed KSIDC to pay ‘special advance’ to the employees of three
undertakings, namely, Travancore Rayons, Commonwealth Trust and ALIND. Out of the
total advance paid  as per Government directions, we got reimbursement of Rs 442.79 lakhs
towards  such advances made till 2015-16. The balance sum of Rs 187.78( P.Y 126.95)
lakhs   is to be reimbursed by Government and  the payment has been shown under
Government of Kerala others.
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KSIDC is acting as an agent for implementing Industrial Growth Centre (IGC) in the State of
Kerala. A total amount of Rs. 15727.44 lakhs (previous year Rs. 14422.74 lakhs) has been
received from the Government for meeting the expenditure relating to the Growth Centres.
Receipts collected by way of lease premium/sale of land, miscellaneous income and other
receipts on current account amount to Rs. 13173.53 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 11288.12
lakhs). Total receipts stand at Rs. 28900.97 lakhs (previous year Rs. 25710.86 lakhs). All
the fixed assets including land and building are held by KSIDC on behalf of Government of
Kerala. All receipts and payments are accounted on cash basis and the excess of receipts
over expenditure is Rs.7159.56 lakhs (previous year Rs. 4268.70 lakhs). The total expenditure
under major heads is as shown below:

                               Rs in lakhs

Land & Site Development 9180.79

Roads 1199.44

Buildings 5234.11

Water Supply 1093.6

Power 2121.48

Others 2911.99

Total 21741.41
Cash and Cash Balance 7,007.61

Control Account Balance  151.89

Total 21741.41

KSIDC, being the implementing agency of Industrial Growth Centre (IGC) on behalf of
Government of Kerala, the funds of IGC were parked separately as Fixed Deposit under
IGC A/c

12 Payables

As at As at As at
31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Trade Payable
total outstanding dues of  creditors other than 58.61 92.85 109.49
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other Payables
Current account with Companies 101.56 40.37 89.23

160.17 133.23 198.71

There are no dues to companies/firms under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006.
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13  Provisions
As at As at As at

31.3.2019 31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Provision For Employee Benefit Expenses
Opening Balance -a 0.00 171.27 171.27
Add: Provision made during the year 0.00 0.00 0
Total 0.00 171.27 171.27
Less: Payment of Pay revision arrear 0.00 171.27 0

Balance Provision-a 0.00 0.00 171.27

Leave Salary
Opening Balance 0.00 1.10 1.10
Add: Provision made during the year 0.00
Total 0.00 1.10 1.10
Less: Payment made during the year 1.10 0

Balance Provision -b 0.00 0.00 1.10

Gratuity
Opening Balance 85.45 25.21 0.00
Add: Provision made during the year 30.63 85.24 25.21
Total 116.08 110.45 25.21
Less: Payment made during the year 85.45 25.00 0

Balance Provision-c 30.63 85.45 25.21

Total -i =a+b+c 30.63 85.45 197.58

Other Provisions
Provision for Taxation
Opening Provision for Taxation 6798.90 6113.08 5233.28
Addition during the year 674.83 685.82 879.80
Tax provision for previous years
Total 7473.73 6798.90 6113.08
Less: Set off /Adjustment/previous year 6052.14
payments effected  during the year.

Closing provision for taxation -ii 1421.59 6798.90 6113.08
Provision for diminution  in value of Investments #
Opening Balance 2170.12 1830.84 1823.86
Add: Provision required  at the year end 0.00 339.28 25.34
Total 2170.12 2170.12 1849.20
Less: Provision reversed during the year. 31.54 0.00 18.36
Balance Provision 2138.58 2170.12 1830.84
Provision for dividend and tax thereon
Opening Balance 0.00 210.82 421.64

Add: Provision required  at the year end 0.00 0.00 0
Total 0.00 210.82 421.64
Less: Paid during the year. 0.00 210.82 210.82

Balance Provision 0.00 0.00 210.82
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Others

Provision for Taxation: Set off entries against advance taxes, self assessments, regular taxes  and
TDS receivables( booked under advance tax account) had been effected till  assessment year
2011-12.Adjustment in respect of  excess/ shortfall in estimated provisions created in earlier years,
if any,   has been made on case to case basis. The details of provision is as follows.

Particulars As at As at As at
31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

FY 2011-12 AY 2012-13 1071.00 1071.00
FY 2012-13 AY 2013-14 0.00 1253.75 1253.75
FY 2013-14 AY 2014-15 0.00 1025.12 1025.12
FY2014-15 AY 2015-16 0.00 683.41 683.41
FY 2015-16 AY 2017-18 0.00 1200.00 1200.00
FY 2016-17 AY 2018-19 0.00 879.80 879.80
FY 2017-18 AY 2018-19 746.76 685.82 0
F.Y 2018-19 674.83

Total 1421.59 6798.90 6113.07

Provision for diminution  in value of Investments: Includes provision against investments of
Rs.1800.84 lakhs and additional  provision of Rs.30 lakhs (advance share investment in M/s.
Manito Electronics Pvt. Ltd-Rs 25 Lakhs, and advance investment in IL&FS Rs. 5 lakhs)  made
against ‘Advance towards investment in Companies.

Summary: Current Liabilities  on Provisions As at As at As at
31.3.2019  31.3.2018 01.04.2017

Provision For Employee Benefit Expenses 0.00 0.00 171.27
Provision for Leave Salary 0.00 0.00 1.10
Provision for Gratuity 30.63 85.45 25.21
Provision for Taxation 1421.59 6798.90 6113.08
Provision for diminution  in value of Investments 2138.58 2170.12 1830.84
Provision for dividend and tax thereon 0.00 0.00 210.82

Grand Total 3590.79 9054.46 8352.31

A. Leave Salary

Leave salary is calculated based on the number  of days of earned leave to the credit of the
employee,  subject to a maximum of 300 days.

As on 31.03.2019 the actuarial valuation for leave salary was Rs.2,50,26,896/- ( PY - Rs
2,55,97,4912/-).  The estimated liabilities have been fully funded through SBI Life and ICICI
Prudential Life.
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                        Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

1. Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning 303.92          309.31 274.1405
Interest Income 22.37            23.76 20.51066
Employer Contribution 1.10 19.1
Benefit Payment from Plan Assets 27.43         25.63 5.44506
Remeasurements-Return on Assets  0.01          4.62 1.00675
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end 298.8523 303.92324 309.31285

2. Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning  255.97          310.41 268.92606
Current Service Cost 25.99            26.00 74.0749
Interest Expense 19.38            21.72 20.49767
Benefit Payment from Plan Assets -27.42814 -25.63033 -5.44506
Remeasurement-Due to Demographic 0.43987
Assumptions
Remeasurement-Due to Financial Assumptions 3.46         58.49
Remeasurement - Due to Experience Adjustments 27.55        18.04 47.64255
Defined Benefit Obligation at the End 250.27 255.97491 310.41102

3. Components of Defined Benefit Cost
Current Service cost 25.9869 26.00153 74.0749
Interest Expense on DBO 19.38087 21.7245 20.49767
Interest (Income) on Plan Assets -22.36715 -23.76381 -20.51066
Total Net Income -2.98628 -2.03931 -0.01299
Defined Benefit Cost included in P&L 23.00            23.96 74.06191
Remeasurement -Due to Demographic Assertions 0.44
Remeasurement -Due to Financial Assumptions 3.46068 -58.49121
Remeasurement -Due to Experience Adjustments  -27.54611 -18.0406 -47.64255
(Return) on Plan Assets  0.01 4.62309 -1.00675
(Excluding Interest Income)
Total Remeasurement in OCI -  23.66 -71.90872 -48.6493
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized -0.65487 -47.9465 25.41261
in P&L and OCI

4. Amount recognised in Balance sheet
Defined Benefit Obligation 250.26898 255.97491 310.41102
Fair Value of Plan Assets 298.8523 303.92324 309.31285
Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) -48.58332 -47.94833 1.09817

5. Net Defined Benefit Liability/
(Asset) reconciliation
Net Defined Benefit liability/(Asset) - 47.95              1.10 -5.21444
at the beginning
Defined Benefit Cost included in P&L 23.00064 23.96222 74.06191
Total Remeasurements included in OCI -23.65551 -71.90872 -48.6493
Employer Contribution -  1.10 -19.10
Net Defined Benefit liability/(Asset) at the end -48.6032 -47.95 1.09817
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6. Actuarial Assumptions for Leave Encashment

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

i     Discount Rate 7.6 % p.a. 8 % p.a. 7.30 % p.a.
ii    Salary escalation 6% 6% 10%
iii   Attrition 1%  0% TO 1%  0% TO 1%
iv    Mortality Tables IALM (2012-14) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult

Footnote :
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities
as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future
salary increases considered, by taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion,
increments and other relevant factors.

B Gratuity

Corporation is following the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act for computing the
eligible Gratuity, as per stipulation made by Government on 9th Pay revision . Accordingly
Gratuity  shall  be  payable  to  an  employee  on the  termination  of  his / her employment
after  he / she has  rendered  continuous  service  for not less than five years for  every
completed  year  of  service  or  part  thereof  in  excess  of  six months at the rate of fifteen
days’ wages based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee. The  fifteen  days’
wages  shall  be  calculated  by  dividing  the  monthly  rate  of  wages  last  drawn  by him/
her by twenty six days, as if every completed month comprises of 26 days.

The payment of Gratuity ( Amendment) Act,2010 had increased the limit to Rs 20 lakhs
w.e.f 29.03.2018. In line with these provisions, the Corporation had also provided for the
enhanced limit w.e.f 29.03.2018.

As on 31.03.2019, the actuarial valuation of gratuity was Rs 3,95,55,393/- (PY Rs
4,05,70,765/-). The estimated liabilities have been funded through SBI Life. The short fall
in the funding , if any, is  included under current liabilities.

      Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17
1 Changes in present value of obligations

PVO at beginning of period 405.71          337.88 299.82
Interest Cost 28.82            23.15 22.38
Current Service Cost 17.53              9.27 23.15
Past service cost( veted benefits) 122.96
Benefits Paid - 64.70 - 41.62 -18.27
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 8.19 - 45.93 10.80
PVO at end of period 395.55              405.71  337.88

2 Interest Expense
Interest Cost 28.82 23.15 22.38

3. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 320.26          312.67 306.93
Interest income 25.52            22.22 22.93
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4. Net Liability
PVO at beginning of period 405.71 337.88 299.82
Fair Value of the Assets at beginning report 320.26 312.67 306.93
Net Liability 85.45 25.21 -7.11

5. Net Interest
Interest Expenses 28.82 23.15 22.38
Interest Income 25.52 22.22 22.93
Net Interest 3.30 0.93 -0.55

6. Actual return on plan assets 23.91            24.21 24.01
Less Interest income included above 25.52          22.22 22.93
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - 1.61                1.99 1.08

7. Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligation
Due to Financial Assumption 3.97 - 74.26  9.60
Due to Experience 4.22            28.32               1.20
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 8.19 - 45.93 10.80

8. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening fair value of plan asset 320.26 312.67 306.93
Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset
Return on plan assets excl.interest income -1.61 1.99 1.08
Interest Income 25.52 22.22 22.93
Contribution by Employer 85.45 25.00
Benefits Paid -64.70 -41.62 -18.27
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end 364.92 320.26 312.67

9. Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and
statement of profit loss account
PVO at end of period 395.55 405.71 337.88
Fair Value of Plan assets at end of period 364.92 320.26 312.67
Fund status -30.63 -85.45 -25.21
Net Asset/(Liability)recognized in the Balance sheet -30.63 -85.45 -25.21

10. Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c
Current Service Cost 17.53 9.27 23.15
Net interest 3.30 0.93 -0.55
Past service cost( veted benefits) 0.00 122.96 0.00
Return on plan assets excluding interest 1.61 -1.99 -1.08
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period 8.19 -45.93 10.80
Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c 30.63 85.24 32.32

11. Movements in the liability recognized in Balance Sheet
Opening Net Liability 85.45 25.21 -7.11
Adjustment to opening balance
Expense as above 30.63 85.24 32.32
Contribution Paid -85.45 -25.00 0.00
Closing Net Liability 30.63 85.45 25.21
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6. Actuarial Assumptions for Gratuity
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 01-Apr-17

i    Discount Rate 7.56 % p.a. 7.72 % p.a. 7.30 % p.a.
ii   Salary escalation 6% 6% 10%
iii  Attrition PS: 0 TO 40 :1% PS: 0 TO 40 :1% PS: 0 TO 40 :1%
iv  Mortality Tables IALM (2006-08)Ult  IALM (2006-08)Ult IALM (2006-08) Ult

Footnote :

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities
as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. The estimate of future
salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments
and other relevant factors.

14  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Particulars 31/03/2019               31/03/2018

 Base Deferred  Tax Base             Deferred Tax
Asset Liability Asset Liability

  Current liabilities
Trade Payables 58.61 87.17

Interest accrued on 0.00 0.00
bonds/Govt.loan

Provision for gratuity 30.63 85.45

Provision for leave salary 0.00 0.00

30.88 59.74

Current assets

Interest accrued on deposits   688.68 570.28

Interest accrued on   TL 7.81 5.23

Prepaid expenses 11.62 10.74

Interest accrued/loan 2.21 2.21

Provisions

Provision for doubtful. 610.46 499.24

Debts u/s 36 1 viia of IT Act

Provision for Special Reserve 9342.88 9096.01

u/s 36 1 viii of IT Act

3690.48 3524.37

Fixed assets

Depreciation -13.55 -4.69 -19.97 -6.91

Total 30.88 3685.79 59.74 3517.46

 Deferred  Tax Asset (3654.90) (3457.73)

Existing Balance -DT (3457.73)  11576.25 17186.92
Additional Provision Required (197.18)  15231.15 20644.65
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No utilization has been made so far of the Special Reserve created and  maintained under
section 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act. However, based on the opinion of the Expert Committee of
ICAI, deferred tax liability has been provided on the Special Reserve maintained under 36(1) (viii)
of the IT Act from 2012-13 onwards.

15.   Other non financial liabilities
       As at 31.3.2019          As at 31.3.2018  As at 01.04.2017

Suspense 1.44            75.00 81.78
Current account with others 278.33          433.52 3.86
Advance to MD 0.03 -           0.06 0.01
TDS Payable - Others 0.18            12.02 1.31
TDS Payable-Salary  0.89              0.15 0.31
Service Tax Payable 0.00 0.00 1.41
RCM Payable  SGST  0.05              1.82                           -
RCM Payable  CGST 0.05              1.82                           -
RCM Payable  IGST -                 -                           -
SGST Payable 0.34              5.35                           -
IGST Payable -              2.50                           -
CGST Payable  0.34              5.35                           -
TDS Payable -GST 0.14                 -                           -
Labour Welfare Fund Payable -              5.88 0.00
Retention Deposit 53.42            17.90 106.77
Various Project - KGGL 1,284.31       1,284.31                1,284.31
Various Project 104.93       1,411.07                       2,787.15
Tender Fee Mega Food Park 0.78                 - 0.00
E M D Noorka 5.00                 -                           -
HDFC Credit Card-5329 7303 0007 7927  -                 -                           -
Interest accrued on Government Loan 0.00 0.00 1961.49
Co-operative recovery Salary 0.00 0.00 0.01
Security Deposit( Liability) 130.56            60.77 5.24
L.I.C. Deductions 0.00 -           0.01 0.00

1,860.79       3,317.39                6,233.65

Various Projects:

Nodal Agency for implementation of various projects.

Government of Kerala has entrusted KSIDC with agency function to implement various
projects. The expenditure  incurred in respect of  various infrastructure-related projects being
implemented by KSIDC as per Government directions, based on which KSIDC is the nodal agency/
facilitator  have been classified as  ‘non-current’  as the projects are only in the preliminary stages
of conception/feasibility study/implementation. Previous year figures have been reclassified
accordingly. The details of budget allocation for these projects, the funds released by the
Government, funds expended with remarks are shown under.
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No Name of the Project  As on 31.03.2019 Status of projects
 (Rs in Crores)

   Total Total Total
  Fund  Fund   Expen-

      Allocation   Received diture

1 Investment facilitation & 60.09 40.09 43.00 Organised many events,
Ind. Promotion Activities seminars,workshops, roadshows

etc and participated in local and
international exhibitions and
sponsored many events
branding Kerala as an investment

friendly destinations. We have
advanced in implementing Ease
of doing Business,streamlining
single window clearance and
promoting WE Mission

 2 Life Sciences  Park 514.54 482.38 473.80 Progressing. Assistance under
KIIFB scheme received and
released

 3 Business Incubators 16.35 11.35 6.88 Progressing

 4 Coconut Industrial Park, 40.02 16.00 15.67 Project revived and steps taken
Kuttiyadi for  construction of basic

infrastructure facilities

 5 Electronic Hardware Park, 177.47 147.47 54.92 Progressing. Assistance under
Kochi MIDP scheme received and

released

 6 Supplementary Gas 49.22 33.16 12.84 No further headway
Infrastructure

 7 Light Engineering Ist phase completed. II nd phase
Industrial Park, Palakkad 26.00 24.91 25.04 in progress

 8 Kochi - Palakkad NIMZ 20.66 10.74 1.41 Project to be integrated with the
Bangalore Coimbatore Industrial
Corridor scheme

 9 PCPIR Kochi/ 0.04 0.00 0.29 Progressing
Petrochemical Park

10 Titanium Sponge, Kollam 15.02 14.00 0.43 Project dropped due to non
availability of Technology for
the project development
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 11 Cheemeni Power Project, 5.11 5.00 4.16 Project transferred to KSEB
Kasargode

 12 Organic Industrial Park, 9.00 9.04 9.04 Project completed
Kodungallur

13 Medicinal & Health Care 3.00 2.00 0.21 Project dropped due to non a
Park, Nadapuram vailability of land

14 Online Single Window 2.00 0.50 0.06 An Investment Promotion
Clearance Mechanism Facilitation Cell is proposed as

part of Ease of doing Business

15 Oceanarium Marine Biological 1.00 0.50 0.58 Project transferred to Fisheries
Research Centre Complex at
Puthuvypin, Kochi

16 Upgradation of roads to 48.00 48.00 44.99 Project completed except for
Industrial Parks upgradation of approach roads

to Growth Centres.

17 Albarak Financial Services 1.00 0.50 3.15 Project Completed

18 Infrastructure Development 44.51 38.51 217.41 Progressing
at IGCs

19 Angel funding /seed funding 28.00 16.00 11.29 Progressing

20 Entrepreneur support 9.00 7.00 5.25 Progressing
through mentoring

21 Mega food Park, Cherthala 43.00 18.00 55.14 Progressing

22 Business Incubator for 5.50 3.50 3.50 Completed
medical devices

23 Integrated Business hubs 0.00 0.00 0.18 Available land being
identified.

24 Manufacturing Industrial 8.00 10.00 12.16 Completed
Zone Angamaly

25 Common Facilities for 0.80 0.80 0.80 Work awarded to Nirmithi
Women in IGCs Kendra

26 MEDS Park 0.00 0.00 1.06 Progressing

    Total             1,127.33 939.45   1,003.26
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16 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Rs in lakhs

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 As  at
1.04.2017

  a Authorised:
40,00,000 (40,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.1,000/- each 40000.00 40000.00 40000.00

  b Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
30,12,435 (30,12,435) Equity shares of Rs.1,000/- each 30124.35 30124.35 30124.35

  c Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

        As at 31.3.2019            As at 31.3.2018

No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares Shares

At the beginning of the period 3012435 30124.35 3012435 30124.35

Add: Shares issued during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Less: Shares bought back during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Add: Other movements during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Outstanding at the end of the period 3012435 30124.35 3012435 30124.35

d  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1000/- per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. For the year ended 31-03-
2018, the amount of proposed  dividend per share recognized for distribution to equity
shareholders is Rs 5.81 (Previous Year Rs 5.81)

e As at 31.3.2019 As at 31.3.2018

Shares held by holding /ultimate holding Nil Nil
company /or their subsidiaries /associates.

f Details of shareholders holding more than 100 % owned by Government of Kerala
5 % shares in the company.

g As at 31.3.2019 As at 31.3.2018

Aggregate number of shares issued for Nil Nil
consideration other than cash, bonus shares
issued and shares bought back during the
period of 5 years immediately preceding the
reporting date.
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17 Other Equity        As on 31.3.2018

       Particulars Stat- Capital Special Provision   Retained Debt Equity Other Total
utory Reserve Reserve  for  bad  Earnings  instru-  Instru-  items

Reserves  u/s 36(i) and  Doubt ments ments  of OCI
(viii) of  ful debts  through through
IT Act u/s 36 1  OCI  OCI

(viia)
of IT Act

Balance at the beginning 4,952.61   8,875.73     446.31     21,680.03  5,778.63  41,733.30
of the reporting period

Changes in accounting policy/
Prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning   4,952.61   8,875.73    446.31     21,680.03      -         -   5,778.63  41,733.30
of the reporting period

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

Addition during the year      11,597.39 11,597.39

Dividends          210.63 210.63

Transfer to/from  retained earnings    220.28        94.37      -314.65

Any other changes 41.44 41.44
(Bad debt write off)

Balance at the end of the 4,952.61   9,096.01      499.24   32,752.15     5,778.63  53,078.63
reporting period

As at 31.3.2019

       Particulars Stat- Capital Special Provision   Retained Debt Equity Other Total
utory Reserve Reserve  for  bad  Earnings  instru-  Instru-  items

Reserves  u/s 36(i)   and  Doubt ments ments  of OCI
u/s 45 (viii) of  ful debts  through through
IC of IT Act u/s 36 1  OCI  OCI
RBI (viia)
Act of IT Act

Balance at the beginning    4,952.61   9,096.01    499.24      32,752.15    5,778.63   53,078.63
of the reporting period
Changes in accounting
policy/Prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning    4,952.61  9,096.01  499.24     32,752.15     5,778.63     53,078.63
of the reporting period
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Addition during the year   6,803.32                     6,803.32
Dividends        205.28 205.28
Transfer to/from  retained earnings 676.19 246.88        113.81   1,036.87
Any other changes            2.59 2.59
( Bad debt write off)

Balance at the end of the 676.19   4,952.61  9,342.88     610.46    24,656.24    5,778.63     46,017.01
reporting period
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Statutory Reserves u/s 45 IC of RBI Act

As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and
transfers there in a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. The company cannot appropriate any
sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to
time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund maintained
under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1934.

Special Reserve u/s 36(i)(viii) of IT Act

As per section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 1961, in respect of Special reserve created and
maintained by an NBFC, an amount not exceeding twenty per cent  of the profits derived from
eligible business computed under the head Profit and gains of business or profession carried to
this reserve account

Provision for bad and Doubtful debts u/s 36 1(viia) of IT Act

As per section 36(1)(Viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  financial institutions are allowed deduction
in respect of the provisions made for bad and doubtful debts to the extend of 5% of adjusted total
income

Retained earning represent surplus after transfer to various other reserves.

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2019

Interest Income

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
On Financial On On On On On

Assets  Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial
measured  Assets Assets  Assets Assets  Assets

at fair value  measured measured measured measured  measured
through at amor- at fair value  at fair value  at amor- at fair value

OCI tised cost through  through tised  through
P&L OCI  cost  P&L

Interest on Loans 2822.46 3027.63

Dividend income from investments 1315.12 987.08

Interest on deposits with banks 1267.01 1087.05

Other Interest Income 15.92 99.73

Total Income 5420.51 5201.49

* Net gain/loss on fair value changes Current  Previous
Year Year
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A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(I) On trading portfolio
(II) on Financial instruments measured at  fair value through P&L

Total Net gain/loss on fair value changes
Fair values changes
- Realised
- Unrealised

18 INTEREST  INCOME

Rs. in Lakhs

2018-19 2017-18
i INTEREST

Interest on Term Loan -Cash
Add:-
Interest on Term Loan- Std Accrued- Closing.

0.00 5.23

Total 2973.12 3179.23
Less:
Interest on Term Loan- Std Accrued - Opening. 5.23

18.07

Total 2967.90 3161.16
Less: Rebate
Interest less rebate 145.43 133.52

Net Interest Income 2822.46 3027.63

Rebate to loanees: KSIDC is granting rebate upto a maximum of 1%, maintaining the net
interest rate at 9%,  at the end of each quarter of every financial year by reversal of the
interest charged, provided there are no arrears of interest as at the end of each quarter . The
reduction in interest as above is calculated on the outstanding principal alone and there shall
be no reversal of penal interest portion. Further the 306th Board Meeting fixed the net
interest rate after rebate as 8.5%. A sum of Rs.145.43 lakhs  has been expended as this
rebate during the FY 2018-19.

19 Dividend Income
Rs. in Lakhs

Dividend from long term investments 1130.68 698.00
Dividend from current investments 184.44 289.08

1315.12 987.08
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21 OTHER INCOME
Rs. in Lakhs

Interest on bank deposit 1267.01 1087.05
Interest on staff loan 12.79 21.14
Interest others 3.12 43.61
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.00 34.97
Bad debts recovered 0.95 10.68
Bad Investment recovered 0.00 55.00
Directors Sitting Fees 5.12 5.83
Miscellaneous income 0.47 4.04
Sale of tender forms 0.48 0.75
Unwinding Income 98.72 88.26

                 Total 1388.66 1351.33

Rs. in Lakhs
22 FINANCE COST 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Rs. in Lakhs
Salaries 623.82 649.81
Pension Fund 26.98 29.44
Extra allowances 48.91 51.64
Festival allowances 1.50 1.18
PF Staff 43.31 79.78
Welfare Expenses to staff 43.56 51.90
Honararium to Medical Officer 2.06 1.93
Medical expenses 30.99 31.81
Staff Training Expenses 2.84 10.45
Staff Recruitment Expenses 4.15 0.00
Gratuity 20.98 85.01
Pension 1.93 3.17
Leave Surrender 38.76 32.63

               Total 889.78 1028.75

24 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Rs. in Lakhs
Depreciation 34.39 36.30
Deminusion in the value of investment 339.28
Amortization Exp 0.00 0.00

             Total 34.39 375.58
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25 Impairment of financial instruments

     Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
Assets  Assets Assets  Assets

measured at fair measured at measured at  measured
value through OCI  amortised  fair value at amortised

cost  through OCI  cost

Loans 212.96 0

Investments 0.00 0.00

Others

Total

26 OTHER EXPENSES                   Rs. in Lakhs

Honorarium to Chairman 2.62 2.58
Salaries and allowances  : Directors 20.36 25.48
P.F. Administrative Charges 1.89 2.83
P.F. Insurance 0.39 1.34
Welfare expenses : Directors 0.34 0.22
Travelling expenses
Chairman 4.14 1.31
        : Managing Director 3.15 9.39
        : Directors 1.41 1.12
        :Staff &Others 60.59 60.70
Directors Sitting Fee 0.09 0.14
Foreign Tour Expenses 9.29 10.81
Rates & Taxes 3.59 0.52
Electricity & Water 12.57 11.99
Motor Car Expenses 5.96 6.17
Generator Running Expenses 1.26 0.83
Printing and Stationery 8.87 8.80
Postage, Telegrammes and Telephones 18.21 17.18
Repairs - Building 4.06 1.09
Repairs - Other 26.05 37.24
Rent Paid 0.00 0.63
Advertisement and Publicity 38.80 15.40
Promotional expenses 11.60 60.62
Miscellaneous Expenses 4.60 21.99
Insurance 0.74 1.11
Filing Fee 0.30 0.44
Bank Charges 0.06 0.18
Books & Periodicals 0.00 0.00
Subscription & Membership 4.88 2.39
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Gardening Expenses 0.04 0.04
Board Meeting Expenses 0.76 0.91
Hospitality Expenses 13.76 0.00
Legal & Professional Fees 5.41 10.74
Project Expenses 115.37 7.17
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.03 0.14
Service Tax(RCM) Expenses 0.00 1.51
Internal Audit Fee 2.18 2.74
Tax Audit Fee 0.73 0.70
Statutory Audit Fees 3.27 5.12
GST Audit Fee 1.64 0.00
CSR Activity 60.67 116.35
Amortised Dividend on Preferance share 100.42 100.42
Seed Fund Expenses 0.06 0.07

                            Total 550.14 548.39

CSR activities: KSIDC had taken up various activities under corporate social responsibity during
the current financial year. As per the provisions of Companies Act,2013 the  amount as required to
be spent by the Corporation towards  CSR activities is Rs  62.64 lakhs. The details of the amount
spent during the year is  Rs 60.67 lakhs.  The pending amount of Rs 1.97  lakhs in respect of CSR
budget will be utilized during the financial year 2019-20.

Particulars              in cash /cheque yet to be paid Total

(i)   Construction /acquisition of any asset
Construction of 5 toilets in St. Mary’s  School 1020000.00 1020000.00

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 0.00

Free education to girl children 732000.00 Nil 732000.00

Ambedkar District level Charitable Society 39000.00 Nil 39000.00

Kerala Federation of the blind 105000.00

Chief Minister’s Distress Relief Fund 4160430.00 Nil 4160430.00

Cherry/s Tours & Travels - Flood relief 10957.00 Nil 10957.00

6067387.00 Nil 5962387.00

BAD DEBTS :Corporation had written off a sum of Rs. 2.49 lakhs in the current year (Rs 4.43
lakhs in the previous year) as unrecoverable from assisted industrial units on account of loan and
current account balances. As balance in the provision for bad and doubtful debts  was more than
sufficient to cover the bad debts written off, no amount has been charged against the profit and
loss account.
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27 EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

Prior Period Income 0.00 0.00
Prior Period Expenses 0.00 0.45

0.00 -0.45

28 INCOME TAX Rs. in Lakhs
2018-19 2017-18

Current  Year Tax 674.83 699.33

                                             Total 674.83 699.33

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year Ended Year Ended

  Particulars 31.03.19 31.03.18
No of shares outstanding 3012435.00 3012435
Face Value of one share (Rs) 1000.00 1000
Profit after tax (Rs in lakhs) 3380.95 -499.67
EPS -Basic( in Rs) 112.23 -16.59
Share Application money pending allotment (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Share Application money -Current Liability portion  (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Total (Rs in lakhs) 0.00 0.00
Equivalent No of Shares 0.00 0.00
Total No. of Shares 3012435.00 3012435.00
EPS-Diluted (in Rs) 112.23 -16.59

30 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Payment to Auditors: 2018-19

Audit Fees including GST 218000.00
Audit expenses 10900.00
Other services 27250.00

31 Contingent liabilities

Tax Matters- Income tax return filed up to assessment year 2018-19. Assessments completed up
to assessment year 2016-17. Appeals filed by the Corporation is pending before Commissioner
(Appeals) for the assessment years 2006-07 , 2007-08, 2010-11, 2012-13,2013-14, 2014-15 ,2015-
16 and 2016-17 and before ITAT for the assessment year 2012-13 and High court for the Assessment
years  2008-09, 2009-10 , 2010-11  and 2011-12.  Appeals filed by the Corporation and Department
for the assessment years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2006-07 and 2007-08 has been remanded to Assessing
Officer. (Estimated contingent liability excluding interest Rs 556.48  lakhs. From the assessment
hear 1997-98, based on change in Income Tax Act, the Corporation has decided to adopt cash
system of accounting for the purpose of income tax.  Provision for income tax from the assessment
year 1997-98 has been made based on income arrived at as per cash system of accounting.
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29 Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31.3.2019 Rs in Lakhs

   Name of the entity Net Assets Share in Share in Other Share in total
    in the Group Profit or Loss Comprehensive Comprehensive

income   income

As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of      Amount
consoli- consoli-  consoli- total

 dated net dated  dated compre-
assets profit other hensive

 or loss compre-  income
hensive
 income

Subsidiaries
Nil

Associates
OEN India 25% 0 25% 313.9 25% 0 25% 0

Joint Ventures
Nitta Gelatine 32% 32% -47.66 0 0

Kerala Gail Gas 50% 50% 25.3 0 0

Inkel Ksidc Project 11% 11% 1.23 0 0

Total 292.77 0 0

Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31.3.2018 Rs in Lakhs

  Name of the entity Net Assets                   Share in     Share in Other Share in total
    in the Group Profit or Loss Comprehensive Comprehensive

income   income

As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of      Amount
consoli- consoli-  consoli- total

 dated net dated  dated compre-
assets profit other hensive

 or loss compre-  income
hensive
 income

  Subsidiaries
Nil

Associates
OEN India 25% 0 25%      368.85 25% 0 25% 0

Joint Ventures
Nitta Gelatine 32% 32%        96.38 0 0

Kerala Gail Gas 50% 50%        61.70 0 0

Inkel Ksidc Project 11% 11%        -2.73 0 0

Total       524.20 0 0
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31 Contingent liabilities

Tax Matters- Income tax return filed up to assessment year 2018-19. Assessments completed up to
assessment year 2016-17. Appeals filed by the Corporation is pending before Commissioner (Appeals)
for the assessment years 2006-07 , 2007-08, 2010-11, 2012-13,2013-14, 2014-15 ,2015-16 and 2016-17
and before ITAT for the assessment year 2012-13 and High court for the Assessment years  2008-09,
2009-10 , 2010-11  and 2011-12.  Appeals filed by the Corporation and Department for the assessment
years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2006-07 and 2007-08 has been remanded to Assessing Officer. (Estimated
contingent liability excluding interest Rs 556.48  lakhs. From the assessment hear 1997-98, based on
change in Income Tax Act, the Corporation has decided to adopt cash system of accounting for the
purpose of income tax.  Provision for income tax from the assessment year 1997-98 has been made
based on income arrived at as per cash system of accounting.

Taxes under dispute Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Forum where dispute is pending                 Amount

Income Tax AY 2006-07 CIT(Appeal) 124.71
Income Tax AY 2006-07 High Court 174.27
Income Tax AY 2008-09 High Court 8.38
Income Tax AY2009-10 High Court 11.93
Income Tax AY 2010-11 High Court 10.14
Income Tax AY 2010-11 CIT(Appeal) 208.06
Income Tax AY 2011-12 High Court 9.99
Income Tax AY 2012-13 CIT(Appeal) 9.84
Income Tax AY 2013-14 CIT(Appeal) 10.33
Income Tax AY 2014-15 CIT(Appeal) 16.18
Income Tax AY 2015-16 CIT(Appeal) 13.09
Income Tax AY 2016-17 CIT(Appeal) 15.81

612.74
Service Tax 200.00
Total 812.74

Sales tax: Assessments have been completed up to the year 2001-02.Assessments are not yet
completed for the year 2002-03 and 2003-04.

32 SEGMENT REPORTING Rs. in Lakhs
Total Income from Term Lending 2822.46 3027.63
Dividend Income  from Investments 1315.12 987.08

                      Total 4137.58 4014.72

33  Related Party Disclosures:
The company/s related parties principally consist of joint ventures, associated and their subsidiaries.
Payments to Key managerial personnel is also disclosed in the related party disclosure
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Rs. in Lakhs
As on 31.03.2019

Party Percentage of Share   Loan /Current
Holding  investment      account balance

Kerala Venture Capital Fund 46.25 -2.59

INKEL KSIDC PROJECTS LTD. 26% 278.63 Nil

KERALA GAIL GAS LTD 50% 0.50 1.10

Oen India 25% 9.34 1040.17

Nitta Gelatin 31.53% 1364.07

Reva Proteins Ltd                          Subsidiary of Nitta Gelatin 905.29

Kutiyadi Coconut Industrial Park Ltd. 2.50

Key Managerial Personnel Capacity Nature of transaction Amount

Dr M Beena IAS Managing Salaries & Allowances 16.87
Director

Dr Sharmila Mary Joseph IAS Managing Salaries & Allowances 3.49
Director

Ranjith J J CFO Salaries & Allowances 15.35

Aravindakshan K CFO Salaries & Allowances 4.37

Suresh Kumar K DGM & CS Salaries & Allowances 19.69

34 Fair Value Measurement

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to
at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient
trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and
when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2  financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of
the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other
than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads.
In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to
which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.
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             Rs in lakhs

Hierarchy of Valuation Classification  Cost as on Fair Value as Fair Value as   Fair Value
31.3.2019 on 31.3.2019 on 31.3.2018 as on

  01.04.2017

  Level I financial instruments Quoted shares 3970.80 38,568.98 55,017.75 38,591.27

  Level II financial instruments Unquoted Shares for which 4948.48 10976.35 38568.98 55017.75
Balance sheet available

  Level III financial instruments Unquoted Shares for which 782.26 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance sheet  not available
from 2014

 Level III financial instruments Companies under Liquidation 84.60 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Level III financial instruments Companies with JV 327.88 327.88 1520.18 1520.176

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

Regulatory capital-related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated disclosures. The RBI
norms require capital to be maintained at prescribed levels. In accordance with such norms, Tier I capital
of the company comprises of share capital, share premium, reserves and perpetual debt, Tier II capital
comprises of subordinated debt and provision on loans that are not credit-impaired. There were no
changes in the capital management process during the periods presented.

Annexure to our report of even date
For KRISHNAN RETNA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
     (FRN 001536S)

Sd/-
A.RETNAKUMARAN NAIR

 Partner (M.N.024791)
Thiruvananthapuram
27-09-2019

For and on behalf of the Board
 Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Managing Director Director  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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APPLICATIONS FOR FINANCIAL  ASSISTANCE  SANCTIONED DURING 2013-14 TO 2018-19

(Rs. Lakhs)

Description 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
No Amount  No Amount No Amount No   Amount No Amount No.         Amount

Direct Subscription 3 1388.00 0 0 1 1000.00 0 0.00 2 357.00 1 230.00
Underwriting
Loans 12 5463.98 11 10876.91 12 7665.50 12 8582.00 20 15531.30 16 11888.49
Seed Capital 31 622.50 14 320.00 41 901.00 8 163.00

Total 15 6851.98 11 10876.91 44 9288.00 26 8902.00 63 16789.30 25 12281.49

INDUSTRY-WISE INVESTMENT IN KSIDC UNITS
(31-03-19)

Sl. Industry No.of Investment Employment
No. Units (Rs.lakhs) (Nos.)
1 Chemicals 56 64316 7813
2 Cattle Feed 5 4277 328
3 Cement 4 5094 501
4 Pharmaceuiticals 16 7640 2379
5 Electronics 24 35700 5672
6 Electricals 11 59794 4671
7 Food 82 51647.39 8775
8 Hospitals 24 34977 3625
9 Information  Technology 31 10318 2812
10 Infrastructure 12 217161 1394
11 Leather 5 4583 1455
12 Metals 61 80995 8401
13 Minerals 21 26488 5080
14 Paper 10 11940 3091
15 Printing 10 6234 610
16 Rubber 50 21510 4830
17 Textiles 50 81869 15237
18 Tourism 71 125423 6442
19 Wood 14 17931 2598
20 Miscellaneous 31 53967 3872

Total 588 921864.39 89586

SIZE-WISE INVESTMENT IN KSIDC UNITS
(31-03-19)

Sl. Size No.of Investment Employment
No. Units (Rs. Lakhs) (Nos.)

1 Above Rs.100 crs. 11 415605 4735
2 Rs.50 crs to 100 crs. 18 137791.87 8482
3 Rs.10 crs to 50 crs. 97 229507.22 29943
4 Rs.5 crs to 10 crs. 77 57010.72 12976
5 Rs.1 cr.to 5 crs. 306 76940.58 28935
6 Below Rs.1 cr. 79 5009 4515

Total 588 921864.39 89586
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DISTRICT-WISE INVESTMENT IN KSIDC UNITS
(31-03-18)

 Sl. District No.of Investment Employment

 No. Units (Rs. Lakhs) (Nos.)

1 Alappuzha 43 53,005.67 9800
2 Ernakulam 200 3,34,829.03 33716
3 Idukki 19 9,994.04 2421
4 Kannur 14 2,10,278.00 3548
5 Kasargod 4 6,590.00 318
6 Kollam 14 5,890.00 2230
7 Kottayam 23 28,073.94 2967
8 Kozhikode 22 14,181.00 3363
9 Malappuram 23 13,901.95 3400
10 Palakkad 96 1,40,293.74 10359
11 Pathanamthitta 8 8,955.00 479
12 Thrissur 50 35,915.84 6049
13 Thiruvananthapuram 62 52,964.18 10246
14 Wayanad 10 6,992.00 690

Total 588 9,21,864.39 89586

SECTOR-WISE INVESTMENT IN KSIDC UNITS
(31-03-19)

Sl. Sector No.of Investment Employment
No. Units (Rs. Lakhs) (Nos.)

1 Central 7 5150 2158
2 State 25 41651 11223
3 Joint 44 238981.41 6250
4 Private 512 636081.98 69955

 Total 588 921864.39 89586
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (NET) SANCTIONED AND
DISBURSED / CLEARED UPTO 31-3-2019

(Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Year Sanctions(S) Direct Under Loans Guarantee Leasing Seed Total
Disbursements(D)  Subscription writing Fund

1961-62 S — — — — — — —
D — — — — — — —

1962-63 S 38.33 57.89 42.10 6.60 — — 144.92
D 38.33 1.60 4.50 — — 44.43

1963-64 S 35.45 31.01 35.00 — — 101.46
D 35.45 13.31 17.50 — — 66.26

1964-65 S 19.70 22.31 17.80 12.53 — — 72.34
D 10.00 75.01 18.00 — — 103.01

1965-66 S 35.91 12.95 16.00 47.11 — — 111.97
D 35.00 14.88 27.00 36.07 — — 112.95

1966-67 S 29.00 6.99 53.00 26.13 — — 115.12
D 0.91 18.95 35.00 21.42 — — 76.28

1967-68 S 2.16 — 43.00 120.84 — — 166.00
D 30.00 — 70.25 29.26 — — 129.51

1968-69 S 16.00 6.00 17.50 35.31 — — 74.81
D 15.70 4.50 27.05 137.09 — — 184.34

1969-70 S 51.35 — 64.75 12.09 — — 128.19
D 7.16 6.00 57.36 23.79 — — 94.31

1970-71 S 56.50 4.09 41.40 50.00 — — 151.99
D 39.01 6.34 58.26 37.20 — — 140.81

1971-72 S 43.88 — 58.59 — — — 102.47
D 48.90 2.25 63.02 12.29 — — 126.46

1972-73 S 15.80 — 72.50 108.50 — — 196.80
D 81.25 — 84.64 108.40 — — 274.29

1973-74 S 2.75 — 101.64 23.39 — — 127.78
D 5.12 — 85.16 32.48 — — 122.76

1974-75 S 29.33 — 189.68 10.00 — — 229.01
D 7.54 — 173.23 10.00 — — 190.77

1975-76 S 62.12 — 127.84 17.35 — — 207.31
D 28.86 — 105.23 17.35 — — 151.44

1976-77 S 57.55 — 47.98 55.00 — — 160.53
D 18.06 — 63.95 — — — 82.01

1977-78 S 91.24 — 102.18 40.00 — — 233.42
D 102.64 — 92.31 95.00 — — 289.95

1978-79 S 10.57 — 136.50 21.00 — — 168.07
D 54.65 — 111.93 21.00 — — 187.58

1979-80 S 78.30 — 93.00 — — — 171.30
D 116.44 — 121.74 — — — 238.18

1980-81 S 107.71 — 153.45 5.00 — — 266.16
D 48.07 — 131.19 5.00 — — 184.26

1981-82 S 51.25 — 402.75 42.14 — — 496.14
D 67.89 — 270.03 — — — 337.92

1982-83 S 152.76 — 491.07 30.00 — — 673.83
D 42.71 — 475.40 72.14 — — 590.25

1983-84 S 11.24 — 471.61 33.30 — — 516.15
D 75.85 — 287.21 33.30 — — 396.36

1984-85 S 70.84 — 862.96 7.50 — — 941.30
D 56.87 — 640.76 7.50 — — 705.13

1985-86 S 95.58 — 1178.34 8.79 — — 1282.71
D 100.86 — 841.32 8.79 — — 950.97

1986-87 S 116.51 — 1216.87 66.65 — — 1400.03
D 116.42 — 1150.16 66.65 — — 1333.23

1987-88 S 43.99 — 708.79 — — — 752.78
D 65.71 — 1079.55 — — — 1145.26

1988-89 S 70.16 — 1517.09 461.00 — — 2048.25
D 36.64 — 837.55 461.00 — — 1335.19
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1989-90 S 124.37 — 1241.51 550.00 — — 1915.88
D 174.16 — 1176.89 550.00 — — 1901.05

1990-91 S 416.00 — 1334.72 300.00 — — 2050.72
D 276.82 — 1174.85 300.00 — — 1751.67

1991-92 S 401.13 — 2488.03 977.83 — — 3866.99
D 342.21 — 2062.57 977.83 — — 3382.61

1992-93 S 520.01 — 2788.43 — — — 3308.44
D 379.58 — 2344.07 — — — 2723.65

1993-94 S 952.66 — 2559.65 — — — 3512.31
D 584.72 — 2399.83 — — — 2984.55

1994-95 S 852.24 — 2595.45 — — — 3447.69
D 732.65 — 2544.00 — — — 3276.65

1995-96 S 842.75 54.00 5540.48 — 141.31 — 6578.54
D 758.86 — 3479.36 — 141.31 — 4379.53

1996-97 S 3433.34 — 5281.31 — 330.21 — 9044.86
D 691.76 — 6311.64 — 306.32 — 7309.72

1997-98 S 150.00 — 2174.84 — — — 2324.84
D 688.82 — 1864.10 — 17.88 — 2570.80

1998-99 S 1608.69 — 7923.74 — 25.06 — 9557.49
D 3004.81 — 3565.87 — 22.96 — 6593.64

1999-00 S 258.22 — 5205.42 — — — 5463.64
D 895.46 — 6922.07 — — — 7817.53

2000-01 S 1550.00 — 4699.74 — — — 6249.74
D 1199.58 — 3927.06 — — — 5126.64

2001-02 S 400.00 — 2506.34 — — — 2906.34
D 137.37 — 4409.58 — — — 4546.95

2002-03 S 440.00 — 2778.71 — — — 3218.71
D 200.00 — 2159.56 — — — 2359.56

2003-04 S 50.00 — 3261.90 — — — 3311.90
D — — 2704.90 — — — 2704.90

2004-05 S 1172.87 — 7212.53 — — — 8385.40
D 1.34 — 2392.97 — — — 2394.31

2005-06 S 1372.94 — 16731.85 — — — 18104.79
D 284.00 — 4725.98 — — — 5009.98

2006-07 S 550.00 — 10745.00 — — — 11295.00
D 826.00 — 9481.00 — — — 10307.00

2007-08 S 1594.50 — 8217.50 — — — 9812.00
D 1537.50 — 4656.41 — — — 6193.91

2008-09 S 5.00 — 10333.00 — — — 10338.00
D 5.00 — 5019.00 — — — 5024.00

2009-10 S 110.00 — 6560.00 — — — 6670.00
D — — 5304.41 — — — 5304.41

2010-11 S 949.00 — 20446.21 — — — 21395.21
D 25.00 — 8568.00 — — — 8593.00

2011-12 S 1180.00 — 20391.00 — — — 21571.00
D 380.10 — 8597.60 — — — 8977.70

2012-13 S 2400.00 — 2960.50 — — — 5360.50
D 622.13 — 11227.00 — — — 11849.13

2013-14 S 1388.00 — 5463.98 — — — 6851.98
D 1469.98 — 4605.74 — — — 6075.72

2014-15 S 0.00 — 10876.91 — — — 10876.91
D 1441.50 — 2878.39 — — — 4319.89

2015-16 S 1000.00 — 7665.50 — — 622.50 9288.00
D 653.50 — 5322.36 — — 187.43 6163.29

2016-17 S 0.00 — 8582.00 — — 320.00 8902.00
D 0.00 — 6408.00 — — 193.90 6601.90

2017-18 S 357.00 15531.30 901.00 16789.30
D 357.00 7171.31 367.88 7896.19

2018-19 S 11888.49 - 11888.49 - - 163.00 -
D 230.00 - 6213.6 - - 290.61 -

Total S 26678.858 195.24 224249.43 3068.06 496.58  2006.5  256677.658

D 19185.89 141.24 146544.72 3068.06 488.47 1039.82 170468.20

Year Sanctions(S) Direct Under Loans Guarantee Leasing Seed Total
Disbursements(D) Subscription writing Fund
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